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December 6, 2013

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of City Council and Citizens of the City ofNorth Las Vegas:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of North Las Vegas (the City) for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013, is hereby submitted. The State of Nevada (the State) law requires that a local government obtain an annual
audit by independent certified public accountants of its fmancial statements in accordance with auditing staodards generally
accepted in the United States.

Except for the independent auditors' reports included herein, this report consists of management's representations
concerning the fmances of the City. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the City has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the
City's assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable infonnation for the preparation of the City's
fmaneial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAF). Because the
cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City's comprehensive framework of internal controls has
been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and
reliable in all material respects.

The City's financial statements have been audited by Piercy Bowler Taylor & Kern, Certified Public Accountants and
Business Advisors. The goal of an independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the basic financial statements
of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are free of material misstatement. An independent audit involves
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fmancial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and, evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditors concluded, based on their audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unqualified (clean) opinion that the City's basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are presented
fairly in all material respects in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors' report on the basic finaneial statements
is presented as the first component of the Financial Section of this report.



The independent audit of the basic fmancial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally-mandated Single Audit
designed to meet the special needs offederal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require
the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the basic fmancial statements, but also on the City's
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and internal controls over both
fmancial reporting and compliance.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic fmancial
statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately following
the report of the independent auditors on the basic fmancial statements.

Profile of the City of North Las Vegas

The City of North Las Vegas is located in Clark County, Nevada. With a population of approximately 223,491, the City
ranks as the fourth largest city in the State of Nevada. The City was incorporated in 1946 and currently occupies 100.7
square miles and is approximately 43% built-out, with a majority of land remaining undeveloped. The City is empowered
by State Statutes to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which it has done from time to time. The City boasts a
cosmopolitan cultural diversity, living up to its motto of being "Your Community of Choice."

The City is empowered by State Statutes to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located within its
boundaries. The City's property tax rate is $1.1637 per $100 in assessed valuation.

The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government, with elective offices consisting of the mayor, four City
Council members and two municipal judges. The mayor and municipal judges are elected at-large, while Council members
must live within and are elected by the constituents of their respective ward; all are elected on a non-partisan basis. Terms
of office for the mayor and City Council are four years and are staggered so that City-wide elections are held every two
years for two or three of the five offices; terms of office for the municipal judges are six years.

The City provides a full range of services, including a municipal court, public safety (police, fire, and building safety),
water and wastewater, highways and streets, planning and zoning, parks and recreational facilities, community development
and general administrative services. in addition to general governmental activities, the City Council exercises oversight
responsibility for the North Las Vegas Library District and the North Las Vegas Redevelopment Agency; consequently,
these activities have been included in this financial report as blended component units.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City's fmancial planning and control. Prior to April 15, the finance
director submits a tentative budget for the ensuing fiscal year to the City Council, the Nevada Department of Taxation and
the citizens through public hearings. Public hearings, at which all changes made to the tentative budget are indicated, are
conducted on the third Tuesday in May. The City Council adopts the budget prior to June I and submits it to the Nevada
Department of Taxation for fmal approval.

Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service fund, capital projects funds, enterprise funds and internal
service funds are included in the annual budget. The level of budgetary control is statutorily required to be exercised at the
function level. Encumbered amounts lapse at year-end.

Local Economy

The tourism industry, which is based on legalized gambling and related forms of entertainment, continues to be the largest
component of Southern Nevada's economic base, though it sutTered during the recent recession. During the downturn,
Southern Nevada experienced drastic declines in visitor volume and a change in spending habits for those visitors who
continued to come to the area. Such changes led to significant drops in taxable sales, gaming revenue, and room
occupancy. It followed that many businesses were forced to close or scale back operations, leading to record
unemployment and underemployment for the area. Visitor volume has since rebounded to pre-recession levels.
Additionally, many other economic indicators have begun to show some signs of improvement as well
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Employment) a key driver of the economy, continues to draw significant attention. Consumer spending is vital to economic
health, and it does not occur at the level necessary to maintain a healthy economy when large portions of the population are
unemployed, underemployed, or fearful that they may become unemployed. Under these conditions, individuals tend to
spend more for their needs, and to save) to the extent possible, for the "rainy day" that they perceive to be coming. Strong
employment, or perceived employment options) improves consumer confidence) and leads to more spending: the fuel
which drives the economic engine.

While it is positive that the Las Vegas Metro area unemployment rate has fallen to 10.1 % in June 20 13 compared to 11.8%
in June 2012, it still reflects that a high level of the eitizenry continues to struggle to find gainful employment. When
compared to last year's results, however, it is heartening to note that employment appears to be on the rise. In fact, job
gains exceeded job losses in excess of 19,000 last fiscal year, making it two consecutive years for growth at that level. This
increase in employment activity in fiscal year 20 13 represents the largest such increase since 2007.

The housing market, decimated during the Great Recession, is showing strong signs of returning to nonnalcy. As measured
by the S&P Case-Shiller Home Price Index, home prices in the Las Vegas Metro area have experienced consistent)
improving trends since November 20 II, having recorded 17 consecutive months of increases on the index-a feat
accomplished by only three other markets in the country during that period: Phoenix, Lns Angeles, and San Francisco.
Nationally, home prices are strengthening as well, with nearly no declines seen in any of the 20 markets measured on the
index during the prime selling season of April to July. With these improvements in the real estate market, it follows that
one would expect assessed valuation to improve) and indeed, it has. For the ftrst time since the recession began, the City's
estimated assessed valuation, published in the spring of each year by the Nevada Department of Taxation, has experienced
a year-over-year increase, improving by 2.0% from $3.99 billion in fiscal year 2012-2013 to $4.07 billion in fiscal year
2013-2014.

Long-Term Financial Planning

In 2006, for budgetary and financial planning purposes, the City Council mandated that an 18% ratio of fund balance,
compared to the combined total of encumbrances and operating expenditures, be maintained in the General Fund. For
several reasons, the most prominent being declining revenues, the City Council temporarily modified the aforementioned
fund balance policy by enacting Resolution No. 2471 wbich required that the City produce a budget which would result in a
General Fund ending fund balance of no less than 8% of General Fund expenditures. The change in General Fund balance
during fiscal year 2013 was an increase in ending fund balance from 7.93% in fiscal year 2012 to 8.35% at the end of fiscal
year 20 13. The long term goal of the City Council is to return to the 18% fund balance minimum by building fund balance
over time.

The City's rating from Standard & Poor's changed from A to BBB+ with a negative outlook. Moody's investors Service
downgraded the City's indebtedness from Baa2 to Ba I, and Fitch Ratings downgraded the City from BBB to BB+ with a
negative outlook. These actions by the rating agencies are primarily due to the continued economic weakness and
persistent financial challenges facing the City.

Maintaining adequate levels of service is a critical challenge that must be addressed as the City's population continues to
grow in this challenging economic environment. The City maintains a five-year fmaneial forecast for its major funds and
certain special revenue funds, which serves as the cornerstone for the fmandal action plan and operating budget strategies.
The forecasts provide an understanding of bow the total fmancial program will be affected by cenain economic factors and
assumptions) and enable the City to estimate the resources that will be necessary to meet the requirements of existing
programs and to make necessary adjustments accordingly.

Since 2007, the City has been implementing cost-saving actions in order to continue its prudent fiscal management. Such
actions have included across the board budget reductions, the elimination of vacant positions, major reductions in
discretionary spending, implementation of efficiency savings in all departments, and investigation of shared services with
other local jurisdictions. In addition, a number of capital improvement projects have been delayed, cancelled, or were
reduced in scope.

Looking to the future, the City has taken action to balance the fiscal year 2014 budget. The most notable action taken was
the suspension of cenain collectively bargained compensation under NRS 288. The City continues to work with its
employee bargaining groups in an effon to attain more savings through further employee concessions.
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The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a multi-year planning document that is updated· and adopted on an annual basis.
The CfP prioritizes major capital projects and identifies revenue sources available to finance the improvements. The City
Council adopted a FY 2014-18 CIP in excess of $244.4 million, though it continually evaluates the financial condition of
the City in order to ensure that the timing and scope of all projects are fiscally prudent.

Major initiatives

The North 5th Street Super-Arterial, a major, four-phase street project continues to progress. Portions of the project
already completed include the widening and improving of the roadway from Owens Avenue to Carey Avenue. Currently
under construction is an overpass crossing Interstate 15, with improvements North from Interstate 15 to Cheyenne Avenue
to be completed in the near future. The total costs for all four phases are projected to be approximately $89 million, and
will significantly improve traffic flow in downtown North Las Vegas. This is the largest street improvement project the
City has ever undertaken.

Construction of the Craig Ranch Regional Park (the Park) was near completion at June 30, 2013. The Park is
approximately 170 acres in size and it features a 65,000-square-foot skate park, which is considered one of the largest skate
parks in the United States. During 20 11, the first phase of the Park's construction was completed which included the
demolition of several existing structures, building a new maintenance facility, underground utilities, improving landscape,
an addition of new parking lot space, lighting, picnic shelters, restrooms, trails, a children's adventure play area, and a ftve­
acre dog park. The second phase included the construction of baseball fields, volleyball courts, basketball courts, four
public plazas, a community garden, an additional parking lot, additional restrooms, an additional children's adventure play
area, and the construction of the aforementioned skate park. On October 25, 2013, the Park opened to the public and the
City expects approximately 750,000 people to use the Park annually.

The Las Vegas Wash Main Branch - Channel and Trail Improvement Project, a two-phase project (phase I - Vegas
Boulevard to Lake Mead Boulevard and Phase n - Civic Center Drive to Las Vegas Boulevard) was partially completed as
of June 30, 2013. Phase II was substantially completed on May 29, 2013 and consists of approximately 1.42 miles of
multipurpose pedestrian trail with lighting and landscaping including a trailhead at Cheyenne Avenue, pedestrian bridges
over Las Vegas Boulevard and Cheyenne Avenue, and a pedestrian traffic signal on Civic Center Drive. Phase I was near
completion at June 30, 2013, and consists ofthe removal and replacement of the bridge at Lake Mead Boulevard and Pecos
Road. In addition, Phase I included approximately 1.15 miles of drainage channel improvements and a multipurpose
pedestrian trail with lighting and landscaping.

As a result of the resurgance in the regional housing market, there has been a renewed interest in the development of the
Park Highlands master planned community located on the northern edge of the City. Originally approved under a
development agreement in 2006, the 2,675 acre master planned community is under new ownership and revisions to the
development design are being negotiated with the City. In anticipation of this renewed development activity, the City
recently entered into an agreement to upsize certain sewer mains serving the future Park Highlands master planned area. As
currently proposed, this master planned community would include more than 13,000 housing units, mixed use commercial
areas, parks, trails, schools and public facilities to provide for an estimated population at build out of approximately 43,000
people.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. This
was the 32nd consecutive year that the City has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, the City must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR that satisfies both GAAP and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR continues to meet
the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and as such, will be submitted to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for recognition.
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Preparation of this report would not have been possible without the dedicated services of the Finance Department and our
independent auditors, Piercy Bowler Taylor & Kern, Certified Public Accountants and Business Advisors. We would like
to express our appreciation to all who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. Credit is also given to the
Mayor and members of the City Council for their interest and support in planning and conducting the operations of the City
in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeffrey L. Buchanan, Interim City Manager Darren Adair, Acting Finance Director
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PBTK
PIERCY BOWLER
TAYLOR & KERN
Certified Public Acoountants

Business Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City ofNorth Las Vegas, Nevada

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental actIVities, the business-type
activities, each major fimd, and the aggregate remaining fimd information of the City of orth Las Vegas (the
City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

An audit performed in accordance with applicable professional standards is a process designed to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the City's basic financial statements are free from material misstatement.
This process involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
basic financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair
presentation of the basic financial statements to enable the design of audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by managemen~ as
well as the overall presentation of the basic financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Finaneial Statements. Management is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of basic financial statements that are free from material
misstatemen~ whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsihility. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the basic financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to fmaneial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free from material misstatement.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion. In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the fmancial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fimd, and the
aggregate remaining fimd information of the City as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
managemen~s discussion and analysis, postemployment benefits other than pensions, schedule of fimding
progress and budgetary comparison information on pages 11-25 and 73-80 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of fmancial reporting for

6100 Elton Avenue, Ste. 1000 • Las Vegas, Nevada 89107 • 702-384-1120 • fax 702-870-2474 • pbtk.com



placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary infonnation in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the infonnation and comparing the infonnation for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic fmancial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fanning our opinion on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the City's basic fmancial statements. The introductory section, other
supplementary infonnation, as listed in the table of contents, statistical section and schedule of business license
fees are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic fmancial
statements.

The other supplementary infonnation, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such infonnation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
infonnation directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. lri our opinion, the other supplementary
infonnation as listed in the table of contents is fairly stated, in aU material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as awhole.

The introductory section, statistical section and schedule of business license fees have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic fmancial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Govemment Auditing Standards. In accordance with Govemment Auditing
Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 12,2013, on our consideration of the City's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other maners. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over ftnancial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit perfonned in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal
control over ftnancial reporting and compliance.

Las Vegas, Nevada
December 12,2013
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION A 'D ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

As management of the City of North Las Vegas (the "City"), we offer readers of the City's financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the fmancial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in OUf

letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 1-5 of this report.

Financial Highlights

The City's total net position at June 30, 2013, is $1.47 billion. Of this $1.47 billion, $1.17 billion is related to
governmental activities, while $307.27 million is related to its business-type activities.

The City's total assets increased by $55.95 million, primarily due to its investment in capital assets. The City's total
liabilities decreased by $6.67 million, primarily due to principal repayments.

The City's capital assets, net of related debt, totaled $1.34 billion; governmental activities contributed $1.11 billion and
business type activities contributed $229.03 million.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$85.72 million, a decrease of $4.21 million in comparison with the amount reported for the prior fiscal year. Of this
amount, $2.89 million is non spendable, $70.29 million is restricted, $1.85 million is committed and $2.35 million is
assigned. The remaining $8.34 million is unassigned and therefore, available for spending at the government's
discretion.

The general fund's ending fund balance is $9.34 million at June 30, 2013, which represents 8.3% of total general fund
expenditures. The City had a reserve policy of maintaining a fund balance of at least 18% and in the past, reserves
consistently exceeded 19% of expenditures. However, the City's tax revenue has fallen sharply as a result of the
recession and the City's tax base deterioration has been among the worst in the nation. The City's general fund property
tax revenue has declined by 70% from a high of $25. I million in 2009 to $7.6 million in 2013. Similarly,
intergovernmental consolidated tax revenue declined by 27% from a high of $54 million in 2006 to $39.4 million in
2013. As a result of these declining revenues, the City Council temporarily lowered the reserve policy to 8% with the
intent that ending fund balance be restored to the 18% level as soon as fiscal conditions allow.

The general fund's primary revenue sources are: intergovernmental consolidated taxes, which totaled $39.43 million,
francbise fees, which totaled $15.77 million and licenses and permits, which totaled $10.72 million. The City's licenses
and permits includes building and engineering permits, which totaled $3.16 million. Property taxes consist of ad
valorem taxes on real and personal property and totaled $7.54 million. The combination of the above four primary
revenue sources represents nearly 85% of the general fund's total revenues for the year ended June 30, 2013. In
addition to the aforementioned revenue sources for the general fund was the PILT transfer from the water and
wastewater funds in the total amount of $3 I.5 million.

The City's long-term liabilities decreased by a net $5.46 million. Although the overall decrease, the City entered into an
inlerlocal agreement in settlement of an ongoing dispute with Clark County regarding the discharge of effluent from the
City's wastewater treatment facility into the Sloan Channel, which is owned by the County. Under the agreement, the
City was required to pay Clark County $8 million upon execution of the agreement and an additional $7 million in
quarterly installments beginning July 2013 through July 2022. The City's liability for compensated absences decreased
by $0.69 million to $39.54 million. Additionally, the City's postemployment benefits other tban pensions increased hy
$1.37 million to $10.21 million. And finally, debt principal repayments totaling $12.69 million were made throughout
the fiscal year.

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR TilE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

For the year ended June 30, 2013, the City's total revenues amounted to $381.48 million. The primary revenue sources
for the City were charges for services, which amounted to $144.97 million, grants and contributions amounting to
$120.39 million, property taxes totaling $48.83 million, intergovernmental consolidated taxes, which totaled $39.43
million, and franchise fees amounting to $15.77 million.

For the year ended June 30, 2013, the City's total expenditures/expenses amounted to $317.67 million. The primary
expenditure functions for the City were public safety at $147.72 million, general government at $51.86 million,
wastewater activities at $38.81 million, water activities at $33.42 million and culture and recreation activities at $13.30
million.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic fmancial statements. The City's basic
financial statements include three components: 1) government-wide fmancial statements, 2) fund fmancial statements, and
3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic fmancial
statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's fmances, in a
manner similar to a private sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, as well as deferred inflows and
outflows ofresources, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the fmancial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during the most recent fiscal
year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation and sick leave benefits).

Both of the government-wide fmancial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supporred by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all, or a
significant portion, of their costs through user fees and charges (business type activities). The governmental activities of
the City include a municipal court, public safety (police and fire), highways and streets, planning and zoning, parks and
recreational facilities, libraries, community development and general government. The business type activities include a
water delivery syslem, a wastewater collection operation and municipal golf courses.

The government-wide fmancial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary government), but also a
legally separate redevelopment agency and a legally separate library district for which the City is financially accountable.
Financial information for these component units is blended with the fmancial information presented for the primary
government itself.

The government-wide fmancial statements can be found on pages 27-30 of this report.

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The City, like otber state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

The governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements; however, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund
financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the govemrnent+wide financial statements. it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between government funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains 18 individual governmental funds. [nformation is presented separately in the governmental fund
balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the
general fund, the public safety tax fund, and two capital project funds: parks and recreation projects and public safety
projects, which are all considered to be major funds. Data from the remaining 14 governmental funds are combined into a
single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the
form of combining and individual fund schedules, wbich can be found following the notes to the basic financial statements
in this report.

The City adopts annual appropnatlons budgets for its general and public safety tax funds. Budgetary comparison
statements have been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with the adopted budgets.

Tbe governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 31-36 of this report.

The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the sarne functions
presented as business type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account
for its water supply and distribution system, wastewater collection and treatment operations and two golf courses. [nternal
service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's various functions.
The City uses internal service funds to account for its fleet of vehicles and for its self insurance program, which is also
where the City accounts for postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB). Because these services predominantly
benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide fmancial statements.

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR TKE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Proprietary fund fmancial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide fmancial statements,
only in more detail. The City maintains five individual proprietary funds. The proprietary fund fmancial statements
provide separate information for the water system and the wastewater operation, both of which are considered to be major
funds of the City. The City also presents a non-major proprietary fund for the operations of its two golf courses. Both
internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.
Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining and individual fund schedules,
which can be found following the notes to the basic financial statements in this report. Financial data for the golf courses
are also combined into a single aggregated presentation, which can be found following the notes to the basic financial
statements in this report.

The proprietary fund fmancial statements can be found on pages 37-41 of this report.

The fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary
funds are not rellected in the government-wide fmancial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to
support the City's own operations and programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds.

The fiduciary fund fmancial statement can be found on pages 42 and 121-125 of this report.

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund fmancial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on
pages 43-72 of this report.

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain supplementary
information. A schedule of funding progress for the City's postemployment benefit plans is presented as required
supplementary information and information concerning the City's business license fees is also presented. The required and
other supplementary information can be found on pages 73-125 and the schedule of business licence fees can be found on
page 149 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the
City, assets exceeded liabilities by $1.47 billion at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion of the City's net position (90.9%) rellects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, infrastructure,
buildings, machinery and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The City
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities. An additional portion of the City's net position (5.1 %) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used, while 4.0% of the City's net position are unrestricted.

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Summary Statement ofNcl Positiion

Assets
Current, restricted and other
Capital

Total assets

Deferred outflows ofresources

Liabilities
Current
Long-term

Total liabilities

Governmental Activities BusinesHype Activities Total Primary Government

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

S 134,723,732 S 133,937,472 S II 0,220,892 S 106,869,966 S 244,944,624 S 240,807,438
1,267,097,325 1,206,507.236 517,006,723 525,781,902 1.784,1 04,048 1,732,289,138
1.401,821,057 1,340,444,708 627,227.615 632.651,868 2,029.048,672 1,973.096,576

14.553,581 15,188,647 59,853 111,156 14,613,434 15,299,803

33,725,229 28,576,430 14,060,444 22,290,266 47,785,673 50,866,696
217.191,268 222,694,670 305,960,174 305.919,736 523,151,442 528.614,406
250,916,497 251,271,100 320.020.618 328.210.002 570,937,115 579,481,102

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

1,109,705,374 1,035,550,177
70,286,644 74,650,721

{t4.533,877l (5,838,643)
S 1,165,458,141 S 1,104.362,255 S

229,033,516
4,514,658

73,718,676
307,266,850 S

226,097,835 1,338,738,890 1,261,648,012
7,132,932 74,801,302 81,783,653

71,322,255 59,184,799 65,483,612
304.553,022 S 1,472,724,991 S 1,408.915,277

The primary restrictions on the City's net position relate to capital projects ($31.90 million), public safety programs ($22.43
million), and community assistance and support programs ($12.78 million). The City's unrestricted net position totals
$59.18 million. For further details relating to the City's net position and restrictions thereon, please see the Statement of
Net Position on pages 27-28 of this document.

The following Summary Statement of Changes in Net Position reflects the City's increase in net position of$63.81 million.
The increase in net position is primarily a result of the operation of the govemmental~type activities, which increased net
position by $61.10 million. Business-type activities increased the City's net position by $2.71 million.

Governmental-type revenues increased by $17.39 million, caused primarily by a $26.01 million increase in capital grant
revenue related to construction of the new Craig Ranch Regional Park projec!. Additionally, intergovernmental and
charges for services revenues were up $1.87 million and $1.10 million, respectively, Conversely, property tax and
operating grant revenue fell by $6.31 and $3.74 million, respectively.

Governmental-type expenses decreased by $13.65 million, most of which was related to public safety ($12.98 million) due
in large part to the shared services agreement for detention with the City of Las Vegas. which was effective near the
beginning of fiscal year 2012-2013.

Business-type revenues increased by $4.80 million dollars, with the most significant changes coming from increases to
miscellaneous revenue, which increased by $6.33 million dollars due primarily to the non-recurring usage of funding
related to the Clean Water Coalition being utilized for the Sloan Channel agreement with Clark County, and charges for
services, which increased by $3.05 million. Conversely, operating and capital grants and contributions fell by $4.61 million.

Business-type expenses increased by $11.64 million, mostly in the wastewater function ($12.19 million) due to operational
costs oflbe new wastewater reclamation facility being fully chargeable to operations. During the prior year the facility was
going through extensive testing, and as such, some costs which might nonnally have been charged to operating or non­
operating expense were capitalized.

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Summary Statement ofChanges in Net Positiion

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Restated Restated Restated

Revenues
Program revenues

Charges for services $ 51,745,682 $ 50,648,813 $ 93,220,1 17 $ 90,171,134 $ 144,965,799 $ 140,819,947
Operating grants and contributions 19,871,431 23,609,657 3,116,042 6,127,457 22,987,473 29,737,114
Capital grants and contributions 91,544,553 65,538,503 5,857,325 7,460,413 97,401,878 72,998,916

General revenues
Property taxes 48,831,490 55,137,022 48,831,490 55,137,022
Residential construction taxes 332,595 382,353 332,595 382,353
Room taxes 383,888 358,753 383,888 358,753
Franchise fees. based on gross

receipts 15,769,356 16,142,005 15,769,356 16,142,005
Intergovernmental consolidated taxes 39,434,352 37,565,290 39,434,352 37,565,290
Other local government shared

revenues 2,224,996 2,124,392 2,224,996 2,124,392
Unrestricted investment income 679,281 1,378,592 136,985 72,721 816,266 1,451,313
Gain on disposal of capital assets 204,150 316,407 23,860 204,150 340,267
Miscellaneous 1,767.227 2.199,961 6.362.108 36.782 8.129.335 2.236.743

Total revenues 272.789.001 255,401.748 108,692,577 103.892.367 381,481,578 359.294.115

Expenses
General government 51,855,800 49,229,276 51,855,800 49,229,276
Judicial 9,496,348 10,521,037 9,496,348 10,521,037
Public safety 147,724,400 160,705,260 147,724,400 160,705,260
Public works 11,197,298 10,164,862 11,197,298 10,164,862
Culture and recreation 13,295,753 15,245,421 13,295,753 15,245,421
Community support 5,168,774 7,807,086 5,168,774 7,807,086
Interest expense and fiscal charges 4,388,732 3,106,240 4,388,732 3,106,240
Wastewater 38,806,095 26,615,574 38,806,095 26,615,574
Water 33,417,139 33,863,783 33,417,139 33,863,783
Municipal golf courses 2,321,525 2,422,211 2,321,525 2,422,211

Total expenses 243,127,105 256,779,182 74,544.759 62,901,568 317,671,864 319,680,750

Change in net position before transfers 29,661,896 (1,377,434) 34,147,818 40,990,799 63,809,714 39,613,365

Transfers 31,433,990 31,958,855 (31,433,990) (31,958,855)

Change in net position 61,095,886 30,581,421 2,713,828 9,031,944 63,809,714 39,613,365

Net position, beginning of year 1,104.362.255 1,073,780,834 304,553,022 295.521,078 1,408,915,277 1,369,301,912

Net position, end of year $ 1,165.458,141 $ 1.1 04.362.255 $ 307.266,850 $ 304,553.022 $ 1,472,724,991 $1.408,915,277
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MANAGEM.ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALVSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The following graphs provide expense and program revenue information with regard to the various functions of Ihe CiJy's
governmental activities and revenues by source information with regard to the City's governmental activities.
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The following graphs provide expense and program revenue information with regard to the various functions of the City's
business type activities and revenues by source infonnation with regard to the City's business type activities.

Program Revenues and Expenses
BUlinns-type Aflivilln -"'.......

,..ooo.ooo~~---r=~---
40,000,000

)0,000,000

20,000,000

10,000,000

o I
Wastewater

I
Municipal golfcoul'1e1

Revenues by Source
BUllnes.-lype Atlivllia

1.99% Other·
5.'5% Miseellaneous

5.3'% CapitAl pnl$ and c:ontributions

• Other. ()perttintl POlS and COlltributiol\S 2.ll1%. Uruutrieted investment income 0.13%

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with fmance related legal
requirements.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of
spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the City's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of$85.72
million, a decrease of $1.5 million in comparison with the amount reported for the prior fiscal year. Of the ending fund
balance, $2.89 million is nonspendable as this amount represents land held for resale. inventories and prepaid items, which
are not in a spendable fonn; $70.29 million is restricted as amounts in this classification are restricted for specific purposes
by external creditors, such as bondholders. grantors, laws and/or regulations of other governments; $1.85 million is
committed for specific purposes pursuant to City Council direction; $2.35 million is assigned with the intent that these
funds will be used for a specific purpose, but these funds are not restricted nor committed; and $8.34 million is unassigned
fund balance, which is available for spending at the City Council's discretion.

The City reports both major and nonmajor funds, and as such, major funds are reponed in a separate column in the entity­
wide statements, while noomajor funds are reported in a single aggregated column. By definition, the general fund is
always considered a major fund. Funds must be reponed as major funds if they meet both of the following criteria:

An individual fund reports at least 10% of any of the following: a) total assets, b) total liahilities, c) total revenues, or d)
total expenditures/expenses in its fund type category, governmental or enterprise.

An individual fund reports at least 5% of the aggregated total for both governmental funds and enterprise funds of one
of the items for which it met the 10% criterion.

Following are summaries of key information relating to the City's major funds:

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end ofthe current fiscal year, the general fund's ending fund
balance was $9.34 million. Of this amount, $0.23 million was nonspendable due to prepaid items, and $0.17 was restricted
for the unspent matching component of a number of grant related programs. Additionally, while not a matching
component, some grant funded programs require funding beyond that which the grant itself or the matching component
provide. The City, therefore, has cornmitted an additional $0.60 million of fund balance in order to ensure proper funding
for such programs. Finally, as noted above, $8.34 million is unassigned. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it
may also be useful to compare fund balance to total fund expenditures. As such, fund balance represents 8.3% of total
general fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the City's general fund increased by $0.10 million during the fiscal year. Overall revenues, excluding
transfers in, decreased by 0.6% ($0.57 million) and transfers in decreased by 9.2%, ($3.21 million) compared to the prior
year.

Revenues directly related to population and assessed valuation, such as property taxes, decreased by $0.95 million, or
11.2% during the current fiscal year. Property values have begun to increase, however, and it is expected that dropping
property tax revenues are likely to be mitigated in the near future. The City's population growth continues, albeit more
moderately than in the recent past, prior to the most recent recession.

(Continued)
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Franchise fee revenues fell by $0.37 million, or 2.3% in fiscal year 2012-2013, remaining relatively stable. License and
pennit revenues consists primarily of business license and building and engineering permits. Business licenses showed a
modest increase of $0.27 million or 3.8%, while development related permitting (building and engineering) experienced a
strong increase of $0.32 million, or 11.1 %. This strong increase in development permitting is primarily attributable to the
warming trend currently being experienced in the construction industry.

Charges for services revenues fell substantially during fiscal year 2012-2013, dropping by 22.2%, which amounted to a
$0.90 million decrease. This decrease was primarily the result offalling municipal court fees (decrease of$0.32 million, or
20.4%), fife department transport fees (decrease of$0.47 million, or 68.9%), and prisoner boarding fees (decrease of$0.16
million, or 41.4%). Fire department transport fees decreased significantly during fiscal year 2012-2013 due to a change in
the Fire Departmentts staffing level, resulting in an increase in private ambulance transport, while prisoner boarding fees
continue the fall which began early in fiscal year 20 I0-20 I I, when the federal government began housing its prisoners,
formerly housed at the City of North Las Vegas' detention center, at a new prison facility in Pahrump, Nevada.

The City's consolidated tax distribution (CTX) is the largest single revenue source in the general fund. In fiscal 2012-2013,
it accounted for 45.3% of general fund revenue, when excluding transfers, and 33.2% when including transfers. CTX rose
solidly over the prior year, increasing by $1.87 million, or 5.0%. The consolidated tax distribution is collected by the State
of Nevada and allocated to local governments based on statutory formulas, with sales and use taxes being the largest
component (generally falling between 80% and 90% of the total). The increase in the consolidated tax distribution appears
primarily attributable to the increase in consumer spending, as our local economy continues to recover.

Intergovernmental revenues, excluding consolidated tax, consist of grants and room and gaming tax received from the Las
Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority. Overall this revenue source fell by $0.19 million, or 7.4%, due primarily to a
decrease in federal grant funding of $0.28 million, as many federal grant programs have experienced general decreases in
recent years. Room and gaming tax increases of $0.1 0 million partially offset the loss in grant funding.

Fines and forfeitures, which consist almost exclusively of municipal court fmes (over 98% in fiscal 2012-2013) saw a
modest increase of$0.15 million, or 2.4%, as this court activity remained relatively stable.

Overall expenditures for the general fund, including transfers out, decreased by $2.42 million, or 2.0%, as cost cutting
measures have stabilized to a large degree with the City having reached expenditure and staffmg levels which are the
re'flection of significant austerity measures over the past several years. Of note is that salaries and related benefits
accounted for approximately 76.4% of the general fund's expenditures in the fiscal year 2012-2013.

Tbe public safety tax fund had a total ending fund balance of $2.17 million at the end of fiscal 2012-2013. Of that balance,
$8,471 was nonspendable as it pertained to prepaid items. The remaining $2.16 million of ending fund balance was
restricted for the expenditure of additional public safety support with respect to police and detention activities pursuant to
voter approved tax overrides. Tax revenues for this fund decreased by approximately 9.6% and expenditures decreased by
11.2%. Primarily contributing to this expense reduction was the interlocal agreement with the City of Las Vegas resulting
in a combined detention operation between the two cities. Also contributing was attrition, to the extent positions which
were voluntarily vacated were not immediately filled.
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The parks and recreation project fund is utilized to fund and track capital improvements related to the City's park facilities.
This fund became a major fund in fiscal year 2012-2013 as a result of substantial increase in construction activity at Craig
Ranch Regional Park as that project was brought nearly to completion by the end of the fiscal year. The parks and
recreation project fund balance at the end of the fiscal year 2012-2013 was $1.60 million, all of which was restricted for
park related construction projects. Revenue for the fund totaled $40.97 million, excluding transfers in, which represented
an increase of $28.90 million from the prior year. This increase consisted almost entirely of grants from the Bureau of
Land Management to fund the aforementioned construction of Craig Ranch Regional Park. Expenditures in the fund nearly
mirrored revenue, at $41.05 million, as would be expected in a fund where grants are the primary revenue source.

The public safety projects fund is utilized to fund projects which enhance public safety. Such projects include, not only
traditional public safety projects related to police and fire protection, but also include projects related to traffic safety and
flood control. The public safety project fund also became a major fund in fiscal year 2012-2013 as a result of substantial
flood control projects coming online. The public safety projects fund had an ending fund balance at the end of fiscal year
2012-2013 of $8.04 million, all of which was restricted for public safety capital projects. Revenue for the fund totaled
$29.63 million, excluding transfers in, which represented an increase of $27.51 million from the prior year. This increase
consisted almost entirely of grants from the Clark County Regional Flood Control District to fund the aforementioned flood
control projects. Expenditures in the fund nearly mirrored revenue, at $29.24 million, as would be expected in a fund
where grants are the primary revenue source. These expenditures were almost entirely dedicated to the construction of
flood control systems within the City.

Proprietary Funds

The City's proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information found in the government wide
financial statements for business type activities, but in more detail.

Operating revenues of the City's water and wastewater business type activities increased by $9.50 million, or 10.8%
($97.68 million in 2013 compared to $88.18 million in 2012). Likewise, operating expenses, excluding transfers out,
increased by $4.19 million, or 8.1%. Transfers out to the City's general fund for payment in lieu of taxes (PILT) was
reduced from $32.0 million in fiscal year 2011-2012 to $31.5 million in fiscal year 2012-2013. Further information
regarding these changes in revenues and expenses for the water and wastewater operations are as follows:

The water enterprise fund had an overall increase in net position of $2.52 million due to various increases and decreases in
this year's operations as noted in the following paragraphs.

Water utility fees increased 5.6%, or $2.54 million during this fiscal year. This increase is due to a 3% rate increase and an
increase in new accounts. This year the City saw an increase in new development which increased connection fee revenues
by 182.45%, or $0.96 million.

Operating expenses of the water enterprise fund decreased nearly I% to $32.39 million compared to the prior fiscal year.
Expenses for salaries, related benefits and services and supplies decreased by 0.6%. Purchases of water during the fiscal
year from the City's purveyor, Southem Nevada Water Authority, decreased by 7.7% and expenses for depreciation
decreased by 1.6%. The decrease in water purchase costs is attributable to management's decision to increase the amount
of required water pumped from City-owned wells from 2%-4% in fiscal year 2011-2012 to approximately 10% in fiscal
year 20 I2-20 13, thus reducing the amount of water purchased from Southern Nevada Water Authority.

Additionally, capital contributions decreased by $2.43 million and transfers out decreased by $4.70 million during fiscal
year 2012-2013 compared to the prior year. The City's capital contributions consist primarily of infrastructure that's paid
for and constructed by developers.

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The wastewater enterprise fund had an overall decrease in net position of $1.61 million due to various increases and
decreases in this year's operations as noted in the following paragraphs.

Wastewater utility fees increased hy $1.16 million, or 3.3% for the fiscal year. This increase is due to a 3% rate increase
during the year and an increase in new service accounts during the year. Since the City's wastewater fee structure is
substantially based on actual water consumptions, the increase in demand for water services ultimately results in increased
wastewater to treat.

Non-operating revenues primarily consist of intergovernmental revenues, which increased by $0.38 million as a result of
the additional sales and use taxes collected. Investment interest earnings increased from $72,721 to $136,985.

Operating expenses ofthe wastewater enterprise fund increased by $4.45 million, or 23.5% to $23.37 million. Salaries and
related benefits expenses increased by 42.8%. This increase is due to the wastewater reclamation facility (WRF) being
fully operational and additional staff added to operate the facility. Services and supplies increased by $3.18 million, or
75% and these increases are mainly due to the operation of the WRF.

Non-operating expenses consist of interest and bond issuance costs, which increased by $7.65 million, or 102% This
increase is due to the completion of the WRF and interest expense that was being capitalized in prior years is now being
expensed.

General Fund Budget

During the fiscal year, there was a $0.69 million decrease in appropriations between the original and final amended budget,
$0.46 million was due to a procedural accounting change for the replacement of motor vehicles. The original revenue
budget was increased $0.06 million as some departments received additional reimbursement for services provided.
Transfers in were also reduced by $0.45 million as a result of the procedural change on the purchases of replacement
vehicles.

Revenues for the general fund came in under budget by $4.11 million, compared to the final amended budget. This was
mostly due to an increase in the budget from the prior year, as it was anticipated that the judicial function fees and fines
collections would increase; however, collection activities for fiscal year 2012-2013 for the judicial function remained
relatively stable and the increase in revenue did not materialize, thus accounting for a $2.10 million shortfall. Also, overall
flre department fees came in under budget by approximately $0.53 million, mostly attributable to the reduction in staffing
levels, resulting in an increase i.n private ambulance transport. And lastly, investment interest earnings came in under
budget by nearly $0.60 million.

Expenditures for the general fund came in under budget by $3.46 million, compared to the final amended budget. This was
mostly due to savings in the general government function of salaries and wages and supplies and services amounting to
$1.20 million. Additionally, there were overtime savings totaling $1.04 for the public safety function and lastly, the culture
and recreation function achieved overall savings amounting to $0.51 million. Further details relating to the general fund
budget can be found on pages 75-78 of this report.

(Conrinued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2013, amounts to
$1.78 billion (net of accumulated depreciation and amortization). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings,
infrastructure, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways and bridges. The total increase in
the City's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 2.99%.

Major capital asset activity during the current fiscal year included the following:

$9.42 million in infrastructure capital assets constructed by developers and contributed to the City.

$41.05 million expended from the capital projects parks and recreation fund primarily related to the construction of the
Craig Ranch Regional Park and for other capital improvements to various parks and recreation buildings and facilities
within the City limits.

$15.62 million expended from the capital projects street improvements fund primarily related to the ongoing
construction of the North 5th Street Corridor Project, which will provide for a high-volume north-south super arterial
roadway.

$30.48 million expended from the capital projects public safety fund primarily related to the construction improvements
of flood control facilities, including pipes, culverts, channels, energy dissipators, channel structures, channel access,
storm drain inlets and laterals and other appurtenances as required.

$1.97 million expended from the capital projects municipal building facilities fund primarily related to the upgrade of
the City's Oracle E-Business Suite financial software, including upgrade of the City's hardware mainly located in City
Hall.

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 3 on pages 56-57 of this report.

Long-term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the total outstanding bonded debt of the City was $467.56 million. Of this amount,
$458.83 million comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the goverrunent and $8.73 million is special
assessment debt for which the government is liable in the event of default by the property owners subject to the assessment.

The City's total bonded debt outstanding decreased hy $5.69 million, or 1.29% during the current fiscal year. Although the
City entered into a new debt obligation totaling $7 million, bond repayments for the fiscal year totaled $12.69 million.

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The City's rating from Standard & Poor's changed from "All to "888+" with a negative outlook. Moody's investors Service
downgraded the City's indebtedness from "Baa2," to "Bal" and Fitch Rarings downgraded the City from "BBB" to "BB+"
with a negative outlook. These actions by the rating agencies are primarily due to the City's continued fiscal challenges
driven by a steep drop in general fund revenues, coupled with costly long-term labor contracts. The City and region's
economy were among the hardest hit by the cnllapse of the housing market, resulting in a combined assessed valuation
decline of 52% over the last four years. Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes, the State limits the amount of general
obligation debt a government entity may issue to 20% of its total assessed valuation. The current statutory debt limitation
for the City is $690.75 million, which is significantly in excess of the City's actual outstanding net general obligation debt
of $449.02 million.

Additional information on the City's long term debt can be found in Note 3 on pages 58-64 of this report.

Next Year's Budget

As expenditures continue to outpace revenues, the City has been implementing a number of cost saving actions in order to
continue its prudent fiscal management and avoid the need to raise taxes or service charges over the next few years. Such
actions over the past five years have included: the elimination of vacant positions, implementation of a hiring freeze,
budget reduction programs, layoffs and voluntary separation packages. In addition, a number of capital improvement
projects have been delayed, cancelled, or face a reduction in project scope.

Near the end of the fiscal year, after negotiations failed to yield concessions from bargaining units for the coming fiscal
year, the City Council took action to close the $18.82 million budget gap to ensure that a balanced budget was presented for
fiscal year 2013-2014. The most notable action taken was the suspension of all collectively bargained compensation
provisions under NRS 288.

In looking to the future, the City has reduced the FY 2013-14 general fund budgeted revenues by $2.33 million for a total
of$120.61 million from the FY 2012-13 budget. Likewise, the City has reduced the FY 2013-14 budgeted appropriations
by $2.14 million for a total of$120.21 million. The City continues to try to work with its employee bargaining groups in an
effort to attain more savings through further employee concessions.

The City's adopted operating budget for FY 2013-14 is currently at $349.02 million and the adopted capital improvement
plan for FY 2013-14 is $83.87 million; however, a number of capital projects continue to be deferred until such time as the
economy improves.

Property tax revenues account for approximately 6.1 % of general fund revenues. During fiscal year 2005, the State of
Nevada enacted legislation that provided for a partial abatement of property taxes going forward. The level of abatement is
based on the type and use of the property, but generally, if the property is a primary residence, then the abatement is the
amount of taxes that exceeded the prior year's tax bill plus 3%.

Workers' Compensation Issue

Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes, diseases of the lungs and heart are considered occupational diseases for firefighters
and police officers. Specifically, the statutes provide that a disease of the lung and/or heart is conclusively presumed to
have arisen out of and in the course of employment and as such, are compensable with regard to workers' compensation
benefits. Further, the statutes permit claims to be reopened at any time during the life of the claimant for further
examination and treatment should circumstances change which would warrant an increase or rearrangement of
compensation.

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

At issue is the cost of workers' compensation benefits and settlement costs that the City will presumably incur beginning
over the next ten years as the age of the City's police and fife safety workforce increases. It could be further assumed that a
large portion of the police and fire safety workforce will develop some form of lung and/or heart disease as part of the
natural process of aging, yet the City would be financially accountable for all the disability benefits as it would be
conclusively detennined that the disease arose out of and/or in connection with employment with the City. As a result, the
cost to the City for disability and death benefits to claimants under these statutes could very well cause a significant
fmancial hardship over a short period of time.

Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions

The City was required on July 1,2007, to implement GASB (Governmental Accounting Standards Board) Statement No.
45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post employment Benefits Other than Pensions. The purpose of
GASB Statement No. 45 is to require the accrual of liabilities and expenses of other post employment benefits, such as
healthcare, generally over the working career of plan members, rather than on a pay-as-you-go basis, which was the City's
past practice. As such, the City had an actuarial study performed and as of June 30, 2013, the City's net OPEB obligation
was $10.21 million.

Requests for information

This fmaneial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's fmanees for all those with an interes!.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial infonnation should
be addressed to the Finance Department, City of North Las Vegas, 2250 Las Vegas Boulevard North, Suite 710, North Las
Vegas, Nevada, 89030-5875.
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013

Primary Government
Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash, cash equivalents and investments, unrestricted S 90,787,190 S 50,413,893 S 141,201,083
Cash, cash equivalents and investments. designated for specific purposes 2,112,799 2,112,799
Cash, cash equivalents and investments, restricted 1,910,874 7,838,128 9,749,002
Accounts receivable, net 5,897,627 14,570,319 20,467,946
Grants receivable 15,058,026 15,058,026
Property taxes receivable 1,388,589 1,388,589
Special assessments receivable 100,551 100,551
Interest receivable 20,875 20,875
Due from other governments 11,000,103 99,780 11,099,883
Inventories 239,076 3,107,064 3,346,140
Prepaid land lease, net of amortization 22,625,000 22,625,000
Other prepaid items 448,042 155,717 603,759
Refundable deposits 14,563,677 14,563,677
Property held for resale 2,607,294 2,607,294
Internal balances 3,152,686 (3, I 52,686)
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization

Construction in progress 236,293,969 16,987,054 253,28 I ,023
Land 190,388,973 15,577,693 205,966,666
Buildings and building improvements 178,304,383 81,070,550 259,374,933
Improvements other than buildings 54,466,327 46,253,301 100,719,628
Infrastructure 599,269,158 352,365,939 951,635,097
Machinery, equipment and software 8,374,5 I 5 4,752,186 13,126,701

Total assets 1.401,821,057 627,227,615 2,029,048,672

OEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unamortized deferred refunding charges 14,l53,l81 59,853 14,613,434

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 21,155,765 1,983,374 23,139,139
Accrued salaries and benefits 6,757,537 695,334 7,452,871
Due to other governments 1,373,731 4,926,989 6,300,720
Customer deposits 52,242 3,943,526 3,995,768
Unearned revenue 2,180,577 33,127 2,213,704
Interest payable 2,205,377 2,478,094 4,683,471
Long·term liabilities, due within one year

Bonds and notes payable 4,990,000 7,837,000 12,827,000
Compensated absences 5,803,700 540,os2 6,343,752

Long·term liabilities, due in more than one year
Bonds and notes payable, net of unamortized premiums and discounts 165,815,480 294,757,309 460,572,789
Compensated absences 30,367.733 2,825,813 33,193,546
Postemployment benefits other than pensions 10,214,355 10,214,355

Tot'alliabilities 250,916,497 320,020,618 570,937, I 15

See notes to basic financial statements.
(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)

J NE 30, 2013

Primary Government
Governmental Business-type:

Activities Activities Total

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for

Debt sen-ice
Buildings and facilities projects
Street improvments projects
Other capital projects
Police, fire and other public safety programs and projects
Parks, cultural and other recreational programs
Library district operations
Courts and other judieal programs
Community assistance and support programs
00"

Unrestricted

Total nct position

See notes 10 basic financial statements.

1,109,705,374 229,033,516 1,338,738,890

3,249,642 3,249,642
7,791,022 7,791,022
6,198,032 6,198,032

13,394,365 4,514,658 17,909,023
22,431,745 22,431,745

1,600,083 1,600,083
736,876 736,876

2,081,987 2,081,987
12,783,789 12,783,789

19,103 19,103
(14.533.877) 73.718.676 59.184.799

S 1.165,458.141 S 307.266.850 S 1,472.724.991
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FUNCfIONIPROGRAM
Governmental aClivities

General government
Judicial
Public safcly
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community support
Debt service

Intcrest expense and fiscal charges

Tolal governmcntal activities

Business-type activities
Wastewater
Water
Municipal golf courses

1'011'1 business-type activities

Total functiOn/program

See notcs to basic financial statements.

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

STATEMENT OF ACfIVITES

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Program Revenues Change in Net Position

Operating Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and Governmental Business-type

ExtlCnse_,_ Services Contrihutions Contributions Activities Activities Total

$ 11,811,800 $ 12,001,422 $ 101,129 $ $ (39,312,849) $ $ (39,312,849)
9,496,348 10,446,182 910,234 910,234

147,724,400 21,124,279 12,331,471 197,088 (114,071518) (114,071,118)
11,197,298 4,711,177 3,746,332 91,347,461 88,648,076 88,648,076
13,291,713 2,874,363 217,843 (10,203,147) (10,203,147)
1,168,774 147,419 3,074,212 (1,147,063) (1,147,063)

4,388.732 (4,388,732) (4,388,732)

243, 127.ill 11,741,682 19,871,431 91,144513 (79,961,439) ----'12.,961,439)

38,806,091 40,239,867 3,116,042 4,176,111 9,126,361 9,126,361
33,417,139 11,188,311 1.280.774 19,011,910 19,011,910
2,321,525 1.791,931 (129590) (129.190)

74,544.159 93.220.117 3,116.042 1,817.321 27.648.721 27.648.721

$ 317.671.864 $ 144,961,799 $ 22,987,473 $ 97,401,878 $ (79.961,439) 27,648.721 (12.316.714)

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITES (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Program Revenues
Net (Expenses) Revenues and

Chan~e in Net Position

GENERAL REVENUES
Property taxes
Residential construction taxes
Room taxes
Franchise fees, based on gross receipts
Intergovernmental consolidated taxes
Other local government shared revenues
Unrestricted investment income
Gain on disposal of capital assets
Miscellaneous

TOlal general revenues

Transfers

CI1ANGE IN NET POSITION

Exncnses

Operating Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and

Services Contributions Contributions
Governmental Business-type

Activities Activitie.Oi Tolal

48.831.490 48.831.490
332.595 332.595
383.888 383.888

15.769.356 15.769.356
39.434.352 39.434.352

2.224.996 2.224.996
679.281 136.985 816.266
204.150 204.150

1.767.227 6.362.108 8.129.335

109,627.335 6.499.093 116.126.428

31.433.990 (J1.433.990)

61.095.886 2.713.828 63.809.714

NET POSITION. BEGINNING OF YEAR. AS PREVIOUSLY
REPORTED

Adjustment
NET POSITION BEGINNING OF YEAR. AS ADJUSTED

1.111.591.619
(7.229,364)

1.104.362,255

311.070.074
(6.517.052)

304.553,022

1.422.661.693
(J.109.666)

1.408,915,277

NET POSITION. END OF YEAR

See noles to basic financial statements.

S 1.165.458.141 S 307.266.850 S 1.472,724,991
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2013

Special Revenue
Fund Capital Proiects Funds

Parks and Aggregate Other Total
Public: Safety Recreation Public Safety Governmental Governmental

General Fund To., Projects Projects Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash. cash equivalents and investments S 2,270,200 S 3,787,017 S 183,797 S 7,562,810 S 59,757,581 S 73,561,405
Accounts receivable, net 4,355,167 7,410 25,973 30,227 1,216,125 5,634,902
Grants receivable 34,525 5,807,485 5,812,638 3,403,378 15,058,026
Property taxes receivable 426,335 620,306 341,948 1,388,589
Interest receivable 20,875 20,875
Special assessments receivable 100,551 100,551
Prepaid items 231,430 8,471 36,145 276,046
Due from other governments 7,735,564 3,264,539 11,000,103
Inventories 3,326 3,326
Property held for resale 2,607,294 2,607,294

Total assets S 15,053,221 S 4,423,204 S 6,017,255 S 13,405,675 S 70,751,762 S 109,651.117

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other accrued

liabilities S 743,162 S 22,846 S 4,402,738 S 5,351,499 S 2,487,869 S 13,008,114
Accrued salaries and benefits 4,284,868 1,143,993 14,435 14,110 1,004,904 6,462,310
Due to other funds 253,292 70,892 56,322 380,506
Due to other governments 275,915 681,300 290,796 1,248,011
Customer deposits 43,202 7,593 50,795
Unearned revenue 16,813 2,163,764 2,180,577

TOlalliabilities 5,617,252 1,919,031 4,417,173 5,365,609 6,011.248 23,330,313

DEFERRED INFLOWS DF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues 97,025 335,643 173,067 605,735

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources 5,714,277 2,254,674 4.417,173 5,365,609 6,184,315 23936048

See notes to basic financial statements.
(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNOS
BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2013

Special Revenue
Fund Capital Projects Funds

Parks and Aggregate Other Total
Public Safety Recreation Public Safety Governmental Governmental

Gener31 Fund Tax Projects Projects Funds Funds

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable

Inventories 3,326 3,326
Prepaid items 231,430 8,471 36,145 276,046
Land held for resale 2,607,294 2,607,294

Restricted for
Debt service 3,249,644 3,249,644
Buildings and facilities projects 7,791,018 7,791,018
Street improvments projects 6,198,015 6,198,015
Other capital projects 13,394,361 13,394,361
Police, fire and other public safely

programs and projects 170,576 2,160,059 8,040,066 12,061,028 22,431,729
Parks, cultural and other recreational

programs 1,600,082 1,600,082
Library district operations 736,877 736,877
Couns and other judical programs 2,081,986 2,081,986
Community assistance and support

programs 12,783,793 12,783,793
Other 19,103 19,103

Commiued to
Debt service 5,226 5,226
Buildings and facilities projects 684,399 684,399
Other capital projects 9 9
Police, fire and other public safety

programs and projects 596,200 596,200
Parks, cultural and other recreational

programs 308,799 308,799
Community assistance and suppon

programs 251,433 251,433
Assigned to

Other capital projects 940,274 940,274
Police, fire and other public safety

programs and projects 393,672 393,672
Parks, cultural and other recreational

programs 1,001,742 1,001,742
Other 19,303 19,303

Unassigned 8 340 738 8340738

Total fund balances 9,338.944 2.168.530 1.600.082 8.040,066 64.567.447 85.715.069

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
$ 15.053.221 $ 4423204 $ 6.017.255 $ 13.405.675 $ 70751762 $ 109.651.117and fund balances

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

RECONClLATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2013

FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported in the statement ornet position are different because:

$ 85,715,069

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources; and therefore, are not
reported in governmental funds:

Capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation

Long·tcnn liabilities, including bonds payable are not due and payable in the current period; and therefore,
are not reported in governmental funds:

Bonds payable
Unamortized premiums and discounts
Unamortized deferred refunding charges
Compensated absences payable

Other liabilities are not due and payable in the current period; and therefore, are not reponed in
governmental funds:

Interest payable

Unavailable revenue represents amounts that were not available 10 fund currenl expenditures; and therefore,
nre nOI reported in governmental funds:

Unavailable rcvenue

Internal service funds are used by managment to charge the costs of certain activities 10 individual funds:
Inlernal service fund assets and liabililies included in governmental activilics in the stalement of net

posilion
Inlernal service fund balance receivable from business-type aClivlies from cummulative prior years'

activity
Internal service fund balance receivable from business-rypc activties from current year activity

NET POSITION, GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See notes 10 basic financial stalements.

$ 1,675,576,511
(409,6 19,DS)

1,265,957,273

(168,171,700)
(2,633,7S0)
14,553,581

(35.678.250)
(191,930,149)

(2,205,377)
(2,205,377)

605.735
605,735

4,193,342

2,707,112
415.136

7.315590

$ 1.165.458.141

33



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES I FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Special Revenue
Fund Capital Proiects Funds

Parks and Aggregate Other Total
Public Safety Recreation Public Safety Governmental Governmental

General Fund Tax Projects Projects Funds Funds

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 7,537,599 $ 28,33 1,500 $ $ $ 13,291,718 $ 49,160,817
Residential construction taxes 332,595 332,595
Room taxes 383,888 383,888
Franchise fees 15,769,356 15,769,356
Licenses and permits 10,722,526 10,722,526
Special assessments 2,202,185 2,202,185
Charges for services 3,146,630 2,222,593 5,369,223
Intergovernmental consolidated taxes 39,434,352 39,434,352
Intergovernmental 2,342,535 40,968,699 29,586,129 33,733,441 106,630,804
Fines and forfeitures 6,799,910 735,641 7,535,551
Contributions 821 42,646 62,865 106,332
Rents and royalties 480,523 77,333 557,856
Investment income 139,959 55,565 195,524
Miscellaneous 577,145 7,157 1.176,315 1,760,617

Total revenues 86951356 28338,657 40,968,699 29,628,775 54,274 139 240,161,626

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 18,686,234 420,382 19,106,616
Judicial 7,799,232 702,433 8,501,665
Public safety 75,134,666 29,727,983 1,237,185 16,632,427 122,732,261
Public works 2,480,513 6,081,270 8,561,783
Culture and recreation 6,275,643 1,493,340 4,813,077 12,582,060
Community support 1.513,325 3,372 727 4,886,052

Total current 111.889,613 29,727,983 1,493,340 1.237,185 32,022,316 176.370,437

Capital outlay
General government 3,849 1,843,632 1,847,481
Public safety 29,240,054 1,595,121 30,835,175
Public works 13,064,578 13,064,578
Cullure and recreation 39,559,209 39,559,209
Community support 2,076,339 2076.339

Total capital outlay 3,849 39,559,209 29,240,054 18,579,670 87,382,782

Debt service
Principal payments 5,928,600 5,928,600
Interest and fiscal charges 3,246,669 3,246,669

Total debt service 9.175,269 9,175,269

Total expenditures 111,893,462 29727983 41,052,549 30,477,239 59,777.255 272.928,488

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER
EXPENDITURES (24,942,106) (1.389,326) (83,850) (848,464) (5,503,116) (32,766,862)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 115,151 23,556 42,609 181,316
Transfers in 31,822,119 590,402 424,000 1,660,000 11,926,515 46,423,036
Transfers out (6,896,562) (1,323,941) (9,828,576) (18,049,079)

Total other financing sources (uses) 25,040,708 (709983) 424,000 1,660,000 2,140,548 28,555,273

See notes to basic financial statements.
(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES A D CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Special Revenue
Fund Capital Projects Funds

Parks and Aggregate Other Total
Public Safety Recreation Public Safety Governmental Governmental

General Fund Tax Projects Projects Funds Funds

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 98.602 (2.099.309) 340.150 811.536 (3.362.568) (4.211.589)

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR,
AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 9,180,610 4,087,849 1,259,932 7,228,530 65,459,780 87,216,701

Adjustment 59.732 179.990 2.470.235 2.709957
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR,

AS ADJUSTED 9.240.342 4.267.839 1.259.932 7.228.530 67,930.015 89.926.658

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 9.338.944 $ 2.168.530 $ 1.600.082 $ 8.040.066 $ 64.567.447 $ 85.715.069

See notes 10 basic financial statements.
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CITY OF ORTH LAS VEGAS

RECONCILATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPE OITURES
A '0 CHANGES IN F NO BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR E 'OED J E 30, 2013

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES. GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost
of capital assets is capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives:

Expenditures for capital assets S
Less current year depreciation
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets

Revenues in the statement of activities, which do not provide current financial resources are not reported as
revenues in governmental funds:

Capital asset contributions
Change in unavailable revenue

93,375,899
(39.512.734)

(I7.53D

6,946,615
(329.327)

S (4,211,589)

53,845,628

6,617,288

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds. but issuing debt increases
liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces liabilities in the statement of net postition. This is the amount by which
repayments exceeded debt issued

Debt principal repayments

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use ofcurrent financial resources;
and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

Change in compensated absences payable
Amortization of debt premiums and discounts
Amortization of deferred refunding charges
Change in accrued interest

Internal service funds are used by managment to charge the costs ofcertain activities to individual funds:
Internal service fund change in net position included in governmental activities in the statement of

activities
The internal service funds change in net position related to business·type activties

CHANGE IN NET POSITION. GOVER MENTAL ACTIVITIES

See notes to basic financial statements.

5.945.251
5.945,251

818,318
195,078

(635,065)
(718.727)

(340,396)

(1,175,432)
415.136

(760.296)

S 61.095.886
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEME T or NET POSITION

JU E 30, 2013

Wastewater
Utility

Governmental
Business·type Activities Activities

Aggregate Other
Enterprise Total Enterprise Internal Service

Water Utilitv Funds Funds Funds

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash, cash equivalents and investments S 13,647.338 S 35,834,306 S 932,249 S 50,413,893 S 17,225,785
Cash, cash equivalents and investments, designated for

specific purposes 2,112,799
Accounts receivable, net 7.348,169 7,217,954 4,196 14,570,319 262,725
Prepaid items 95,728 59,196 793 155,717 171,996
Prepaid land lease, current portion. net ofamortization 500,000 500,000
Due from other funds 414,977
Duc: from other governments 99,780 99,780
Inventories 299,313 2,729,995 77,756 3,107,064 235,750
Restricted assets

Cash, cash equivalents and investments 4.969.951 2.868.177 7,838.128 1.910.874

Total current assets 26.960.279 48.709.628 1.014.994 76,684.901 22,334.906

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net ofaccumulated depreciation and

amortil.3tion
Construction in progress 14,511,672 2,407,399 67,983 16,987,054 80,030
Land 12,514,647 2,434.299 628,747 15,577,693
Buildings and building improvements 75,744,101 3,691,972 1,634,477 81,070,550 282,215
Improvements other than buildings 25,793,191 16,824,886 3,635,224 46,253,301 96,834
Infrastructure 260,428,761 91,937,178 352,365,939
Machinery, equipment and software 3,970,046 770.454 11.686 4,752,186 680,973

Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and amortization 392,962.418 118,066,188 5,978,117 517,006,723 1,140,052

Other assets
Prepaid land lease, net of current portion and

amortization 22,125,000 22,125,000
Refundable deposits 14,561,247 2.430 14,563.677

Tota) other assets 36,686,247 2.430 36,688,677

Total noncurrent assets 429,648,665 118,066.188 5,980,547 553 695.400 1.140.052

Total assets 456.608,944 166.775.816 6.995,541 630.380.301 23.474.958

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS or RESOURCES
Unamortized deferred refunding charges 59.853 59.853

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 540,308 1,301,100 141,966 1,983,374 8,147,651
Accrued salaries and benefits 261,221 424,020 10,093 695,334 295,227
Due to other funds 11,327 18,746 365 30,438 4,033
Due to other governments 1,154,369 3,772,620 4,926,989 125,720
Customer deposits 65,540 3,877,301 685 3,943,526 1,447
Uneamed revenue 1,730 31,397 33,127
Compensated absences 167,971 371,523 558 540,052 79,131
Interest payable 2,295,801 182,293 2,478,094
Bonds and notes payable 4,168,050 3,668,950 7.837,000

Total current liabilities 8,666,317 13,616.553 185.064 22.467,934 8,653,209

(Continued)
See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF ORTH LAS VEGAS

PROPRIETARY Fu 'OS
STATEMENT OF ET POSITION (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2013

Wastewater
Utility

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities

Aggregate Other
Enterprise Total Enlerprise Internal Service

Water Utility Funds Funds Funds

2,918 2,825,813 414,052
10.214,355

291,554,000
3.203,309

2,918 297,583,122 10.628,407

187.982 320.05 \,056 19.281,616

5,978,118 229,033,516 1.140.052

4.514.658
829441 76840924 3053290

6,807,559 310,389.098 S 4,193.342

(3,122,248)

S 307.266,850

878.907 1,943,988

277,396,000 14,158,000
2,690,427 512,882

280.965.334 16,614,870

289.631.651 30.231,423

123,269,189 99,786,209

4,514,658
39193446 36818037

S 166,977,293 S 136.604.246 S,=~~~

Adjustment to report the cumulative internal balance for
the net effeci of the activity between the internal service
funds and the enterprise funds over time

Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits other than pensions
Bonds and noles payable
Unamortized bond premiums

Total noncurrent liabilities

Net position of business-type activities

NETPOsrno
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for

Capital projects
Unrestricted

Total liabilities

TOlal nct position

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND eUA 'GES I 'NET POSITION

FOR TIlE YEAR E DED JUNE 30, 2013

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities

Aggregate Other
Wastewater Enterprise Total Enterprise Inlemal Service

Utilitv Water Utilitv Funds Funds Funds

OPERATING REVE UES
Utility fees S 36,178,261 S 47,108,554 S S 83,286,815 S
Construction fees 252,362 240,769 493,131
User fees 1,791,915 1,791,915
Connection fees 1,271,790 722,234 1,994,024
Other charges for services 1,758,806 1,758,806 25,385,937
Fines and forfeitures 586,592 1,463,213 2,049,805
Miscellaneous 7,303,991 796783 106,955 8,207,729

Total operating revenues 45,592,996 52,090,359 1,898,870 99,582,225 25385937

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 3,949,179 6,496,510 159,938 10,605,627 7,562,480
Employee benefits 1,594,991 2,695,633 38,509 4,329,133 2,982,821
Services and supplies 6,915,119 17,698,171 1,890,378 26,503,668 18,604,222
Depreciation and amortization 10,911,593 5,502,340 229,623 16,643,556 499,577

TOial operating expenses 23,370,882 32,392,654 2,318,448 58,081,984 29,649,100

Operating income (Joss) 22,222,114 19,697,705 (419,578) 41,500,241 (4,263,163)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 136,985 136,985 4,864
Gain on capital asset disposition 22,83'
Interest and fiscal charges (15,289,855) (757,784) (16,04 7,639)
Intergovernmental 6,504,708 6,504,708

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (8,648,162) (757,784) (9,405,946) 27,698

Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers 13,573,952 18939,921 (419.578) 32,094,295 (4,235,465)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital contributions 1.187,885 1,280,774 2,468,659

TRANSFERS
Transfers in 66,010 66,010 3,650,435
Transfers out (13,797,000) {I 7,703,000) Q1.500,000) (590,402)

Total transfers (1),797,000) {I 7,703,000) 66,010 (31,433,990) 3,060,033

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 964,837 2,517,695 ()53.568) 3,128,964 (1,175,432)

ET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY
REPORTED 173,249,699 133,394,020 7,133,467 4,899,134

AdjuSlrnent (7,237,243) 692.531 27,660 469,640

NET POSITION, BEGI ING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED 166,012,456 134,086.551 7,161.127 5,368,774

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR S 166,977.293 S 136,604,246 S 6,807,559 S 4,193,342

Adjustment for the net effect of the current year activity
betw«n the internal service funds and the enterprise
funds (415,136)

CHANGES IN NET POSITION, BUSINESS,TYPE
S 2,713,828ACTIVITIES

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

PROPRIETARY FU 'I)S

STATEMENT OF CA H FLOWS

FOR TilE YEAR E 'I)EI) JUNE 30, 2013

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities

Aggregate Olhcr
Wastewater Enterprise Total Enterprise Internal Service

Utility Waler Utility Funds Funds Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACT[VITIES
Cash received from customers S 37,342,831 S 49,673,297 S 1,895,978 S 88,912,106
Cash received from interfund services 1,758,806 1,758,806 S 26,675,426
Cash received from other souces 7,207,000 547,540 106,955 7,861,495
Cash payments for goods and services (28,928,998) (18,436,670) (1,972,450) (49,338,118) (16,050,414)
Cash payments for employee services (5,407,664) (9,086,349) (194,806) (14,688,8[9) (9,[24,323)
Cash payments for interfund services 3,825 60 3,885

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities [0,213,169 24,460,449 (164,263) 34,509.355 1.500,689

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACT[VITIES

Transfers in 66,0[0 66,010 3,650,435
Transfers out (13,797,000) (17,703000) QI,500,000) (590,402)

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities (13,797,000) (17,703,000) 66,010 (31,433990) 3060,033

CASH FLOWS FROM CAP[TAL F[NANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction ofcapital assets (4,638,612) (261,109) (4,899,721) (308,074)
Proceeds received from disposal of capital assets 33,485
Proceeds from debt issuance 7,000,000 7,000,000
Principal payments on debt (3,037,250) (3,707,750) (6,745,000)
Interest payments on debt (15,445,857) (87 [,067) (16,316,924)
Capital grants and subsidies received 6,504,708 6,504,708

Net cash provided by (used in) capital financing activities (9,6[ 7,011) (4,839,926) (14,456,937) (274,589)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACT[VITIES
Investment income received 136,985 136,985 4,864

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ANI) CASH
EQU[VALENTS (13,063,857) 1,917,523 (98,253) (11,244,587) 4,290,997

CASH AND CASH EQU[VALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 31.681,[46 36,784,960 1.030,502 69.496,608 16,958,461

CASH A D CASH EQU[VALENTS, END OF YEAR S 18,617,289 S 38,702,483 S 932,249 S 58,252,021 S 21,249.458

See notes to basic financial statements.
(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

PROPRIETARY Fu 'OS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTIN ED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Governmental
Business·rype Activities AClivities

Aggregate Other
Wastewaler Enterprise Total Enlcrprise Internal Service

_--"U"'i,,litv",--_ --,W=81"''',-,U""",;I"iIY:L Funds Funds Funds

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATI G
ACTIVITIES

Operaling income (loss) S 22.222,114 S 19,697.705 S (419.578) S 41,500,241 S (4,263,163)
Adjustments 10 reconcile operating income {loss} to net

cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciation 10,411,593 5,502,340 229,624 16,143,557 499,577
Provision for uncollectible receivables (6,590) 58,738 (5,397) 46,751 2,830
(Increase) decrease in operating assets

Accounts receivable (810,957) (4,341) 95,271 (720,027) (167,351)
Due from other governments (99,780) (99,780)
Due from other funds 1,451,696
Inventories (128,627) (42,948) (52,199) (223,774) (52,145)
Prepaid items 522,406 20,712 66 543,184 73,006
Refundable deposit (14,561,247) (2,430) (14,563,677)

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts payable (l25,228) (738,499) (27,510) (1,091,237) 2,559,668
Accrued salaries and benefits 72,858 125,832 2,958 201,648 (34,261)
Due to other funds 2,789 3,825 60 6,674 736
Due to other governments (7,149,810) (249,243) (7,399,053) (26,721)
Customer deposits 106,366 (2,857) 103,509 1,578
Unearned revenues 17,046 17,046
Compensated absences 63,648 (20,038) 683 44,293 88,572
Postemploymenl benefits other than pensions 1.366,667

Total adjustments (12.008,945) 4,762,744 255,315 (6,990,886) 5,763,852

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities S 10.213.169 S 24,460,449 S (164,263) S 34.509.355 S 1.500.689

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Contribution ofcapital assets S 1.187.884 S 1,280,773 S S 2.468.657 S

Amortization of unamortized bond premiums and
S 128.655 S 78.897 S S 207.552 Sdiscounts

See nOles 10 basic financial statements.
41



ASSETS
Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Accounts receivable, net
Interest receivable
Special assessments receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to other governments
Due to developers
Due to others

Total liabilities

NET POSITION

See notes to basic financial statcments.

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF ET POSITION

JU 'E30,2013
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINA CIAL STATEMENTS

FOR TilE YEAR ENDED JU 'E 30, 2013

Note I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entitv

The City of orth Las Vegas (the City), was incorporated in 1946 and is governed by an elecled Mayor and City
Council comprised of four members. The City is a fuJl·service city located al the northern tip of the Las Vegas vaJley.
Services provided by the City include a municipal court, public safety (police and fire), water and wastewater, highways
and streets, planning and zoning, parks and recreational facilities, libraries, community development and general
administrative services.

The financial slalements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generaJly accepted in
the United Siaies. The Governmental Accounting Siandards Board (GASB) is the accepled standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by Statement No. 39, Determining Whether
Certain Organizations are Component Units and Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, defines
the reporting entity as the primary government and those component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
primary government is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment ofa voting majority of the organization's governing
board, and either the ability of the primary government to impose ils will on the organization or the possibility thai the
organization will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary government. I.n addition to
financial accountability, component units can be other organizations in which the economic resources received or held
by that organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direci benefil of the primary government, the primary
government is entitled to or has the ability to othef\vise access a majority of the economic resources received or held by
that organization and the resources to which the primary government is entitled or has the ability to otherwise access are
significant to the primary government.

The City has complied with GASB Statements Nos. 14,39 and 61 by examining its position relative to other entities
and has determined that there are no requirements that would cause the basic financial statements of the City to be
included in any other enlities' financial reports. The North Las Vegas Redevelopment Agency (the Agency) and the
North Las Vegas Library Districi (the Library Districl) are legally separate entities for budget reporting purposes as
required by the Slate of evada (the Stale or Nevada), Department of Taxation. However, they both have substantially
the same governing body as the City and the City provides a majority of services required by the Agency and the
Library District, such as fmancial administration, human resources administration, and redevelopment planning. Based
on these factors, the Agency and Library District are considered to be blended componenl units and are reported as
special revenue funds of the City. No other entities were determined to be componenl units ofthe City.

Basic Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities and present
consolidated infonnation for the City's nonfiduciary activities. Governmental activities, which nonnally are supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on user fees and charges for support.

Included in the statement of net posilion are capilal assels and long-term liabilities, including general paymenl
obligations. revenue bonds and compensated absences. Net position is classified as I) net investment in capital assets,
2) restricted net position. or 3) unrestricted net position.

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NOTES TO BASIC FI ANCIAL STATEMENTS (CO TINUED)

FOR TilE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment
and include indirect expenses allocated to each function. Program revenues include I) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment, and 2) grants and contributions, which are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
panicular function or segment. Taxes and other revenues not restricted for use by a particular function or segment are
reported as general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds, even though the
laner are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental and proprietary
funds are reported as separate columns on the fund financial statements. Governmental fund financial statements
include a balance sheet and a statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances with schedules
presented to reconcile fund balances presented in the governmental fund financial statements to net position presented
in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary fund financial statements include a statement of net position, a
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December I, 1989, generally are followed
in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict
with or contradict guidance of the GASS. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector
guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not
to follow subsequent private-sector guidance,

Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government~wide financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary funds financial statements. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows,
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. As a general rule, the effect
of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government~wide financial statements.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 3re recognized in the accounting period in which they become both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period
or soon enough thereafler to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 90 days of fiscal year end.

The primary revenue sources, which have been treated as susceptible to accrual by the City are property taxes,
intergovernmental consolidated taxes (sales, cigarette, motor vehicle privilege and liquor taxes), gaming taxes, gasoline
taxes, grants, franchise fees and interest. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only
when the City receives payment.

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED Ju 'E 30, 2013

Expenditures generally are recorded when the liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to claims and judgments, compensated absences and postemployment
benefits other than pensions are recorded only when payment is due.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - Accounts for all financial resources not required to be accounted for in some other fund.

Public Safety Tax Special Revenue Fund - Accounts for voter-approved property tax overrides to be used
exclusively for public safety programs.

Parks and Recreation Projects Capital Projects Fund - Accounts for capital improvement expenditures associated
with the City's parks and recreation buildings and facilities.

Public Safety Projects Capital Projects Fund - Accounts for the cost of public safety projects associated with the
City's police, fire and detention facilities, as well as the installation of traffic signals in developing areas and
improvements of stenn drainage systems.

The City reports the following non-major governmental fund types:

Special Revenue Funds - Accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specific purposes.

Debt Service Funds - Accounts for the accumulation of financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned
to the repayment of debt principal and interesl.

Capital Projects Funds - Accounts for financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to the
improvement, acquisition or construction of capital assets.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services, and producing and delivering goods in connection with the
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City's proprietary funds are
charges for goods and services and other user fees. Operating expenses include the cost of goods and services,
administrative expenses, and capital asset depreciation. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reponed as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Wastewater Utility Fund - Accounts for the collection from the residents of the City and the transmission of sewage
through the system infrastructure for treatment and release into Lake Mead.

Water Utility Fund - Accounts for the delivery of water services through the system infrastructure to the residents of
the City and other service areas.

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NOTES TO BA IC FINA ClAL STATEMENTS (CONTI 'UED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013

The City reports the following non-major proprietary fund:

Municipal Golf Courses Fund - Accounts for the operations of a nine-hole par-3 golf course and an 18-hole par-72
championship course.

The City reports the following non-major proprietary fund type:

Internal Service Funds - Accounts for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to
other departments or agencies of the government and to other governmental units1 on a cost reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Fiduciary fund financial statements, comprised of a statement of net POSItion, report the City's activities that are
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of operational results. Fiduciary funds are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

The City reports the following fiduciary fund type:

Agency Funds - Accounts for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
governments or other funds.

Assets and Liabilities

Cash. Cash Equivalents and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

The City invests by individual fund in two instances, but primarily pools cash resources of all other funds in order to
facilitate the management of cash and investments. With this approach, the City is able to invest the monies at higher
interest rates and with longer maturities. With the exception of those funds that are legally required to retain interest
earnings, all interest earnings are reported in the general fund.

The proprietary funds participate in the City's internal investment management pool. This pool has the general
characteristics of a demand deposit account in that the proprietary funds may effectively withdraw amounts from the
pool at any time without prior notice or penalty. Accordingly, amounts invested in this pool by proprietary funds are
considered to be cash equivalents. Monies that are not required for immediate obligations are invested.

Investments are reported at fair value, regardless of the length of time remaining to maturity. The fair values of
investments are detennined using quotations obtained from independent published sources.

(Conlinued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NOTES TO BASIC FI A 'CIAL STATEMENTS (CONTI UED)

FOR HIE YEAR E 'DED J 'E 30, 2013

Receivables. Payables and Unavailable or Unearned Revenues

During the course of operations. numerous transactions occur bct\veen individual funds for goods provided or services
rendered. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures or expenses initially made from it that
are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
expenditures in the fund that is reimbursed. The resulting payables and receivables, which are outstanding at year end,
are referred to as due to or from other funds in the fund financial statements. Any residual balances between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are report'cd in the government-wide financial statements as internal
balances.

Upon the certification of tax rates by the State Tax Commission, the Clark County (the County) Commission levies the
tax rate for the fiscal period beginning with the succeeding July I. Effective upon the tax levy on July I each year, a
perpetual lien is recorded against the property assessed until the tax and any penalty charges and interest, which may
accrue thereon, are paid. The County Assessor assesses all real and personal property and the County Treasurer bills
and collects the City's share of property taxes. Real property taxes are due on the third Monday in August of each year
and may be paid in quarterly installments on or before the third Monday in August and first Mondays in October,
January and March. In the event of nonpayment, the County Treasurer is authorized to hold the property for hvo years,
subject to redemption upon payment of taxes, penalties and costs, together with interest from the date the taxes were due
until paid. If delinquent taxes are not paid within the two-year redemption period, the County Treasurer obtains a deed
to the property free of all encumbrances. Upon receipt of a deed, the County Treasurer may sell the property to satisfy
the tax lien. The County Treasurer remits on a monthly basis current and delinquent property tax collections to the City.

Property taxes receivable that are not expected to be collected within 90 days of year end are classified as unavailable
revenue in the fund financial statements rather than current revenue since the asset is not available to satisfy current
obligations.

Unearned revenues arise when the City receives resources before it has a legal claim to them as when property taxes
levied for the following tax year are received before year end.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

The City's inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method, with the exception of inventory held
for resale, which is valued at market. In the governmental fund financial statements, inventories are recorded as
expenditures when purchased rather than when consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both the
government-wide and fund financial statements. In the governmental fund financial statements, prepaid items are
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Restricted Assets

Cash, cash equivalents and investments related to customer deposits, unspent bond proceeds and bond retirement
(amounts accumulated to pay debt service payments over the next 12 months) are classified and reported as restricted
assets.

(Continued)
47



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

OTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIN ED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Capital Assets

Capital assets are reported in proprietary fund financial statements and in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined as those assets with an initial
cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of more than one year. All purchased capital assets are valued at
cost or estimated historical cost. Donated assets are recorded at their estimated fair value on the date donated.

The costs of nonnal maintenance and repairs that do not significantly increase the functionality of the assets or
materially extend the assets' useful lives are not capitalized.

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Vears

Buildings and building improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and software

Long-tenn Liabilities

40
15-40
tS·tOO
S-tO

In the government-wide and proprietary fund statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
statement of net position. Premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over
the life of the bonds using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method. For current and
advance refundings resulting in defeasance of debt, the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the defeased debt is deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense using the straight-line
method. which also approximates the effective interest method. Debt issuance costs are expensed in the period
incurred.

In the governmental fund financial statements. premiums, discounts and debt issuance costs are recognized in the period
they are paid or received. The face amount of debt issued and premiums received on debt issuances are reported as
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reponed as other financing uses. Debt issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned vacation, holiday and sick leave benefits that would be
paid to them upon separation from City service if not previously taken. A liability for these obligations is reported in
the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements as incurred. A liability for compensated absences is
reported in the governmental fund financial statements only to the extent it is due and payable at year end. Expenditures
for compensated absences are recognized by the applicable fund when paid.

Deferred Compensation Plans

In addition to the retirement plan disclosed in Note 4, the City offers its employees two deferred compensation plans
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The City is not required to and does not contribute to
the deferred compensation plans. The assets of these plans are held in trust outside the control of the City. Since the
assets of these plans are not considered assets of the City and are not subject to the claims of the City's general creditors,
these plans are not reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

(Conlinued)
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Postemplovrnent Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEBl

In accordance with the transition rules of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers
for Pas/employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, the City elected to apply its measurement and recognition
requirements on a prospective basis and set its beginning net OPEB obligation at zero upon adoption. The annual
OPEB cost reported in the accompanying rmancial statements is equal to the annual required contribution (ARC) of the
City, calculated by using an actuarial valuation based upon the same methods and assumptions applied in detel1Tlining
the plan's funding requirements. The net OPEB obligation at year end is detel1Tlined by adding the annual OPEB cost to
the net OPEB obligation at the beginning of the year and deducting any contributions to the plan during the year.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, a separate section is reported for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred refunding charges (the
difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the defeased debt) qualifies for reporting in
this category.

In addition to liabilities, a separate section is reported for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period
and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Revenues that are unavailable to satisfy
current obligations and property taxes received prior to the levy year qualifY for reporting in this category.

Net Position

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, net position is reported as I) net investment in capital
assets, 2) restricted, or 3) unrestricted. Net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on it are either I)
imposed by external parties (such as creditors. grantors, contributors or other governments), or 2) imposed by law
through a constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Fund Balance

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, as follows:

onspendable fund balances include items that cannot be spent. This includes amounts that are not in a spendable
fonn (for example, inventories and prepaid items) and amounts that are legally or contractually required to remain
intact, such as a pennanent fund principal balance.

Restricted fund balances have constraints placed upon the use of the resources either by an external party or
imposed by law through a constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balances can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by a resolution or
ordinance (both are considered equally binding) of the City Council, which is the City's highest level of decision­
making authority. These constraints remain binding unless removed or changed in the same manner used to create
the constraints.
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Assigned fund balances include amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to be used for a specific purpose,
but are neither restricted nor committed. Such intent should be expressed by the City Councilor appropriately
authorized officials. The City Manager and Finance Director have been authorized by the City Council in the
budget approval process to make all fund balance assignments. Constraints imposed on the use of assigned fund
balances can be removed or changed without fennal City Council action. For governmental funds, other than the
general fund, this is the classification for residual amounts that are not restricted, commined or nonspendable.

Unassigned fund balance is the classification used by the general fund for residual amounts not included in the four
categories described above.

Prioritization and Use of Available Resources

When both restricted resources and other resources (i.e., committed, assigned and unassigned) can be used for the same
purposes, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first. Furthennore, when committed, assigned and unassigned
resources can be used for the same purpose, it is the City's policy to use committed resources first, assigned second, and
unassigned last.

Use of [stimates

Timely preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates that affect reported amounts. Accordingly, these estimates may require
revision in future periods. Significant estimates include compensated absences, postemployement benefits other than
pensions and useful lives ofcapital assets.

Nole 2. Stewardship and Accountability

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City adopts annual budgets, in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS), in which annual budgets are
legally adopted by the City Council for all funds except agency funds. Budgeted revenues and appropriations for all
fund types are consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

On or before April 15, the Finance Director submits a tentative budget for the ensuing fiscal year to the City Council,
the evada Department of Taxation and the citizens through public hearings. The evada Department of Taxation
notifies the City Council of whether or not the budget is in compliance with the law and appropriate regulations. Public
hearings, at which all changes made to the tentative budget are indicated, are conducted on the third Tuesday in May.
The City Council adopts the budget prior to June I and submits it to the Nevada Department of Taxation for final
approval.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control tool during the fiscal year for all funds.
Appropriations and encumbered appropriations lapse at year end.

In accordance with the NRS, actual expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations of the various governmental
functions, excluding the debt service function, of the general, special revenue, and capital projects funds. Pursuant to
NRS 354.626, expenditures in excess of budgeted appropriations are allowed for bond repayments, medium-term
obligation repayments, and other long-term contracts expressly authorized by law. The sum of operating and
nonoperating expenses in proprietary funds also may not exceed total appropriations.
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Per the NRS, the City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between functions if the City Council is
notified at the next regular meeting and the action is noted in the official minutes. Amendments. which affect the total
fund appropriations or transfers between funds, are accomplished through formal City Council approval. Amendments
to the adopted budget are made a matter of public record by actions of the City Council. The budgets reflected in the
accompanying financial statements have been amended in accordance with the NRS.

Prior Period Adjustment

Fund balance or net posilion as of July 1,2012, has been retroactively adjusted as follows:

Public Safety Aggregate Other Wastewater
Tax Special Governmental Utility Water Utility

General Fund Revenue Fund Funds Enterprise Fund Enterprise Fund

Fund balance or net position, as
previously reponed S 9.180.610 S 4.081.849 S 65.459.180 S 113.249.699 S 133,394,020

Adjustments
Cumulative effect of

adopting GASB
Statement No. 65 (2,516,196) (226,145)

Propcny held for resale
thai was expensed in
a prior year 2,385,130

Merge an agency fund
into an internal
service fund

Record previously
recognized uneamed
revenue

Record previously
unrecorded
delinquent property
taxes receivable 221,518 695,015 342,691

Record previously
unrecorded
unavalable revenue (161,186) (515,085) (258,186)

Correct prior year
depreciation expense (4.661,041) 919,216

Total adjustments 59.132 119,990 2,410.235 (1,231,243) 692,531

Fund balance or net position, as
S 9.240.342 S 4,261839 S 61,930,015 S 166,012.456 S 134.086.55 Iadjusted
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Aggregate Other Internal Service Governmental Business-type
Enterprise Funds Funds Activities Activities

Fund balance or nct position, as
previously reported s 7,133.467 S 4,899,134 S 1,111,591,619 S 311.070074

Adjustments
Cumulative effect of

adopting GASB
Statement No. 6S

Property held for resale
that was expensed in
a prior year

Merge an agency fund
into an internal
service fund

Record previously
recognized unearned
revenue

Record previously
unrecorded
delinquent property
taxes receivable

Record previously
unrecorded
unavalable revenue

Correct prior year
depreciation expense

Total adjustments

27,660

27,660

313,320

156,320

469,640

(1,542,584)

2,385,730

313,320

(1,787,422)

1,259,284

(7,857,692)

(7,229,364)

(2,802,941)

(3,714,111)

(6,511,052)

Fund balance or net position, as
adjusted

New Accounting Pronouncements

s 7,161,127 S 5,368,774 S I 104,362,255 S 304.553,022

In March 2012, the GASB issued Stalement No, 66, Technical Corrections-2012, effective for periods beginning after
Decemher 15,2012, The ohjective of this statemem is to improve accounting and financial reponing by Slale and local
governmental entities by resolving connicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of t\VQ pronouncements
(Statements No, 54, FlInd Balance Reporting and Governmental FlInd Type Definitions, and No, 62, Codification of
Accollnting and Financial Reporting GlIidance Contained in Pre-November 30, /989 FASB and A/CPA
Pronouncements). Management has completed its assessment of this statement and determined that it will nOl have a
material effect on the City's net position, results of operations or cash flows.

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No, 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 20 I3, The ohjective of !his statemenl is to improve financial reponing by state and local
governmental pension plans. This statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing
standards of accounting and fmancial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful information,
supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. This statement
replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and o. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are
administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements (hereafter jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certain criteria.
Management has completed its assessment of this statement and determined that it will not have a material effect on the
City's net position, results of operations or cash flows.
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In June 2012, the GASH issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Pensions - An Amendment
a/GASH Statement No. 27, effective for periods beginning after June 15,2014. The objective of this statement is to
improve accounting and fmancial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also improves infonnation
provided by state and local governmental employers aboul financial suppon for pensions that is provided by other
entities. This statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting
and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful infonnation, supporting assessments of
accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. This statement replaces the requirements of
Statement No. 27, Accounting/or Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, as well as the requirements of
Statement o. 50, Pension Disclosures. as they relate to pensions that are provided through pension plans administered
as trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. Management has not yet completed its assessment of this
statement.

In January 2013, the GASH issued Statement No, 69, Government Combinations and Disposals 0/ Government
Operations, effective for periods beginning after December IS, 2013. The objective of this statement is to improve
financial reporting by addressing accounting and financial reporting for government combinations and disposals of
government operations. The tenn government combinations is used in this statement to refer to a variety of
arrangements including mergers and acquisitions. Government combinations also include transfers of operations that do
not constitute entire legally separate entities and in which no significant consideration is exchanged. Transfers of
operations may be present in shared service arrangements, reorganizations, redistricting, annexations, and arrangements
in which an operation is transferred to a new government created to provide those services. Management has not yet
completed its assessment of this statement.

In April 2013, the GASH issued Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Nonexchonge Financiol
Guarantees, effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2013. The objective of this statement is to improve
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments that extend and receive nonexchange financial
guarantees and to enhance comparability of financial statements among such governments by requiring consistent
reporting by those governments. This statement also will enhance the infoffilation disclosed about a government's
obligations and risk exposure from extending nonexchange financial guarantees. This statement also will augment the
ability of financial statement users to assess the probability that governments will repay obligation holders by requiring
disclosures about obligations that are issued with this type of financial guarantee. Management has completed its
assessment of this statement and detennined that it will not have a material effect on the City's net position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Note 3. Detailed otes on all Funds

Cash. Cash Equivalents and Investments

At June 30, 2013, the City's cash, cash equivalents and investments (including restricted and designated amounts) were
as follows:

Pooled cash on deposit and investments
Cash on hand

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments

(Continued)

S 166,755,140
41.607

S 166,796,747
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At June 30. 2013, total cash. cash equivalents and investments were presented in the City's financial statements as
follows:

Unrestricted Restricted Designated Total

Governmental activities S 90,787,190 S 1,910,874 S 2,112,799 S 94,810,863
Business-type activities 50,413,893 7,838,128 58,252,021
Fiduciary Funds 13,733,863 13,733863

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments S 141,201,083 S 23,482,865 S 2112799 S 166,796,747

The City manages its investment portfolio in compliance with the NRS and its adopted Cash and Investment Financial
Policy, Pursuant to NRS 355,170, permitted investments include obligations of the U,S, Treasury and agencies, not to
exceed 10 years to maturity; negotiable certificates of deposit issued by insured financial institutions, notes or short­
term negotiable bonds issued by other Nevada local governments; bankers' acceptances eligible for rediscount with the
Federal Reserve Bank that do not exceed 180 days in maturity and 20% of total investments; commercial paper having
an A-I rating or equivalent, not to exceed 270 days to maturity and 20% of total investment; and money market mutual
funds invested only in federal government agency securities with an AAA rating or equivalent or in repurchase
agreements fully collateralized by such securities, Additionally, the City is permined to purchase for investment the
following securities, with certain limitations: notes, bonds and obligations issued by corporations, collateralized
mortgage obligations and asset-backed securities.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of
short·tenn and long-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is
maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for
daily operations,

At June 30, 2013, the City had the following investment types and maturities:

Reponed
Amount

(Fair Value)

Investment Maturities
(In Years)

Less Than One One to Four

u.s. Treasury securities
U.S. government-sponsored securities
Money market mutual funds
Local government investment pool

Total investments

Credit Risk

S

S

74,193,909 S 11,719,848 S 62,474,061
45,231,205 14,047,355
14,930,941 14,930,941
30,049,673 30,049,673

164,405,728 S 70,747,817 S 62,474,061

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.
One of the ways that the City manages its credit risk is by purchasing investment securities that are rated AAA.

On August 5, 2011, the credit rating on all investments in U,S, government securities was lowered from AAA to AA+
by Standard & Poor's,

(Continued)
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At June 30, 2013, the credit rating for each investment type was as follows:

U.S. Treasury securities
U.S. government-sponsored securities
Money market mUlUai funds
Local government investment pool

Total investments

Reported
Amount AAA '" Not Required

(Fair Value) AM to be Rated Unrated

S 74.193.909 S S 74,193.909 S
45.231.205 45,231,205
14.930.941 14.930.941
30,049.673 30,049,673

S 164,405.728 S 60,162.146 S 74.193.909 S 30.049.673

Custodial Credit Risk

For deposits, this is the risk that in the event ora bank failure, the entity's deposits may not be returned to it. Pursuant to
NRS 356,005, local governments may deposit public money in any insured state or national bank, in any insured credit
union or in any insured savings and loan association; however, the NRS does not specifically require collateral for
demand deposits, The City's demand deposits were covered at year end by the Federal Depository Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 for each financial inslilulion with which lhe City has demand deposil accounts.

At June 30, 2013,the City's cash deposits in financial instilutions was $2,358,343, The City participates in a collateral
pool for public deposits program adminiSiered by the State Treasurer. The program serves as an alternative method to
allow financial institutions and local government agencies within the State to participate in a pooled collateralization of
their deposits in an efficient and cost effective manner. The program provides for centralized reporting, processing and
management of all pledged collateral through the State Treasurer's Office. The State Treasurer requires that acceptable
securities pledged as collateral be maintained at 102% of those entities' deposits participating in the pool and lhatthe
pledged securities be held by a third party for the benefit of the State Treasurer. As such, at year end the FDIC covered
$250,000 and the remaining $2,108,343 was secured by the State Treasurer's pooled collateral program at 102%.

For investments, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the City will not be
able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of the outside party.

At June 30, 2013, the City's individual investments in U.S. Treasuries, U.S. government-sponsored securities and
federal agencies were held in the City's name either by the City's contracted external investment manager or the
counterparty to the transaction's trust department.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is me risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City's investment in a single issuer of
securities.

Investments in anyone investment type that represent 5% or more of total investments at June 30, 2013, were as
follows:

Percentage of
Portfolio

U.S. Treasury securities
U.S. government-sponsored securities
Money market mutual funds
Local government investment pool

(Continued)

45.13 %
27.SI %
9.08 %

18.28 %
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Capital Assets

For the year ended June 30, 2013, capital asset aClivity was as foliows:

Govemmenlal activities
Capital assets not being depreciated or amortized

Construction in progress
Land

Total capital assets not being depreciated or amol1.ized

Capital assets being depreciated or amortized
Buildings and building improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and software

Total capital assets being depreciated or amortized

Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Buildings and building improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and software

Total accumulated depreciation and amortization

Total capital assets being depreciated or amortized, net

Total governmental activities

• Includes transfers from and to proprietary funds, if any.

Business-type activities
Capital assets not being depreciated or amortized

Construction in progress
Land

Total capital assets not being depreciated or amortized

Capital assets being depreciated or amortized
Buildings and building improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and software

Total capital assets being depreciated or amortized

Balance Increases and Decreases and Balance
July I, 2012 transfers - transfers • June 30. 2013
(Restated)

$ 164,562,444 $ 82,479,986 $ (10,748,461)$ 236,293,969
183,012,628 7,404,032 (27,687) 190,388,973

347,575,072 89,884,018 (10,776,148) 426,682,942

207,777,546 7,090,543 2 I4,868,089
79,044,731 40,080 79,084,81 I

883,529,449 13,000,866 896,530,3 I5
66,989,674 1,391,229 (563,118) 67,817,785

1,237,341,400 21,522,718 (563, I 18) 1,258,301,000

(31,217,223) (5,346,483) (36,563,706)
(21,907,732) (2,710,752) (24,618,484)

(268,328,075) (28,933,082) (297,261,157)
(56,956,206) (3,022,356) 535,292 (59,443,270)

(378,409,236) (40,012,673) 535,292 (4 I7,886,6 I7)

858,932,164 (18,489,955) (27,826) 840,414,383

$ 1,206,507236 S 71.394063 S (10,803,974) $ 1,267,097,325

S 12,391,251 S 4,595,803 $ $ 16,987,054
15,577,693 15,577,693

27,968,944 4,595,803 32,564,747

8,536,226 78,519,380 87,055,606
40,266,848 26,790,648 67,057,496

575,822,738 207,589,887 (314,323,320) 469,089,305
5,816,616 4,601,446 (405,464) 10,012,598

630,442,428 317,501,361 (314,728,784) 633,215,005
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Balance Increases and Decreases and Balance
July I, 2012 transfcrs • uansfers • June 30. 2013
(Restated)

Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Buildings and building improvements $ (2,577,5 II) $ (3,407,545) $ $ (5,985,056)
Improvements other than buildings (18,549,246) (2,254,949) (20,804,195)
Infrastructure (107,049,471) (17,330,044) 7,656,149 (116,723,366)
Machinery, equipment and software (4,453,242) (963,338) 156,168 (5,260,412)

Total accumulated depreciation and amortization (132,629,470) (23,955,876) 7,812,317 (148,773,029)

TOlal capital assets being depreciated or amortized, net 497,812,958 293,545,485 (306,916,467) 484,441,976

Total business-type activities S 525,781,902 S 298,141.288 $ (306,916,467) S 517,006,723

• Includes transfers from and to governmental funds. ifany.

For the year ended June 30, 2013, charges, by function, for depreciation expense were as follows:

Governmental activities
General government
Judicial
Public safct)'
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community suppon
Internal service fund depreciation expense is charged to

specific functions based on asset usage

Total depreciation expense, governmental activities

BusinesHype activities
Wastewater
Water
Municipal golf courses

Total depreciation expense, business-type activities

Due To and From Other Funds

$ 30,519,317
38,164

2,959,561
4,492,318
1,471,487

34,887

499.577

$ 40,015.311

$ 10,411 ,593
5,502,340

229,623

$ 16,143.556

During the course of operations, numerous reimbursable transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered, At June 30, 2013, the resulting payables and receivables (reported as due to and from
olher funds) resulling from the time lag belween the dales that reimbursable transactions occur and payments between
funds are made, were as follows:

Receivable Payable

General Fund S $ 253,292
Public Safety Tax Special Revenue Fund 70,892
Aggregate Other Governmental Funds 56,321
Wastewater Utility Enterprise Fund 11,327
Water Utility Enterprise Fund 18,746
Aggregate Other Enterprise Funds 365
Internal Service Funds 414,977 4,034

S 414,977 S 414,977
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Interfund Transfers

Transfers of unrestricted revenues collected in various funds are used to finance various programs and expenditures
accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorization. For the year ended June 30, 2013, interfund
transfers were as follows:

Transfer In Fund Transfer Out Fund Amount

General Fund Aggregate Other Governmental Funds S 322,119
Wastewater Utility Enterprise Fund 13,797,000
Water Utility Enterprise Fund 17,703,000

Public Safety Tax Special Revenue Fund Intema! Service: Funds 590,402
Parks and Recreation Projects Capital

Projects Fund Aggregate Other Governmental Funds 424,000
Public Safety Projects Capital Projects Fund Aggregate Other Governmental Funds 1,660,000
Aggregate Other Governmental Funds General Fund 4,634,095

Public Safety Tax Special Revenue Fund 590,402
Aggregate: Other Governmental Funds 6,702,018

Aggregate Other Enterprise Funds General Fund 66,010
Internal Service Funds General Fund 2,196,457

Public Safety Tax Special Revenue Fund 733.539
Aggregate Other Govemmental Funds 720,439

S 50.139.481

During fiscal year 2013, the City transferred approximately $3 I.5 million from the wastewater and water utility
enterprise funds to the general fund as payment in lieu of taxes, franchise fees and general overhead charges. During
the 76th legislative session in 2011, Nevada Assembly Bill 471, amending NRS 354.613, was passed. This new law
requires municipalities making such transfers to eliminate any amounts in excess ofactual costs by 2021.

Depending on the timing and amounts of these reductions in transfers required to support general fund operations, the
City may fall below the statutory minimum operating fund balance of 4% and be required to enter into supervised fiscal
receivership by the Nevada Department ofTaxation under RS 354.685,

Long-term Liabilities

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds; accordingly, long-term liabilities for these funds are
included in the following table as part of governmental activities.

Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Governmental activities

General obligation bonds

$4,915,000 2002 Street Improvement
refunding bonds due in annual
installments through May 2014;
interest varies bel\\'een3.7% and 4.5% s

Balance
July 1,2012

935,000 S

(Continued)

Increases

S

Decreases

(570,000) S

Balance
June 30. 2013

365,000 S

Due Within
One Year

365,000
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Balance
July 1. 2012 Increases Decreases

Balance
June 30. 2013

Due Within
One Year

S32,500,000 2003 JudiciallPublie Safety
Facilities bonds due in annual
installments through March 2023;
interest varies between 3% and 5% S 8,410,000 S S (1,555,000) S 6,855,000 S

SI05,ooo,ooo 2006 Civic Center
Facilities bonds due in annual
installments through May 2036;
interest varies between 4.25% and 5% 98,390,000 (1,255,000) 97,135,000 1,315,000

S7,630,OOO 2007A JudiciaUPublic Safety
Facilities refunding bonds due in
annual installments beginning May
2017 through May 2023; interest is at
4.15% 7,630,000 7,630,000

$1,530,00020078 Street Improvement
refunding bonds due in annual
installments through June 2015;
interest varies between 3.76% and
4.02% 715,000 (228,000) 487,000 240,000

53,145,0002010 Library DiSiricl
medium·tenn refunding bonds due in
annual installments through April
2020; interest is at 4.38% 3,145,000 (335,000) 2,810,000 350,000

S17,090,OOO 2010 Building Projects
medium-term refunding bonds due in
annual installments beginning July
2013 through July 2020; interest is at
4.18% 17,090,000 17,090,000 1,000,000

S27.070,000 2011 Building Projects
refunding bonds due in annual
installments beginning June 2016
through June 2036; interest varies
between 3% and 5% 27,070,000 27.070,000

Total general obligation bonds 163.385,000 (3.943,000) 159.442.000 3,270,000

Special assessment bonds

SI,289,100 2003 SIAD No. 59 (Cra;g
Road Phase II) improvement bonds due
in semi-annual installments through
December 2013; interest is at 4% 38,300 (20,700) 17,600 17,600

S3,250,OOO 2007 SIAD No. 61 (Ann
Road) improvement bonds due in
semi-annual installments through
March 2017; interest is a13.82gelo 1,774,500 (598,500) 1,176,000 281,200

SI,250,ooo 2007 SIAD No. 62 (Clayton
Street) improvement bonds due in
semi-annual installments through
March 2017; interest is at 3.829% 682,500 (126,400) 556,100 131,200
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Balance Balance Due Within
July 1.2012 Increases Decreases June 30. 2013 One Year

SI2,680,000 2007 SIAD No. 63 (Lamb
Blvd.) improvement bonds due in
semi-annual installments through May
2017; interest varies betw~n 3.4% and
4% S 8.220.000 S S (1.240 000) S 6980.000 S 1.290,000

Total special assessment bonds 10.715.300 (1.985.600) 8.729.700 1.720.000

Capital leases

S59,943 2010 Capilallease due in
monthly installments through April
2013 16.651 (16,651)

Total capital leases 16.651 (16.651)

Unamortized bond premiums 3,142,374 (216,964) 2,925,410

Unamortized bond discounts (313,517) 21,886 (291,631)

Unamortized deferred refunding charges (15,188,647) 635,066 (14,553,581)

Compensated absences 36,901,175 16,186,168 (16,915,910) 36,171,433 5,803,700

Postemployment benefits other than pensions 8.847.688 2.252.706 (886.042) 10.214.352

Total governmental activities 207506.024 18.438.874 (23.307.215) 202.637.683 10.793,700

Business-type activities

General obligation/pledged revenue bonds

S704.OOO 2003A WaterlWastewater
general obligation refunding revenue
bonds due in installments through
Oclober 2012; interest is at 4.1 5% 198,000 (198,000)

S8,685,OOO 20038 Waler general
obligation refunding revenue bonds
due in annual installments through
November 20 I5; interest varies
betwet'n 3% and 5% 1,970,000 (525,000) 1,445,000 545,000

SI4,365,ooo 2oo5A WaterlWastewater
general obligation refunding revenue
bonds due in annual installments
through December 2017; interest is at
5% 9,195,000 (1,465,000) 7,730,000 1,540,000

SIO,030,ooo 20058 WalerIWastewater
general obligation refunding revenue
bonds due in annual installments
lhrough August 20 I9; interest varies
between 3.25% and 4% 8,325,000 (900,000) 7,425,000 935,000
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Balance Balance Due Within
July 1.2012 Increases Decreases June 3D. 2013 One Year

$140,000,0002006 General obligation
Wastewater reclamation system bonds
due in annual installments through
October 2036; interest varies between
4% and 5% S 132,030,000 S S (2,885,000) S 129,145.000 S 3,010.000

55,713,000 2007 WaterlWastewater
general obligation refunding revenue
bonds due in annual installments
through September 2014; interest is at
3.885% 2,418,000 (772.000) 1.646,000 807,000

5145,000,000 2010A WaterlWastewater
improvement bonds (Build America
Bonds) due in annual installments
beginning June 201 5 through June
2040; interest varies betwC(:n 4.13%
and 6.572% 145.000 000 145.000.000

Total general obligation/pledged revenue
bonds 299.136.000 (6.745.000) 292.391.000 6.837.000

Notes payable

57,000,000 medium-term financing due
in quarterly installments through July
2022; interest is at 2% beginning April
2015 7,000,000 7,000,000 1,000.000

Total notes payable 7,000,000 7.000.000 1,000,000

Unamortized bond premiums 3.462.518 (259,208) 3,203.310

Unamortized bond discounts (355) 355

Compensated absences 3.321,572 1.577.149 (1,532.856) 3.365.865 540,052

Total business·type activities 305.919.735 8,577,149 (8,536,709) 305,960,175 8,377,052

Total long-term liabilities S 513,425,759 S 27,016,023 S (J 1.843,924) S 508 597 858 S 19170.752

Compensated absences and postemployment benefits other than pensions are liquidated 1hrough the self-insurance
reserve internal service fund, which is funded by assessing a flat percentage to each fund based on the fund's gross
salaries. plus a flat fee for each employee for health insurance.
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AI June 30, 2013, annual debl service requirements 10 maturity were as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30. Principal Interest

Governmental activities

General obligation bonds
2014 S 3.270.000 S 2,714,260
2015 3.997.000 7.387.785
2016 2.695.000 7.207.302
2017 2.870,000 7,094,464
2018 7,320,000 6,974,095
2019 - 2023 35,530,000 29,987.360
2024 - 2028 32,730,000 22,634.925
2029 - 2033 41,100,000 13.844.225
2034 - 2038 29,930,000 3,041,750

Total general obligation bonds 159,442,000 100,886,166

Special assessment bonds
2014 1.720,000 312,475
2015 1.760,700 243,655
2016 1.839,700 172,571
2017 1.904,300 99,460
2018 1,505,000 29,159

Total special assessment bonds 8,729,700 857,320

Total governmental activities S 168,171,700 $ 101 ,743.486

Business-type activities

General obligation/pledged revenue bonds
2014 $ 6,837,000 $ 16.029.67$
2015 7,109,000 15,720.277
2016 6,445,000 15.396.875
2017 6,580,000 15.090.837
2018 6.880.000 14.784.896
2019 - 2023 39,110.000 68,580.574
2024 - 2028 48.705,000 56.970.951
2029·2033 60,810.000 42,056,435
2034 - 2038 75.320.000 24,115,812
2039 - 2043 34,595,000 3,434,199

Total general obligation/pledged revenue bonds 292,391,000 272 180 531

Notes payable
2014 1.000.000
2015 1.000.000
2016 654.875 95,125
2017 668.072 81,928
2018 681.533 68,467
2019 - 2023 2,995,520 134,379

Total notes payable 7,000,000 379,899

Total business-type activities S 299,391,000 S 272,560.430
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New Debt Obligations

On November 7, 2012, the City Council approved an interlocal agreement in senlement of an ongoing dispute with
Clark County regarding the discharge of emuent from the City's wastewater treatment facility into the Sloan Channel,
which is owned by the County. This obligation is interest-free through April 1,2015, and accrues interest thereafter at
2%. Under this agreement, the City is required to pay Clark County the total sum of$15,OOO,OOO as follows:

$8,000,000 immediately payable upon execution of the agreement.

$7,000,000 to be paid in quarterly installments beginning July 1,2013 through July 1,2022.

Component Unit Debt

In 2008, the City and the Library District entered into a cooperative agreement under which the City would design,
construct and equip a library facility and the Library District would reimburse the City $9,500,000, plus interest at 5%,
for its costs by making annual interfund tranfers through January 2019. Since actual costs to design, construct and
equip the library were completed under budget by $2,500,000, the total to be reimbursed by the Library District to the
City is $7,000,000.

Defeased Debt

In prior years, the City defeased certain long-term bond obligations by placing the proceeds of new bonds in irrevocable
trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the defeased bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and
liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the City's financial statements.

At June 30, 2013, $2,885,000 ofdefeased debt remained outstanding.

Debt Covenants and Legal Debt Margin

Certain long-tenn liabilities are subject to restrictive debt covenants and the amount of long-tenn general obligation
debt that can be incurred by the City is limited by the NRS. Management believes the City to be in compliance with all
applicable limitations and restrictions.

Arbitrage Rebate Requirement

The Federal Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposes a rebate requirement with respect to certain long-term debt obligations.
Under this Act) an arbitrage amount may be required to be rebated to the United States Treasury for interest on the
bonds to qualitY for exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Rebatable arbitrage is computed as
of each installment computation date. The arbitrage rebate calculation as of the most recent such date indicates that no
amount is due. Future calculations might result in adjustments to this determination.

(Continued)
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Special Assessment Debt

The City has issued various special assessments bonds, the proceeds of which have been used to fund specific
infrastructure improvements, These bonds do not constitute debt of the City within the meaning of any constitutional or
statutory provision or limitation, are not considered a general obligation of the City, and are considered special
obligations payable solely from assessments levied in the special assessment districts. Furthermore, the City is not
secondarily liable in the case of payment deficiencies. The City uses a fiduciary (agency) fund to account for special
assessment revenue collections and repayment of the related debt.

Outstanding special assessment debt obligations accounted for in a fiduciary (agency) fund at June 30, 2013, were as
follows:

1994 Special Assessment District 54 (Civic
Center Drive Development)

2006 Special Assessmenl Dislrict60 (Aliante
Development)

Balance
Maturity Date Interest Rate Original Amount June 30. 2013

May I. 1994-
February I, 2014 7.75% S 2,961,790 S 155,000

May31,2006-
December 1,

2022 3.815% - 5.1% 42.180.000 22.840,000

S 45,141.790 S 22.995,000

Segment Information

The City has issued long-term debt (in some cases revenue supported) to finance the improvement, acquisition or
construction of wastewater and water utility system capital assets. This debt has historically been paid from the
revenues of the City's wastewater and water utility funds. The financial position, results of operations and cash flows of
these enterprise funds are presented separately in the accompanying proprietary fund financial statements and no
additional segment infonnation disclosure is considered necessary.

Note 4. Other Information

Construction and Other Commitments

The City has active construction projects as of June 30, 2013. These projects include public safety projects associated
with the installation of or upgrade to traffic signals in developing areas; the design, acquisition, construction and
improvements of and to various streets and roadways within the City limits; capital improvements associated with parks
and recreation buildings and facilities; flood control projects and improvements and general government capital
improvement projects.

(Continued)
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At June 30, 2013 the City's construction and other significant commitments were as follows:

Parks and Recreation Projects
Public Safely Projects
Civic Center Facilities
Capital Projects Slrcct Improvements
General Government Improvements

Remaining
Commitment

S 10,971,665
10,000,714
6,613,144
3,831,570
1,137.079

S 32.554.172

Litigation

In the ordinary course of its operations, claims are filed against the City including, but not limited to those arising ITom
alleged improper aClions by employees, police actions and negligence. City management intends to vigorously defend
each claim and, although, total damages claimed are substantial, believes that most of these claims will settle for
substantially less than the claimed amount, may be partially offset by payments ITom the City's liability insurance
policies, as discussed below under "Risk Management," and will not result in any material adverse future effect on the
City's financial position, results of operation, or cash flows.

The City does not accrue for estimated future legal and defense costs, if any, to be incurred in connection with
outstanding or threatened litigation and other disputed matters but rather, records such as period costs when the services
are rendered.

Risk Management

The City's operating activities are concentrated in the Las Vegas. evada metropolitan area; and therefore. realization
of the City's receivables and its future operations could be affected by an adverse change in the economic conditions in
the area.

Over the last few years, the United States has experienced a widespread decline in residential real estate sales, mortgage
lending and related construction activity, high unemployment, as well as weakness in the commercial and investment
banking systems, which has had, and is likely to continue to have, far-reaching effects on the economic activity in the
country. The near- and long-term impact of these factors on the Southern Nevada economy and the City's operating
activities cannot be predicted at this time but may be substantial.

The City's cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions are often in excess of federally-insured limits,
and the risk of losses related to such concentrations may increase as a result of the economic conditions discussed in the
preceding paragraph. The extent of a future loss to be sustained as a result of uninsured deposits in the event of a future
failure of a financial institution, if any. however, is not subject to estimation at this time.

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. For these and other risks, the City established the self·insurance
internal service fund and purchases commercial insurance coverage for claims in excess of the coverage provided by the
self· insurance internal service fund and for other insurable risks of loss. Settled claims have not exceeded this
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

(Conlinued)
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Self-insurance Internal Service Fund

The City reports activity related to liability insurance, workers' compensation and postemployment benefits other than
pensions in the self-insurance internal service fund.

Liability insurance - The City maintains its self-insurance fund to cover all liability and property damage claims
made or occurring prior to securing its excess liability policy. NRS 41.035 caps the City's tort liability at $50,000
per claim for causes of action that occurred on or before September 30, 2007, $75,000 per claim for causes of action
that occurred on or after October 1,2007, and $100,000 per claim for causes of action that occurred on or after
October 1,2011. These caps do not apply to civil rights claims against the City in either State or Federal courts.

Workers' compensation - The City maintains a self-insurance fund related to workers' compensation claims. Self­
insurance is in effect up to an individual stop-loss amount of $2,000,000 per claim for all employees. Coverage
from private insurers is maintained for losses in excess of the stop-loss amount up to $1,000,000 per accident.

Postemployment benefits other than pensions . [neludes all activity for unemployment compensation,
postemployment benefits other than pensions and employee separation leave benefits. The City reimburses the State
for the actual costs of unemployment compensation claims on a quarterly basis. Earned but unused leave benefits
are distributed to employees at separation from City employment. Postemployment benefits other than pensions
liabilities and payments are based on an actuarial valuation (see additional detailed infonnation in the
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) section below).

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2012 and 2013, changes in claims liability amounts were as follows:

Claims Liability, Claims Incurrcd Claims Liability,
Beginning and Changes in Claims Ending

Balance Estimate Paid Balance

For the year ended June 30, 2011
Liability insurance S 1,808,787 S 858,621 S (857,301) S 1,810,107
Worker's compensation 2,122,492 2,834,630 (1,288,489) 3,668,633
Postemployment benefits other than pensions 5,726,029 1,468,288 7,194,317
Unemployment compensation and employee

separation leave benefits 11,445,286 (11.445,286)

S 9 657.308 S 16,606,825 S (13.591.076) $ 12,673.057

For the year ended June 30, 2012
Liability insurance $ 1,810,107 $ (1,324,768) S (92,909) $ 392,430
Worker's compensation 3,668,633 2,355,888 (1,833,270) 4,t91,251
Postemployment benefits other than pensions 7,194,317 1,653,372 8,847,689
Unemployment compensation and employee

separation leave benefits 4.703.804 (4,703.804)

$ 12.673.057 S 7.388.296 $ (6,629,983) $ 13.431,370

For the year ended June 30, 2013
Liability insurance $ 392,430 $ 1,656,494 $ (1,651,810)$ 397,114
Worker's compensation 4,191,251 4,385,473 (2,120,178) 6,456,546
Postcmployment benefits other than pensions 8,847,689 1,366,666 10,214,355
Unemployment compensation and employee

separation leave benefits 6,706,739 (6,706,739)

$ 13,431,370 $ 14115.372 S (10,478,727) S 17068015
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The City's employees and elected employees are covered by the State's Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS).
PERS was established on July I, 1949, by the State Legislature and is governed by the Public Employees Retirement
Board whose seven members are appointed by the Governor. All public employees who meet certain eligibility
requirements participate in PERS, which is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plan. Benefits to which
participants in PERS may be entitled include pension, disability, and death benefits.

The City does not exercise any control over PERS. NRS 286.110 states, "respective participating public employers are
not liable for any obligation of the system." PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplemental information. This report may be obtained by writing to PERS at 693 West Nye
Lane, Carson City, Nevada 89703-1599 or by calling (775) 687-4200.

Retirement benefits, as required by NRS, are determined by the number of years of accredited service at the time of
retirement and are equal to 2.67% of the participant's highest average compensation in any 36 consecutive months for
each year of credited service up to a maximum of90% if hired before July I, 1985, and a maximum of 75% if hired on
or after that date. Police or fire employees who retire at age 65 with five years of service, at age 55 with 10 years of
service, at age 50 with 20 years of service or at any age with 30 years of service and all other employees who retire at
age 65, with at least five years of credited service, at age 60 with at least 10 years of credited service, or at any age with
30 years of credited service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life. Vested employees who have
the necessary years of credited service, but have not reached the required age, may retire at any age with a benefit
reduction for each year the member is under the appropriate retirement age.

Contribution rates are established by the NRS, which are tied to the increase in taxable sales within the State each year
and provide for yearly increases until such time as the actuarially determined unfunded liability of PERS is reduced to
zero. The City is obligated to contribute all amounts due under PERS. The City's contributions to PERS were as
follows:

Contribution rates and amounts contributed, including $2,216,912 payable to PERS at June 30, 2013, were as follows:

Contribution Rate

For the Year Ended June 30,
Police and Fire

Employees
00«

Employees

Required
Contribution and

Amount
Contributed

2011
2012
2013

Teamsters Security Fund for Southern evada

37.00 %
39.75 %
39.75 %

21.50%$
23.75 %
23.75 %

34,963,916
32,964,731
29,426,319

The City participates in the Teamsters Security Fund for Southern Nevada, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit plan that covers the City's International Brotherhood of Teamsters employees (the Teamsters Plan).
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The Teamslers Plan is available 10 aClive and relired employees represenled by Ihe Inlemalional Brotherhood of
Teamslers and is a preferred provider organizalion (PPO) and adminislered by Zenilh Administralors, lnc. The
Teamsters Plan is a welfare benefit plan that provides hospital, medical. prescription, dental, vision, life and accidental
dealh and dismemberment insurance. Financial slatemenls for the Teamslers Plan can be oblained by wriling Zenilh
Administralors, Inc., 101 Convenlion Center Drive, Suile 600, Las Vegas, Nevada, 89109 or Teamslers Local Union
14, Teamslers Security Fund for Soulhem Nevada, 1250 S. Burnham Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada, 89104.

The Teamsters Plan is financed by employer contributions pursuant to collective bargaining agreements, interest earned
on Ihe investment of reserve funds and through voluntary contributions of participants 10 relain eligibility. For Ihe year
ended June 30, 2013, Ihe City contribuled $792 per monlh for each aclive employee represenled by the International
Brotherhood of Teamsters.

No conlribuling employer has liability, direclly or indireclly, 10 provide Ihe benefils eSlablished under the Teamsters
Plan beyond the obligation 10 make contribulions as slipulaled in Ihe respeclive colleclive bargaining agreement. The
Teamsters Plan clearly states that benefits are not guaranteed to always be available and that events may occur that force
Ihe Iruslees oflhe Teamsters Plan to change, reduce and/or eliminate the Teamster Plan altogelher.

The number of eligible employees, annual covered payroll and amounls contribuled were as follows:

For the Yenr Ended June 30.

Number of
Eligible

Employees

Required
Contribution and

Annual Covered Amount
PaYroll Contributed

2011
2012
2013

International Associations of Fire Fighters

607 S
527
504

60,524,877 S
42,581,481
42,073,999

7,314,590
5,640,873
4,916,546

Effeclive August I, 2012,the City participates in Ihe North Las Vegas Fire Fighlers Union Health and Welfare Trust, a
cosl-sharing defined benefil plan thai covers the City's Intemalional Associations of Fire Fighlers employees (the Fire
Fighters Plan).

The Fire Fighters Plan is available 10 active employees represenled by the International Associations of Fire Fighters.
The Fire Fighters Plan provides medical, prescription, dental and vision coverage for participants. Financial statements
for the Fire Fighters Plan can be obtained by wriling North Las Vegas Fire Fighters Union Health and Welfare TruSl,
11700 West Charleslon Boulevard, Suile 170-182, Las Vegas, V 89135.

The Fire Fighlers Plan is financed by employer contributions pursuanlto colleclive bargaining agreements and inleresl
earned on the inveslmenl of reserve funds. For the year ended June 30, 2013, the City contributed $1,000 per month for
each active employee represented by the International Associations of Fire Fighters.

No contribuling employer has liability, direcIly or indirectly, to provide the benefits eSlablished under the Fire Fighlers
Plan beyond Ihe obligation 10 make contributions as slipulaled in the respective collective bargaining agreement.
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The number of eligible employees, annual covered payroll and amounts contributed were as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30.

Number of
Eligible

Employees

Required
Contribution and

Annual Covered Amount
Payroll Contributed

2013

Postemplovment Benefits Other Than Pensions COPEB)

Plan Information

158 S 16,546,453 S 1,774,000

In accordance with NRS, the City provides postemployrnent benefits to its retirees that are not represented by the
International Brotherhood of Teamsters. Eligible retirees receive coverage through a healthcare plan offered by the
City (Healthcare Plan), which offers two plan options, a fully-insured health maintenance organization (HMO) plan or
UnitedHealthcare, which is a self-insured tiered preferred provider organization (PPO). In addition to the Healthcare
Plan, eligible retirees may receive coverage through the Public Employee Benefit Plan (PEBP). The City also offers a
life insurance plan (Life Insurance Plan) to all employees (active and retired), including those represented by the
International Brotherhood of Teamsters and the International Associations of Fire Fighters. Although active employees
represented by the International Associations of Fire Fighters are covered by the Fire Fighters Plan, upon retirement
they are eligible to receive benefits under the Healthcare Plan.

The Healthcare Plan offers ils retirees healthcare, dental, vision and life insurance benefits. Eligibility and contribution
requirements for the Healthcare Plan and the Life lnsurance are established by and may be amended by the City
Council.

PEBP is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by a nine member governing board that provides
medical, prescription, dental and vision benefits to retirees. Eligibility and subsidy requirements are governed by the
NRS and can only be amended through legislation. In 2008, the NRS were amended and as a result of this amendment,
the number of retirees for whom the City is obligated to provide postemployrnent benefits is limited to eligible
employees who retired from City service prior to Seplember I, 2008. The PEBP issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. This report may be obtained by
writing to the Public Employee Benefit Plan, 901 South Stewart Street, Suite 101, Carson City, NV 89701 or by calling
(775) 684-7000.

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost

The City is required to provide a subsidy, based on years of service for its retirees that have enrolled in the PEBP. The
subsidy is paid on a pay-as-you-go basis and is set by the State Legislature. For the year ended June 30, 2013, this
subsidy ranged from $118 to $650 per retiree, per month. For FY 2014, those amounts will decrease to $1 14 and $627,
respectively.
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For I1te year ended June 30, 2013, the average cosl borne by the City for employees and retirees enrolled in the
Healthcare Plan was $1,210 per participant, per moniit. Retirees enrolled in I1te Hea1I1tcare Plan receive no direct
subsidy from the City; however, retiree loss experience is pooled with active loss experience for the purpose of setting
rates and the difference between the true claims cost and the blended premium creates an implicit rate subsidy from the
City. For the year ended June 30, 2013, I1te City required no cODtribution from active employees covered under the
Healiitcare Plan.

Annual OPEB cost is calculated based on I1te annual required contribution (ARC), an amount actuarially detennined in
accordance with the paramelers of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid OD aD Dngoing
basis, is projected to cover nannal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess)
over a period not to exceed 30 years.

The following table shows the components of the annual OPEB cost for I1te year, the amount actually contributed to the
plan, and changes in the net OPEB obligation:

City of North City of North
Public Employee Las Vegas Las Vegas Life
Benefit Program Heahhcare Plan Insurance Plan Total

Annual required contribution (ARC) S 679,416 S 1,453,998 S 147,397 S 2.280,811
Interest on net OPEB obligation 50,094 278.157 25,657 353,908
Adjustment to ARC (80,165) (276.355) (25,491 ) {382,011l

Annual OPEB cost 649,345 1,455,800 147,563 2,252,708
OPEB contributions made (641,639) (185,456) (58,94D (886,042)

Increase (decrease) in nel OPES obligation 7,706 1,270,344 88,616 1,366,666

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of)'ear 1.252,341 6.953.923 641,425 8,847.689

Net OPEB obligation, end of)'ear S 1.260.047 S 8.224.267 S 730,041 S 10,214,355

Annual OPEB cost, employer contributioDs, the percenlage of annual cost cODtributed 10 the plan and the net OPEB
obligation for the years ended JUDe 30, 20 II, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

OPEB
Annual OPEB Contributions Percentage NclOPEB

For the Year Ended June 30 Cost Made Contributed Obligation

Public Employee Benefit Program
2011 S 590,109 S 596,334 101.1 %S 1,285,485
2012 594.009 627,154 105.6% 1,252,341
2013 649,345 641.639 98.8 % 1,260,047

City of orth Las Vegas Healthcare Plan
2011 1,720,572 246,369 14.3 % 5.392,926
2012 1,825,914 264,917 14.5 % 6,953,923
2013 1,455,800 185.456 12.7% 8,224,267

City of North Las Vegas Life Insurance Plan
2011 180,303 59,729 33.1 % 515,905
2012 188,727 63,207 33.5 % 641,425
2013 147,563 58.947 39.9 % 730,041
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Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded stalus of the plans as of the most recent actuarial valuation date was as follows:

Unfunded
Actuarial

Actuarial Accrued UAALas a
Actuarial Value Accrued Liability Annual Covered Percent of

Valuation Date ofAssets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Public Employee Benefit Program
June 3D, 2013 N1AIS 11,038,451 S 11,038,451 0.0% N/A2 N/A2

City of North Las Vegas Healthcare Plan
June 30, 2013 N/AI 13,937,406 13,937,406 0.0% 82,838,760 16.8%

City of North Las Vegas Life Insurance
Plan

June 30. 2013 N/AI 2,240,684 2,240,684 0.0% 82,838,760 2.7 %

1. No assets have been placed in trust.
2. The Public Employee Benefit Program is a closed plan; and therefore, there arc no current covered employees.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events into the future. Actuarially detennined amounts are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

The required schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the noles to Ihe
basic financial statements, presents multi-year trend infonnation that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plans (the plans as understood by the employer and plan members)
and include the types of benefits provided at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the City
and the plan members at that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and
assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets.

Significant actuarial methods and assumptions as of the most recent actuarial valuation date were as follows:

City of onh City of orth
Public Employee Las Vegas Las Vegas Life
Benefit Program .!:H!l'e:!!!al!!!th~c!!are~P:!!lan!!!. ....!I!!ns!!u!!!ran~ce:.!:.PI!!!an!!...

Actuarial valuation date
Actuarial cost method

Amonization method

Amonization period

(Continued)

June 30, 2013
Entry age

normal, closed
Level dollar

25 )'ears

June 30, 2013 June 30, 2013
Entry age Entry age

normal, open normal, open
Level percent of Level percent of

pay pay
30 years 30 years
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Public Employee
Benefit Program

City of North
Las Vegas

Healthcnre Plan

City of North
Las Vegas Life
Insurance Plan

Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions

Inveslmenl rate ofretum
Inflation rale
Projected salary increase
Number of retirees
Healthcare inflation rates

Initial
Ultimate

No asselS in trust No assets in trust No assets in trust

4% 4% 4%
3% 3% 3%
4% 4% 4%
181 617 1342

8.S'-. 8% 8%
5"-. 5% 5%

I. The Public Employee Benefit Program is a closed plan; and therefore, there arc no current covered employees.

The City utilizes the self-insurance reserve internal service fund to allocate OPEB costs. Each fund recognizes its portion
of the annual OPES costs based on each fund's actual salary costs. No governmental funds have been used to liquidate the
net OPES obligation thus far. As of June 30, 2013, the self· insurance reserve internal service fund had $16,121,300 in
unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and investments some of which is intended to fund future OPEB costs. Because these
assets are not held in an irrevocable trust, they are not considered plan assets at this time and as such, are not reflected in
any OPES funding schedules. The City is required to have its actuarial valuation study updated every two years and will
make funding decisions with regard to OPES costs accordingly.
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER TlIAN PENSIONS
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Unfunded
Actuarial

Actuarial Accrued UAALas a
Actuarial Value Accrued Liability Annual Covered Percent of

Valuation Dale or~ts Liabilitv (AAL) (UAALl Funded Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Public Employee Benefit Program
July 1,2009 fA'S 21,045,976 S 27,820,834 O.O%S N/Al N/A2
June 30, 201 P NlA' 10,530,961 10,530,961 0.0% NJA2 N/A2
June 30, 2013 N/AI 11,038,451 11,038,451 0.0% NJA2 NlA'

City ofNonh Las Vegas Healthcare Plan
July 1,2009 N/AI 9,946,490 9,946,490 0.0% 158,854,498 6.3%
June 30, 201 Jl NfA' 17,976,859 17,976,859 0.0 0/. 142,669,047 12.6%
June 3D, 2013 N/AI 13,937,406 13,937,406 0.0% 82,838,760 16.8 %

City of North Las Vegas Life Insurance
Plan

July 1,2009 N/AI 2,203,647 2,203,647 0.0% 158,854,498 lA%
June 3D, 201 P N/AI 2,431,608 2,431,608 0.0% 142,669,047 1.7 %
June 30. 2013 N/A I 2,240,684 2,240,684 0.0% 82,838,760 2.7%

I. No assets have been placed in trust.
2. The Public Employee Benefit Program is a closed plan; and therefore, there arc no current covered employees.
3. During the year ended June 30, 201 I, the City reduced staffing levels from 1,82010 1,269 of eligible employees, and significant reductions occurred

in the City's required subsidy for retirees participating in the Nevada Public Employees' BenefitS Program, As a result, the actuarial valuation
dated June 30, 201 I, was reperformed to properly account for these events. The amounts reported above reflect the results oflhe second June,
30,20 II, actuarial report,
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The general fund is used 10 account for all financial resources nOI required to be accounted for in some other fund.





CITY OF ORTH LAS VEGAS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPE 'DITURES AND CHANGES I ' FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

REVENUES
Property taxes
Franchise fees
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Intergovernmental consolidated taxes
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions
Rents and royalties
Inveslment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General govemment

Legislative
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total legislative

Executive
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total executive

City attorney
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Tolal city anomer

City clerk
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total city clerk

Finance
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Total finance

Planning
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total planning

Original Budget Final Budget AClual Varilmce

S 7,484,822 S 7,484,822 S 7,537,599 S 52,777
16,192,800 16,192,800 15,769,356 (423,444)
10,141,240 10,141,240 10,722,526 581,286
4,426,803 4,427,008 3,146,630 (1,280,378)

40,204,210 40,204,210 39,434,352 (769,858)
2,600,000 2,600,000 2,342,535 (257,465)
8,114,500 8,114,500 6,799,910 (1,314,590)

200 200 821 621
450,000 450,000 480,523 30,523
725,000 725,000 139,959 (585,041)
665.010 m,779 577,145 (146,634)

91.004,585 91.063,559 86951356 14.112.203)

372,099 365,642 362,562 3,080
216,140 214,205 285,314 (71,109)
150,442 150,273 97,307 52.966
738.681 730,120 745.183 (15,063)

725,835 707,885 583,664 124,221
299,014 291,990 299,594 (7,604)
325,074 324.625 271.953 52.672

1,349,923 1.324.500 1.155,211 169,289

1,343,696 1,359,228 1,337,100 22,128
578,850 583,331 675,110 (91,779)
222,207 195.617 132.929 62,688

2,144,753 2,138,176 2.145.139 16.963)

394,899 394,899 365,160 29,739
157,994 157,994 162,893 (4,899)
370.035 370.oJ5 302,414 67.621
922,928 922.928 830,467 92,461

1,658,539 1,658,539 1,580,548 77,991
698,234 698,234 762,866 (64,632)

1,085,026 1,085,026 375,368 709,658
92,100

3.533,899 3.441.799 2.718,782 723.017

863,426 863,426 839,030 24,396
334,364 334,364 346,708 (12,344)
144.127 144.127 102.407 41.720

1,341.917 1.341,917 1.288.145 53,772
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Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

Other
Salaries and wages 4,744,469 4,590,277 4,326,886 263,391
Employee benefits 1,878,486 1,823,852 1,871,674 (47,822)
Services and supplies 3,523,993 3,571,628 3,604,747 (33,119)
Capital outlay 3,849 (3,849)

Total other 10,146,948 9,985,757 9807156 178601

Total general government 20,179,049 19,885,197 18,690,083 1,195,114

Judicial
Municipal court

Salaries and wages 3)26,300 3,664,919 3,507,606 157,313
Employee benefits 1,393,369 1,548,162 1,560,952 (12,790)
Services and supplies 528,885 537,350 459.214 78,136

Total municipal court 5,248.554 5,750,431 5.527,772 222,659

Marshals
Salaries and wages 1,674,553 1,332,474 1,205,768 126,706
Employee benefits 1,053,732 846,114 909,613 (63,499)
Services and suppl ies 226,927 210,772 156,079 54,693

Total marshals 2,955,212 2,389,360 2,271.460 117,900

Total judicial 8,203,766 8,139,791 7,799,232 340,559

Public safety
Police

Salaries and wages 17,006,324 17,006,324 16,296,598 709,726
Employee benefits 8,842,149 8,842,149 10,426,268 (1,584,119)
Services and supplies 3,533,338 3,533,338 2,668,092 865,246
Capital outlay 162,300

Total police 29,544,111 29,381.811 29,390,958 (9,14D

Corrections
Salaries and wages 2,334,040 4,130,950 4,085,667 45,283
Employee benefits 1,181,147 2,393,830 3,038,462 (644,632)
Services and supplies 6,618,222 3,696,439 3,869,805 (173,366)

Total correct ions 10,133,409 10,221,219 10,993934 (772,715)

Protective services
Salaries and wages 2,223,566 2,208,700 2,042,559 166,141
Employee benefits 910,072 869,531 826,208 43,323
Services and supplies 2,717,047 2,677,733 2,061,356 616,377

Total protective services 5,850,685 5,755,964 4,930,123 825,841

Fire
Salaries and wages 17,465,274 17,455,774 16,397,997 1,057,777
Employee benefits 10,157,534 10,156,334 10,601,656 (445,322)
Services and supplies 3,197,662 3,208,362 2,819,998 388,364
Capital outlay 82,400

Total fire 30,902,870 30,820,470 29,819,651 1,000,819

Total public safety 76,431075 76,179,464 75,134,666 1044,798
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Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

Public works
Administration

Salaries and wages 284,144 284,144 294,979 (10,835)
Employee benefits 112,411 112,411 140,184 (27,773)
Services and supplies 25,918 25,918 20,496 5,422
Capital outlay 116.000

Total administration 538,473 422,473 455,659 (33.186)

Flood control
Salaries and wages 340,963 340,963 364,077 (23.114)
Employee benefits 130,131 130,131 142,773 (12,642)
Services and supplies 31.555 31,555 15.785 15.770

Total flood control 502.649 502,649 522.635 (19.986)

Engineering
Salaries and wages 181,630 181,630 173,030 8,600
Employee benefits 53,944 53,944 57,526 (3,582)
Services and supplies 91.995 91,995 73A14 18,581

TOlal engineering 327.569 327,569 303,970 23,599

Real property
Salaries and wages 299,008 299,008 274,434 24,574
Employee benefits 122,099 122,099 114,197 7,902
Services and supplies 35,467 35,467 13.190 22,277

TOlal real property 456,574 456.574 401.821 54.753

Construction
Salaries and wages 290,085 394,823 271,661 123,162
Employee benefits 89,789 139,201 97,994 41,207
Services and supplies 104 278 106.896 63.932 42,964

TOlal construction 484,152 640.920 433,587 207,333

Survey
Salaries and wages 333,694 228,956 202,770 26,186
Employee benefits 116,850 67,438 74,332 (6,894)
Services and supplies 104,801 102.183 85.739 16.444

Total survey 555,345 398.577 362.841 35.736

Total public works 2.864.762 2.748,762 2.480,513 268,249

CullUre and recreation
Administration

Salaries and wages 231,310 210,550 185,137 25,413
Employee benefits 88,097 84,357 84,478 (121)
Services and supplies 20,076 19,716 16,833 2,883

Total adminiSlration 339,483 314,623 286.448 28,175

Participant recreation
Salaries and wages 1,146,174 1,043,682 964,682 79,000
Employee benefits 365,955 327,057 278,843 48,214
Services and supplies 671,645 705,487 641.552 63,935

TOial participant recreation 2,183774 2,076.226 1,885,077 191,149
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Oril!inal Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

Parks and grounds
Salaries and wages 1,181,327 981,327 884,856 96,471
Employee benefits 386,870 386,870 375,300 11,570
Services and supplies 2,766,289 2,978,289 2,843,962 134,327

Capital outlay 50,800 48000 48,000

Total parks and grounds 4,385 286 4,394,486 4.104.118 290,368

Total culture and recreation 6908,543 6,785,335 6,275,643 509,692

Community support
Housing and neighborhood services

Salaries and wages 558,098 678,785 696,054 (17,269)
Employee benefits 227,704 273,388 276,223 (2,835)

Services and supplies 390,851 393,851 302,491 91.360

Total housing and neighborhood services 1,176,653 1,346,024 1,274,768 71.256

Economic development
Salaries and wages 105,611 105,611 104,598 1,013
Employee benefits 44,889 44,889 50,808 (5,919)

Services and supplies 45,026 45,026 23,151 21.875

Total economic development 195,526 195,526 178,557 16,969

Developer agreements
Services and supplies 75,000 75,000 60,000 15,000

Total community support 1,447,179 1,616,550 1,513,325 103,225

Debt service
Principal payments 6,400

Tolal expenditures 116,040,774 115,355,099 111,893,462 3,461.637

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (25,036,189) (24,291,540) (24,942,106) (650,566)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Contingencies (500,000) (500,000) 500,000
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 25,000 25,000 115,151 90,151

Transfers in 32,303,600 31,849,640 31,822,119 (27,521)

Transfers out (6,747,782) (6,496,562) (6,896,562) (400,000)

Total other financing sources (uses) 25,080,818 24,878,078 25,040,708 162,630

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 44,629 586,538 98,602 (487,936)

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 9,180,610

Adjustment 59,732

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED 9829,404 9,180,610 9,240342 59,732

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 9,874,033 $ 9,767,148 $ 9338,944 $ (428,204)
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Special revenue funds are used to account for financial resources that are restricted or committed to specific purposes other than debt service and capital
projects.

Public Safety Tax
Accounts for vOler·approved property tax overrides to be used exclusively for public safety programs.





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

PUBLIC SAfETY TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCUEDULE Of REVENUES, EXPENDITURES A 0 CUANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR TlIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Propeny taxes S 28,207,264 S 28,207,264 S 28,33 1,500 S 124,236
Miscellaneous 4,970 4,970 7,157 2,187

Total revenues 28,212.234 28,212,234 28,338,657 126.423

EXPENDITURES
Publ ie safety

Police
Salaries and wages 13,699,081 13,699,081 13,083,380 615,701
Employee benefits 7,454,660 7,454,660 8,467,828 (1,013,168)
Services and supplies 3,410,490 3,434,090 2,624,272 809,818
Capital outlay 293.000

Total police 24,857.231 24.587,831 24.175.480 412,351

Corrections
Salaries and wages 3,422,476 1,021,846 1,050,522 (28,676)
Employee benefits 2,022,991 566,916 702,461 (135,545)
Services and supplies 150.344 3,877,444 3,626,464 250,980

Total corrections 5.595,811 5.466.206 5.379,447 86,759

Protective services
Salaries and wages 137,330 137,330 114,145 23,185
Employee benefits 57,973 57,973 49,573 8,400
Services and supplies 14.490 14.490 9,338 5,152

TOial protective services 209,793 209,793 173,056 36,737

Safe streets 2000
Services and supplies 123,600 100.000 100,000

Total expenditures 30.786,435 30,363.830 29,727,983 635.847

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (2.574.20 I) (2.151,596) (1,389.326) 762.270

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 23,556 23,556
Transfers in 883,402 590,402 590,402
Transfers out (I,194,336) (I.323.94I) 0,323.941)

Total other financing sources (uses) (310,934) (733.539) (709,983) 23.556

CHANGE IN fUND BALANCE (2,885.135) (2,885,135) (2,099,309) 785,826

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 4,087,849
Adjustment 179,990

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING Of YEAR, AS ADJUSTED 2,885,135 4,087,849 4,267,839 179,990

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR S S 1,202,714 S 2.168,530 S 965,816
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Note I. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

During Ihe year ended June 30, 2011, Ihe City reduced staffing levels from 1,820 to 1,269 of eligible employees, and
significant reductions occurred in the City's required subsidy for retirees participating in the Nevada Public Employees'
Benefits Program. As a result, the actuarial valuation dated June 30, 20 II, was reperformed to properly account for
Ihese events. The amounts reponed in the schedule of funding progress retlectthe results of the second June 30, 2011,
actuarial report.

For the year ended June 30, 2013, no significanl events occurred that would have affected the actuarial valuation; and
therefore, would have changed the benefit provision, size or composition of those covered by the postemployment
benefit plans, or Ihe actuarial methods and assumptions used in the actuarial valuation repons dated July 1,2013, July
1,2011 and July 1,2009.

The actuarial accrued liability and unfunded actuarial accrued liability involve estimates of the value of reponed
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. These estimates are subject to
continual revision.

Additional information related to postemployment benefits other than pensions can be found in Note 4 to the basic
financial statements.

Note 2. Budget Information

The accompanying required supplementary schedules of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance presents
the original adopted budget, the final amended budget, and actual fund data for the general fund and each major special
revenue fund. The original budgets were adopted on a basis consistent with financial accounting policies and with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. All amendments made to the original budgets were as
prescribed by law and similarly consistent.

Additional budgetary information can be found in Note 2 10 the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Capital projects funds arc used to account for financial resources that afC restricted, committed or assigned to the improvement, acquisition or
construction ofcapital assets.

Parks and Recreation Projects
Accounts for capital improvement expenditures associated with the City's parks and recreation buildings and facilities.

Public Safety Projects
Accounts for the cost of public safely projects associated with the City's police, fire and detention facilities, as well as the installation of traffic

signals in developing areas and improvements ofstonn drainage systems.





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

PARKS AND RECREATION PROJECTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDIT RES AND ClIANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 43,341.500 $ 43,341,500 $ 40,968,699 $ (2,372.801)

EXPENDITURES
Culture and recrealion

Administration
Salaries and wages 1,631,000 1,631,000 17,120 1,613,880
Employee benefits 721,900 721,900 9,595 712,305
Services and supplies 1,898,900 1,898,900 912,611 986,289
Capital outlay 39,419,000 39,419,000 37,553,579 1,865421

Total administration 43,670,800 43,670,800 38,492,905 5,177,895

Parks planning and development
Capital outlay 2,005,630 (2,005,630)

Total parks planning and development 2,005,630 (2,005,630)

Other
Salaries and wages 55,900 55,900 348,723 (292,823)
Employee benefits 24,800 24,800 196,637 (171,837)
Services and supplies 14,000 14,000 8,654 5,346

Total other 94,700 94,700 554,014 (459,314)

Total culture and recreation 43,765,500 43,765,500 41052549 2,712,951

Total expenditures 43,765,500 43,765,500 41,052,549 2,712,951

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (424,000) (424,000) (83,850) 340,150

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 424,000 424,000 424,000

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 340,150 340,150

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,217,422 1,259,932 1,259,932

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 1,217,422 $ 1,259,932 $ 1,600,082 $ 340, ISO
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

PUBLIC SAFETY PROJECTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Budget Final Budget Actual VariAnce

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 46,028,400 $ 46,028,400 $ 29,586,129 $ (16,442,271)

Contributions 42,646 42,646

Total revenues 46,028,400 46,028,400 29,628,775 (16.399,625)

EXPENDITURES
Public safety

Police
Salaries and wages 466,061 (466,061)
Employee benefits 239,301 (239,301)
Services and supplies 394,670 (394,670)

Capitaloullay 16,150 (16,150)

Total police 1,116,182 (1,116,182)

Protective services
Salaries and wages 58,463 (58,463)
Employee benefits l4,330 (34,330)
Services and supplies 17,218 (17,218)

Capital outlay 122,739 (122 739)

Total protective services 232,750 (232,750)

Fire
Salaries and wages 9,100 9,100 9,100
Employee benefits 4,100 4,100 4,100
Services and supplies 687,800 87,800 27,142 60,658

Capilal outlay 959,000 937,000 775,754 161,246

Total fire 1.660,000 1,038,000 802,896 235,104

Other
Salaries and wages 1,536,500 1,536,500 1,536,500
Employee benefits 662,500 662,500 662,500
Services and supplies 1,137,100 1,137,100 1,137,100

Capital outlay 42,692,300 42,692,300 28,325,411 14,366,889

Total other 46,028,400 46,028,400 28,325,411 17,702,989

Total public safety 47,688,400 47,066,400 30,477,239 16.589,16\

Total expenditures 47,688,400 47,066,400 30,477.239 16589,161

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (1,660,000) (1.038,000) (848,464) 189.536

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 1,660,000 1.660,000 1,660,000

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 622,000 811,536 189,536

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 22,013,740 7,228.530 7,228.530

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 22,013740 $ 7,850.530 $ 8,040066 $ 189,536
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINI G BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2013

Aggregate Other
Governmental

Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects Funds

3,300,594 S 21.183,969 S

3,128,840 S 19,480,443 S
229,498

1,474,028

ASSETS
Cash, cash equivalents and investments S 37,148,298 $
Accounts receivable, net 986,627
Grants receivable 1,929,350
Property taxes receivable 321,620
Interest receivable
Special assessments receivable
Prepaid items 6,145
Due from other governments 3,264,539
Inventories 3,326
Property held for resale 2607294

Total assets S 46,267,199 S

LIAB ILiTIES
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities S 1,267,155 S
Accrued salaries and benefits 966,796
Due to other funds 56,322
Due to other governments 250,716
Customer deposits 7,593
Unearned revenue 2,123,365

Total liabilities 4,671,947

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues 161,133

Totalliabililies and deferred innows of resources 4,833,080

(Continued)

20,328
20,875

100,551
30,000

3,790 S

3,790

11,934

15,724

59,757,581
1,216,125
3,403,378

341,948
20,875

100,551
36,145

3,264,539
3,326

2,607,294

70751,762

1,216,924 S 2,487,869
38,108 1,004,904

56,322
40,080 290,796

7,593
40,399 2,163,764

1,335511 6,011 248

173,067

1,335,5 II 6,184,315
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NON-MAJOR GOVER 'MENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30,2013

Aggregate Other
Governmental

Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects Funds

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable

Inventories 3,326 3,326
Prepaid items 6,145 30,000 36,145
Land held for resale 2,607,294 2,607,294

Restricted for
Debt service 3,249,644 3,249,644
Buildings and facilities projects 7,791,018 7,791,018
Street improvmenlS projects 2,520,573 3,677,442 6,198,015
Other capital projects 9,402,244 3,992,117 13,394,361
Police, fire and other public safety programs and projects 8,357,555 3,703,473 12,061,028
Library district operations 736,877 736,877
Courts and other judiesl programs 2,081,986 2,081,986
Community assistance and support programs 12,783,793 12,783,793
Other 19,103 19,103

Committed to
Debt service 5,226 5,226
Buildings and facilities projects 684,399 684,399
Other capital projects 9 9
Parks, cull ural and other recreational programs 308,799 308,799
Community assistance and support programs 251,433 25 I,433

Assigned to
Other capital projects 940,274 940,274
Police, fire and other public safety programs and projects 393,672 393,672
Parks, cultural and other recreational programs 1,001,742 1,001,742
Other 19303 19303

Total fund balances 41,434,119 3,284.870 19.848.458 64,567,447

TOlalliabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances $ 46.267,199 $ 3300594 $ 21,183.969 $ 70.751.762
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEME 'T OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR TilE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Aggregate Other
Governmental

Special Revenue Debt Service Canital Projects Funds

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 12,321,442 $ 970,276 $ $ 13,291,718
Residential construction taxes 332,595 332,595
Room taxes 383,888 383,888
Special assessments 2,202,185 2,202,185
Charges for services 2,222,593 2,222,593
Intergovernmental 19,690,331 14,043,110 33,733,441
Fines and forfeitures 732,601 3,040 735,641
Contributions 62,865 62,865
Rents and royalties 77,333 77,333
Investment income 26,754 2,359 26,452 55,565
Miscellaneous 1.176,315 1,176,315

Total revenues 37,026,717 3,177,860 14,069562 54,274 139

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 357,165 63,211 420,382
Judicial 102,433 702,433
Public safely 15,837,114 795,313 16,632,421
Public works 3,496,771 2,584,499 6,081,270
Culture and recreation 4,813,077 4,813,077
Community support 3,372,721 3,372,727

Total current 28,579,281 3,443,029 32,022,316

Capilal outlay
General government 1,843,632 1,843,632
Public safety 419,868 1,115,253 1,595,121
Public works 26,962 13,037,616 13,064,578
Community support 2,076.339 2,016,339

TOlaJ capilal outlay 2,523,169 16,056,501 18,579,670

Debt service
Principal payments 335,000 5,593,600 5,928,600
Interest and fiscal charges 137,751 3,108,918 3,246,669

Total debt service 472,751 8,702,518 9,175,269

Total expenditures 31.575,207 8,702,518 19,499,530 59,717,255

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 5,451.510 (5,524,658) (5,429,968) (5,503,116)

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 42,609 42,609
Transfers in 1,219,532 5,449,850 5,257,133 11,926,515
Transfers out (6,628,576) (3,200,000) (9,828,576)

Total other financing sources (uses) (5,366,435) 5,449,850 2,057,133 2,140,548

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 85,075 (74,808) (3,372,835) (3,362,568)

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 38,885,481 3,353,006 23,221,293 65,459,780
Adjustment 2463,563 6,612 2,470,235

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED 41,349,044 3,359,678 23,221,293 67,930,015

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR S 41,434,119 S 3,284,810 $ 19,848,458 $ 64,561,447
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Special revenue funds are used to accounl for financial resources that are reslrictcd or committed to specific purposes other than debl service and capital
projects.

Parks and Recreation Support
Accounts for monies collected for the enhancement and support ofpark facilities and recreation programs.

Redevelopment Agency
Accounts for supplemental property taxes assessed on the redevelopment dislricl property and the costs of carrying Qui the redevelopment plan.

Library DiSlriCI
Accounts for monies received by the District from property taxes and contributions from the general fund and costs related (0 the Library

DiSirict.

Special Purpose Revenue
Accounts for monies received from various sources, which are to be used for specific purposes.

More Cops Sales Tax
Accounts for a voter-approved increase in sales and use tax to employ and equip additional police officers.

Park Construction Tax
Accounts for monies collected from developers to finance park construction projects.

Public Safety Support
Accounts for monies received by the City from various sources that are to be used for programs that enhance public safety.

Municipal Court Support
Accounts for fees collected to defray the costs of maintaining the Municipal Court.

Community Development
Accounts for monies received by the City from the County as a grantee participant in the federal Community Development Block Grant

Program as well as funds received from the State of Nevada and other sources. which must be used for qualirying community development
projects.





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

ON-MAJOR SPECIAL R£VE UE FU 'DS

COMBL'IING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2013

Parks and
Recreation

SupPOrt
Redevelopment Special Purpose More Cops Sales

Agencv Ubrarv District Revenue Tax

ASSETS
Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Accounts receivable, nct
Grants receivable
Propeny taxes receivable
Prepaid items
Due from other governments
Inventories
Property held for resale

Total assets

S 1,226,55 [ S 10,309,840 S 908,757 S 10.447,789 S 3,797,030
44,420 158,780 110,800 10,124
87,956 187,370

82.695 54,332 180,194
6,[45

929,348 2,335.191

S 1.358.927 S [0.551.315 S 969.234 S 11.855.6O[ S 6.142.345

LIAB[LITIES
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Customer deposits
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues

Total liabilities and deferred innows of resources

S 13,287 S
2[,355

[,654
765

[,593
9.732

48.386

48.386

1,381 S 82,745 S 570,270 S
20,410 90,382 191,108

898 3,922 8,368
19,560 92,840

6,000
29,760 2.519

58,449 196.609 865,105

31.047 29,603 98.[41

89,496 226.212 963.246

970
462,025

31,858

494,853

494.853

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable

Inventories
Prepaid items
Land held for resale

Restricted for
Street improvments projetlS
Other capital projects
Police, fire and other public safety programs and

projects
Library district operations
Courts and other judical programs
Community assistance and support programs
Other

Committed to
Parks, cultural and other recreational programs
Community assistance and support programs

Assigned to
Other capital projects
Police, fire and other public safety programs and

projects
Parks, cultural and other recreational programs
Other

308,799

1,001,742

6,145

2.520,573
7,393,102

5,647,492
736,877

[0,461,819
19,103

940,274

[9303

Total fund balances

TOlalliabililics, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances $

1,310.54[ 1046[.8[9

1.358.927 S 10,551.3[5 S

(Continued)

743.022 10.892.355

969,234 S 11,855.601 S

5,647,492

6.142.345
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVE 'UE FUNDS
COMBINI 'G BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

J E30,2013

Park
Construction Public Safety Municipal Court Community Total Special

Tax SupPOrt Suppon Development Revenue

ASSETS
Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 2,009,142 $ 2,633,113 $ 2,113,636 $ 3,702,440 $ 37,148,298
Accounts receivable, net 647,014 15,489 986,627
Grants receivable 418,319 1,235,705 1,929,350
Property taxes receivable 4,299 321,620
Prepaid items 6,145
Due from other governments 3,264,539
lnventories 3,326 3,326
Property held for resale 2,607,294 2,601,294

Total assets $ 2,009,142 $ 3,106,011 $ 2,113,636 $ 7560,928 $ 46,267,199

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities $ $ 252,105 S 10,901 $ 334,890 $ 1,261,155
Accrued salaries and benefits 123,616 19,846 38,054 966,196
Due 10 other funds 1,022 891 1,103 56,322
Due 10 other governments 136,151 1,400 250,116
Customer deposits 1,593
Unearned revenue 77.174 2,004,180 2,123,365

Total liabilities 596,668 31,650 2,380,227 4,611,947

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues 2,342 161.133

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 599 010 31,650 2,380,221 4,833,080

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable

Inventories 3,326 3,326
Prepaid items 6,145
Land held for resale 2,601,294 2,601,294

Resuicted for
Street improvments projects 2,520,513
Other capital projects 2,009,142 9,402,244
Police. fire and other public safety programs and

projeclS 2,110,063 8,351,555
Library district operations 136,811
Courts and other judical programs 2,081,986 2,081,986
Community assistance and support programs 2,321,914 12,183,193
Other 19,103

Committed to
Parks, cultural and othcr recreational programs 308,199
Community assistance and support programs 251,433 251,433

Assigned to
Other capital projects 940,214
Police, fire and other public safety programs and

projects 393,612 393,612
Parks, cultural and other recreational programs 1,001,142
Olher 19303

Total fund balances 2,009,142 3,107,061 2,081,986 5,180,101 41.434,119

Total liabilities. deferred inflows of resources and fund balances S 2,009,142 $ 3,106,011 $ 2,113,636 $ 7,560.928 $ 46,267,199
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

ON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVE. 'UE FU1<DS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVE 'UES, EXPE 'DITURES A1<D CHANGES IN Fu o BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J NE 30, 2013

Parks and
Recreation Redevelopment Special Purpose More Cops Sales

SupPOrt Agency Library District Revenue Tax

REVENUES
Property taxes S S 1,276,443 S 2,451,422 S 8,399,381 S
Residential construction taxes
Room taxes 383,888
Charges for services 1,808,821
Intergovernmental 172,215 4,600 4.130.322 9,048,291
Fines and forfeitures 225 613 72,055
Contributions 41.028
Rents and royalties 77,J33
Investment income 429 18,044 125 5.304
Miscellaneous 9.930 57.624 28355

Total revenues 2.032.648 1.372,433 2.585.701 12.942.071 9.053.595

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 357,165
Judicial
Public safely 2,984.165 8,904,720
Public works 3,496,771
Culture and recreation 1,625,532 2,552,141 635,404
Community support 751.847 28.189

Total curren! 1.625,532 751.847 2.552,141 7.501.694 8.904.720

Capilaloutlay
Public safety
Public works 26,962
Community support 2.070.856

Total capital outlay 2.070.856 26.962

Debt service
Princ"ipal payments 335,000
Interest and fiscal charges 137.751

Total debt service 472.751

Total expenditures 1.625.532 2.822.703 3.024.892 7.528.656 8.904.720

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 407.116 0.450.270) (439.191) 5,413,415 148.875

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from capital assct disposal 17.186 2,347
Transfers in 49,640 590,402
Transfers out (300,000) (562.264) (4.251.795) (260,000)

Total Olher financing sources (uses) (300,000) (512,624) (4.234,609) 332 749

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 407,116 0,750,270) (951,815) 1,178,806 481,624

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS
PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 903,425 12,203,891 1,678,931 9,662,026 5,165,868

Adjuslmenl 8,198 15,906 51,523
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED 903.425 12,212,089 1.694.837 9.713.549 5,165,868

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR S I.J 10.541 S 10.461,819 S 743,022 S 10,892.355 S 5,647,492

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALA CE SHEET (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2013

Park
Construction Public Safety Municipal Court Community Total Special

Tax Sunport Supnort Development Revenue

REVENUES
Property taxes $ $ 194.196 $ $ $ 12.321.442
Residential construction taxes 332.595 332.595
Room taxes 383.888
Charges for services 31.464 382.308 2.222.593
Intergovernmental 3.260.651 3.074.252 19.690.331
Fines and forfeitures 659.708 732.601
Contributions 21.837 62.865
Rents and royalties 77.333
Investment income 2.888 (36) 26,754
Miscellaneous 216,138 616,341 247,927 1,176,315

Total revenues 335,483 4,383,958 998,649 3.322,179 37,026,717

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 357,165
Judicial 702.433 702.433
Public safety 3.948.229 15.837.114
Public works 3.496.771
Culture and recreation 4.813.077
Community support 2,592,691 3,372,727

TOial current 3,948,229 702,433 2,592,691 28.579,287

Capital outlay
Public safety 419.868 419.868
Public works 26.962
Community support 5,483 2,076.339

Total capital outlay 419,868 5,483 2,523,169

Dcblscrvice
Principal payments 335.000
Intcrest and fiscal charges 137,751

TOlal debt service 472,751

Total expenditures 4,368,097 702,433 2,598,174 31 ,575,207

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 335,483 15,861 296,216 724,005 5,451,510

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 9.500 13.576 42.609
Transfers in 579.490 1.219.532
Transfers oul (424,000) (22,119) (300,000) (508.398) (6,628.576)

Total other financing sources (uses) (424,000) 566,871 (300,000) (494,822) (5,366,435)

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (88,517) 582,732 (3,784) 229,183 85,075

FUND BALANCE. BEGINNING OF YEAR. AS
PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 2.097.659 2.522.123 2.085.770 2.565.788 38.885.481

Adjustment 2,206 2,385,730 2,463,563

FUND BALANCE. BEGINNING OF YEAR. AS ADJUSTED 2,097,659 2,524,329 2,085,770 4,951.518 4 1,349,044

FUND BALANCE. END OF YEAR S 2,009142 $ 3,107,061 $ 2,081,986 $ 5180,701 $ 41.434,119
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

PARKS AND RECREATION SUPPORT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVE UES, EXPENDITURES A 'D CHANGES IN FUND BALA CE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Origin3] Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Charges for services $ 1,661,300 $ 1,661,300 $ 1,808,821 $ 147,521
Intergovernmental 41,250 70,050 172,215 102,165
Fines and forfeitures 225 225
COnlributions 116,200 116,200 41,028 (75,172)
Investment income 1,525 1,525 429 (1,096)
Miscellaneous 9,930 9,930

Total revenues 1,820,275 1,849,075 2,032,648 183,573

EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation

Administration
Salaries and wages 3,692 (3,692)
Employee benefits 1,141 (1,141)
Services and supplies 41,316 (41,316)

Total administration 46,149 (46,149)

Participant recreation
Salaries and wages 1,184,064 1,246,114 976,195 269,919
Employee benefits 222,943 230,783 171,835 58,948
Services and supplies 515,900 622,210 384,726 237,484

TOlal participant recreation 1,922,907 2,099,107 1,532,756 566,351

Parks and grounds
Salaries and wages 9,674 (9,674)
Employee benefits 847 (847)

TOlal parks and grounds 10,521 (10,521)

Other
Salaries and wages 28,454 (28,454)
Employee benefits 7,413 (7,413)
Services and supplies 239 (239)

Total other 36,106 (36,106)

Total culture and recreation 1,922,907 2,099,107 1,625,532 473,575

Total expenditures 1,922.907 2,099,107 1,625,532 473,575

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 122.540 (122,540)

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (102,632) (127,492) 407,116 534,608

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 497.995 903,425 903,425

FUND BALANCE, END OF VEAR $ 395.363 $ 775,933 $ 1.310,541 $ 534,608
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND ClIANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR HIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Budgel Final Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 1,185,950 $ 1,185,950 $ 1,276,443 $ 90,493
Intergovernmental 120,000 120,000 (120,000)
Fines and forfeitures 613 613
Rents and royalties 63,015 63,015 77,333 14,318

Investment income 18,044 18,044

Total revenues 1.368,965 1.368,965 1.372,433 3,468

EXPENDITURES
Community support

Economic development
Salaries and wages 431,809 431,809 380,530 51,279
Employee benefits 171,743 171,743 160,376 11,367
Services and supplies 4,678,733 2,678,733 179,543 2,499,190

Capital outlay 240,000 2240,000 2,070,856 169,144

Total economic development 5,522,285 5,522,285 2,791305 2,730,980

Other
Salaries and wages 17,822 17,822 21,281 (3,459)
Employee benefits 6,612 6,612 9,563 (2,951)

Services and supplies 469 469 554 (85)

Total other 24,903 24,903 31.398 (6,495)

Total community support 5,547,188 5,547,188 2,822,703 2,724,485

Total expenditures 5,547,188 5,547,188 2,822,703 2,724,485

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (4,178,223) (4,178,223) (1,450,270) 2,727,953

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (300,000) (300,000) (300,000)

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (4,478,223) (4,478,223) (1,750,270) 2,727,953

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 12,203,891

Adjustment 8,198

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED 11.389,919 12,203,891 12,212,089 8,198

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 6,911.696 $ 7,725,668 $ 10,461,819 $ 2736151
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

LIBRARV DISTRICf SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCIIEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES A D CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACfUAL

FOR TilE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Property laxes $ 2,433,805 $ 2,433,805 $ 2,451,422 $ 17,617
Intergovernmental 4,600 4,600
Fines and forfeitures 64,050 64,050 72,055 8,005
Contributions 20,000 20,000 (20,000)
Miscellaneous 40,440 40,440 57,624 17,184

Total revenues 2,558,295 2,558,295 2,585,701 27,406

EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation

Library district operations
Salaries and wages 1,280,766 1,457,516 1,418,593 38,923
Employee benefits 500,546 599,118 593,503 5,615
Services and supplies 638,960 673,562 490,405 183,157

TOlallibrary district operations 2,420,272 2,730,196 2,502,501 227,695

Other
Services and supplies 49,640 (49,640)

Total culture and recreation 2,420,272 2,730,196 2,552,141 178,055

Debt service
Principal payments 335,000 335,000 335,000
Interest and fiscal charges 137,760 137,760 137,751 9

TOlal debt service 472,760 472,760 472,751 9

Total expenditures 2,893,032 3202956 3,024,892 178,064

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (334,737) (644,66 I) (439,191) 205,470

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 49,640 49,640

Transfers out (562,264) (562,264) (562,264)

TOlal other financing sources (uses) (562,264) (562,264) (512,624) 49,640

CIIANGE IN FUND BALANCE (897,001) (1,206,925) (951,815) 255,110

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 1,678,931
Adjustment 15,906

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED 1.359,523 1,678,931 1,694,837 15,906

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 462,522 $ 472,006 $ 743,022 $ 271,016
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

SPECIAL PURPOSE REVENUE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

REVENUES
Property taxes
Room taxes
Intergovernmental
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

$ 8,560,143 $ 8,560,143 $ 8,399,381 $ (160,762)
383,888 383,888

4,581,250 4,690,035 4,130,322 (559,713)
125 125

300,840 300,840 28.355 (272,485)

13,442,233 13,551,018 12,942071 (608,947)

EXPENDITURES
General government

City attorney
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total city attorney

Other
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total other

Total general government

Public safety
Protective services

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total public safety

78
55
2

135

56,500 61,783 16,218
3,500 4,896 6,537

238,000 340,106 334,275
298,000 406,785 357,030

298,000 406,785 357,165

1,269,022 1,269,022 1,297,301
496,930 496,930 545,137

1,685,195 1,685,195 1,141,727

3,451,147 3,451,147 2,984,165

(78)
(55)

(2)
(135)

45,565
(1,641)
5,831

49,755

49,620

(28,279)
(48,207)
543,468

466,982

Public works
Administration

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total administration

Streets
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Total streets

Engineering
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total engineering

(Continued)

9,629 (9,629)
5,736 (5,736)

255 (255)
15,620 (15,620)

1,854,187 1,854,187 1,489,563 364,624
765,163 765,163 618,473 146,690

2,036,996 2,036,996 1,336,248 700,748
288,400 26,962 (26,962)

4,944746 4,656,346 3,471.246 1,185,100

2,150 (2,150)
1,290 (1,290)

57 (57)
3,497 (3,497)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

SPECIAL PURPOSE REVENUE SPECIAL REVE UE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE· BUDGET TO ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

FOR TIlE YEAll ENDED JUNE 30,2013

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

Survey
Salaries and wages 23,106 (23,106)
Employee benefits 9,660 (9,660)

Services and supplies 604 (604)

TOlal survey 33,370 (33,370)

Total public works 4,944,746 4,656,346 3,523,733 1,132,613

Culture and recreation
Administration

Services and supplies 34,465 (34,465)

Parks and grounds
Services and supplies 689,216 689,216 600,939 88,277

TOlal culture and recrealion 689,216 689,216 635,404 53,812

Community support
Housing and neighborhood services

Salaries and wages 26 (26)
Employee benefits 7 (7)

Services and supplies I (1)

Tolal housing and neighborhood services 34 (34)

Other
Services and supplies 300,000 300,000 28,155 271.845

Total community support 300,000 300,000 28,189 271.811

Total expendilUres 9,683,109 9,503,494 7,528,656 1,974,838

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 3,759,124 4,047,524 5,413,415 1.365,891

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from capilal asset disposal 17,186 17,186

Transfers in 48,400

Transfers QUI (3,816,870) (4,251,795) (4,251,795)

Total other financing sources (uses) (3,768,470) (4,251.795) (4,234,609) 17,186

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (9,346) (204,271) 1.178 806 1,383,077

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 9,662,026

Adjustment 51.523

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF VEAR, AS ADJUSTED 6,817,536 9,662,026 9,713,549 51,523

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR S 6808,190 S 9,457,755 S 10,892,355 S 1,434,600
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MORE COPS SALES TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCIlEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND ClIA GES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR TilE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Public safety

Police
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capilaloutlay

Total expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from capital asset disposal
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uscs)

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

$ 8,433,530 $ 8,433,530 $ 9,048,291 $ 614,761
17,220 17,220 5.304 (11,916)

8.450,750 8.450,750 9,053,595 602,845

5,139,742 5,139,742 5,103,708 36,034
3,250,586 3,250,586 3,361,608 (111,022)

520,335 520,335 439,404 80,931
260,000

9,170,663 8,910,663 8,904,720 5,943

(719,913) (459,913) 148875 608,788

2,347 2,347
590,402 590,402 590,402

(260,000) (260,000)
590,402 330.402 332,749 2,347

(129,511) (129,511) 481,624 611,135

4,664,539 5,165,868 5,165,868

$ 4,535,028 $ 5,036,357 $ 5,647.492 $ 611,135
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

PARK CONSTRUCTION TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Residential construction taxes $ 200,000 $ 200,000 $ 332,595 $ 132,595
Investment income 9,810 9,810 2,888 (6,922)

Total revenues 209,810 209,810 335,483 125,673

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 209,810 209,810 335,483 125,673

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers Qui (424000) (424,000) (424,000)

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (214,190) (214,190) (88,517) 125,673

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,927,369 2,097,659 2097659

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 1,713,179 $ 1.883.469 $ 2,009,142 $ 125,673
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

PUBLIC SAFETY SUPPORT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES I FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR TilE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 193,700 $ 193,700 $ 194,196 $ 496
Charges for services 31,464 31,464
Intergovernmental 3,890,981 7,203,027 3,260,651 (3,942,376)
Fines and forfeitures 319,350 659,708 340,358
Contributions 45,797 18,587 21,837 3,250
Investment income (36) (36)

Miscellaneous 207,000 101.164 216,138 114,974

Total revenues 4,337,478 7,835,828 4383,958 (3.451,870)

EXPENDITURES
Public safety

Police
Salaries and wages 2,278,984 4,097,504 1,595,178 2,502,326
Employee benefits 1,053,493 2,208,086 822,500 1,385,586
Services and supplies 888,908 1,678,826 1,395,756 283,070
Capilal outlay 186.480 434,567 419,868 14,699

Tolal police 4407,865 8,418,983 4,233,302 4,185681

Corrections
Salaries and wages 15,000
Employee benefits 900
Services and supplies 79,864 6,130 73,734

Total corrections 15,900 79,864 6,130 73,734

Protective services
Salaries and wages 41,416 (41,416)
Employee benefits 17,712 (17,712)
Services and supplies 100,000 100,000 69,537 30463

Total protective services 100,000 100,000 128.665 (28,665)

Total expenditures 4,523,765 8,598,847 4,368,097 4,230.750

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (186,287) (763,019) 15.861 778,880

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 9,500 9,500
Transfers in 426,000 579,490 579,490
Transfers QUI (22,119) (22,119)

Total other financing sources 426,000 588,990 566,871 (22,119)

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 239,713 (174,029) 582,732 756,761

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 2,522,123
Adjuslment 2,206

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED 9.662,026 2,522,123 2,524,329 2,206

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 1,877,367 $ 2348,094 $ 3,107,061 $ 758,967
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MU ',ClPAL COURT SUPPORT SPECIAL REVEN E F D

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDIT RES AND OIANGES I ' FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Budget ..LF",in",.I",B",u",dg"""I -"A",,,,,,u,,,.I V".!!!.n!!!·.!!!nee£..._

REVENUES
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

TOlal revenues

s 350,000 S
675,000

1,025,000

350,000 S
675,000

1,025,000

382,308 S
616,341

998,649

32,308
(58,659)

(26,351)

EXPENDITURES
Judicial

Municipal court
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

201,728 369,891 301,399 68,492
84,732 162,042 136,996 25,046

951.663 955,868 264,038 691.830

1,238.123 1487,801 702.433 785.368

(213,123) (462.801) 296,216 759,017

(320.209) (JOO,OOO) f300,OOO)

(533,332) (762,801) (3,784) 759,017

1,587,673 2,085,770 2,085,770

$ 1,054,341 S 1,322,969 S 2,081,986 S 759,017
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Budget Final Budgel Actual Variance

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 16,173,880 $ 16,173,880 $ 3,074,252 $ (13,099,628)
Miscellaneous 266,000 266,000 247927 (18,073)

Total revenues 16,439,880 16.439,880 3,322,179 (13,117,701)

EXPENDITURES
Community support

Housing and neighborhood services
Salaries and wages 707,898 772,049 640,834 131,215
Employee benefits 299,753 327,858 266,362 61,496
Services and supplies 8,215,199 8,216,803 1,682,127 6,534,676
Capital outlay 712,600 712,600 712,600

Total housing and neighborhood services 9,935450 10,029.310 2,589323 7,439,987

Other
Employee benefits 3,368 (3,368)
Capital outlay 5,483 (5,483)

Total other 8,851 (8,851)

Tolal expenditures 9935,450 10,029,310 2,598,174 7,431,136

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 6,504,430 6,410,570 724,005 (5,686,565)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 13,576 13,576

Transfers out (2,078,868) (2,251,048) (508.398) 1,742,650

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,078,868) (2,251,048) (494,822) 1,756,226

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 4,425,562 4,159,522 229,183 (3,930.339)

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 2,565,788
Adjustment 2,385,730

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED I 813,070 4,951,519 4,951.518 (1)

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 6,238,632 S 9,111.041 $ 5,180,701 $ (3,930.340)
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

ON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to the repayment of debt
principal and interest.

Debt Service
Accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general obligation medium- and long-tenn debt principal and interest.

Additionally, this fund is used to account for the collection and accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest
payments pertaining to those special assessments levied against and secured by a lien upon property within certain assessment districts, for
which the City is financially obligated in the event there arc deficiencies.





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND eHA GES IN Fu D BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Property taxes S 870,001 $ 870,001 $ 970,276 $ 100,275
Special assessments 2,119,790 2,390,490 2,202,185 (188,305)
Fines and forfeitures 550 3,040 2,490
Investment income 9.495 9.495 2.359 (7.136)

Total revenues 2.999.286 3,270.536 3.177.860 (92676)

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal payments 5,323,600 5,593,600 5,593,600
Interest and fiscal charges 3.124.750 3.126.500 3.108.918 17.582

Total expenditures 8.448.350 8.720.100 8.702.518 17.582

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (5.449.064) (5,449,564) (5.524.658) (75.094)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 5.449.850 5.449.850 5.449.850

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 786 286 (74.808) (75.094)

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 3,353,006
Adjustment 6.672

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED 4.043.952 3.353.006 3.359.678 6,672

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 4.044.738 S 3 353.292 S 3.284.870 S (68.422)
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECfS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J NE 30, 2013

Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources that arc restricted, committed or assigned to the improvement, acquisition or
construction ofcapital assets.

General Government Improvements
Accounts for various general government capital improvement projects.

Capital Projects Street Improvements
Accounts for the design, acquisition, constroction and improvements of and to various streets and roadways within the City limits.

Municipal Buildings Facilities
Accounts for the costs of acquisition, construction, equipping and furnishing of various new facilities financed through the issuance of general

obligation bonds.

Civic Center Facilities
Accounts for the costs of acquisition, conSiruclion. equipping and furnishing of a new civic cenler facilily financed through the sale ofgeneral

obligation bonds.





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

No -MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2013

General Capilal Projects Municipal
Government Street Buildings Civic Center TOlal Capital

Improvements Improvements Facilities Facilities Projects

ASSETS
Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 184,447 $ 3,108,990 $ 7,575,842 $ 8,611,164 $ 19,480,443
Accounts receivable, net 229,498 229,498

Grants receivable 1.474.028 1.474.028

Total assets $ 184.447 $ 4.812,516 $ 7.575842 $ 8.611,164 $ 21.183.969

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities $ $ 1,019,155 $ 64,308 $ 133,461 $ 1,216,924
Accrued salaries and benefits 35,440 382 2,286 38,108
Due 10 other governments 40,080 40,080
Unearned revenue 40.399 40.399

Total liabilities 1.135.074 64.690 135.747 1335511

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 1.135.074 64.690 135.747 1.335,511

FUND BALANCES
Nonspcndnble
Restricted for

Buildings and facilities projects 7,791,018 7,791,018
Suect improvmenls projects 3,677,442 3,677,442
Other capital projects 49.438 3,942,679 3,992,117
Police, fire and other public safety programs and

projects 135,000 3,568,473 3,703,473
Commiued to

Buildings and facilities projccts 684,399 684,399
Other capital projects 9 9

Total fund balances 184.447 3,677.442 7.511.152 8.475.417 19,848.458

Totolliabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances $ 184.447 $ 4,812.516 $ 7,575,842 $ 8,611 164 $ 21,183,969
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPE D1TURES AND CHANGES IN FU D BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

General Capital Projects Municipal
Government Street Buildings Civic Center Total Capital

Improvements Improvements Facilities Facilities Projects

REVENUES
Intergovernmental S S 14,043,110 S S S 14,043,110
InveSlment income 15,046 11.406 26.452

Total revenues 14,043,110 15,046 11,406 14,069.562

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 63,217 63,217
Public safety 795,313 795,313
Public works 2,584.499 2,584.499

Total current 2,584.499 795,313 63,217 3,443,029

Capital outlay
General government 121,500 l,n2,132 1,843,632
Public safety 1,175,253 1,175,253
Public works 13,037,616 13,037,616

Total capital outlay 121.500 13,037,616 1,175,253 l,n2,132 16,056,501

Total expenditures 121,500 15,622,115 1,970.566 1,785,349 19.499,530

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (121,500) (1.579,005) (1,955.520) (1,773,943) (5.429,968)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,901,258 3,200,000 155,875 5,257,133
Transfers out (3,200,000) (3,200,000)

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,901,258 155,875 2,057,133

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (121,500) 322,253 (1,955,520) (1,618,068) (3,3n,835)

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNI G OF YEAR 305,947 3,355,189 9.466,6n 10,093.485 23,221,293

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR S 184,447 S 3,677,442 S 7,511,152 S 8.475,417 S 19,848.458
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CITY OF ORTH LAS VEGAS

GE 'ERAL GOVERNMENT L\IPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECfS F NO
SCUED LE OF REVENUES, EXPENDIT RES AND CHANGES [ FUND BALANCE - B DGH TO ACf AL

FOR TIlE YEAR E 'OED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

EXPENDITURES
General government

Other
Capital outlay

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

$,----$

184,447

121,500 $

(121,500)

305,947

121,500 $ _

(121,500)

305,947

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 184,447 $ 184,447 $ 184,447 $====

105



CITY OF ORTH LAS VEGAS

CAPITAL PROJECTS STREET IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CIlA 'GES L'I F '0 BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J NE 30, 2013

Original Budget -!:F.!!;n"',-1B",,,,,d,,g,,,e,-' -"A"C"'lu,,''-1 V'"'.!!.d"'."nc"c~

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous

$ 27,408,800 $
500,000

27,408,800 $
500,000

14,043,110 $ (13,365,690)
(500,000)

Total revenues 27,908,800 27,908,800 14043110 (13,865,690)

EXPENDITURES
Public works

Administration
Salaries and wages
Employee ~nefits

Services and supplies
Total administration

Flood control
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Total nood control

Streets
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Total streets

Engineering
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total engineering

Real property
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total real property

Construction
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total construction

Survey
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total survey

(Continued)

18,766 (18,766)
11,090 (11,090)

488 (488)
30,344 QO,344)

1,341 (1,341)
857 (857)
36 (36)

1.612,862 (1,612,862)
1,615,096 (1,615,096)

1,237,700 1,237,700 1,237,700
538,500 538,500 538,500

1,547,700 2,547,700 1,437,417 1,110,283
28,022,900 27,022,900 11.290,993 15,731,907
31,346,800 31.346,800 12,728,410 18,618.390

251,108 (251,108)
151,345 (151,345)

6,503 (6,503)
408,956 (408,956)

109,654 (109,654)
65,257 (65,257)

2,869 (2,869)
177,780 (177,780)

168,425 (168,425)
90,790 (90,790)

4,125 (4,125)
263,340 (263,340)

102,287 (102,287)
58,764 (58,764)
2,681 (2,681)

163,732 (163,732)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

CAPITAL PROJECfS STREET IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECfS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXI'ENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACfUAL (CONTINUED)
FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Budget Finnl Budget Actual Variance

Other
Salaries and wages 68,991 (68,991)
Employee benefits 30,594 (30,594)
Services and supplies 1,111 (1,111)
Capital outlay 133,761 (133,761)

Total other 234,457 (234,457)

Total public works 31,346,800 3 1.346,800 15,622,115 15,724,685

Total expenditures 31,346,800 31,346,800 15,622,115 15724685

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (3,438,000) (3,438,000) (1,579,005) 1,858,995

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 2751712 2,751,712 1,901,258 (850,454)

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (686,288) (686,288) 322,253 1,008,541

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,916,570 3355,189 3,355,189

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR S 9,230,282 S 2,668,901 S 3,677,442 S 1.008,541
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS FACILITIES CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHA 'GES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Investment income $ 64,480 $ 64,480 $ I5,046 $_--.J(~49..,4~3:!.J4)

EXPENDITURES
Public safety

Police
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits

Total police

Other
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Total other

Total expenditures

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

311 (311)
20 (20)

331 (331)

18,800 162,189 84,053 78,136
8,200 103,793 5,872 97,921

2,513,500 1,233,562 705,057 528,505
1,040,956 1,175,253 (134,297)

2,540,500 2,540,500 1.970,235 570,265

2,540,500 2,540,500 I,970,566 569,934

(2,476,020) (2,476,020) (1.955,520) 520,500

3,200,000 3,200,000
(3,200,000) (3,200,000)

(2,476,020) (2,476,020) (1,955,520) 520,500

8,412,603 9,466,672 9,466,672

$ 5,936,583 $ 6,990,652 $ 7,511,152 $ 520,500
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

CIVIC CENTER FACILITIES CAPITAL PROJEcr FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO AcrUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J NE 30, 2013

Original Budget Final Budget AClUal Variance

REVENUES
Investment income $, $ $ 11.406 $__-"1.!.1.~40~6

EXPENDITURES
General government

Finance
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies

Total finance

Other
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capilal oUllay

Total other

Total general government

Total expenditures

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

1,789 (1,789)
1,171 (1,171)

24.227 (24.227)
27.187 (27.187)

22,727 (22,727)
12,296 (12,296)

24,180 1,007 23,173
4,325.820 1.722.132 2.603.688
4.350.000 1,758.162 2,591 ,838

4.350.000 1,785.349 2,564.651

4.350.000 1.785.349 2.564.651

(4,350.000) (1.773.943) 2,576057

536.750 155.875 155.875

536,750 (4,194,125) (1,618,068) 2,576,057

4,600,964 10.093.485 10.093,485

$ 5,137.714 $ 5.899.360 $ 8.475.417 $ 2,576.057
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MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MAJOR ENTERPRISE FuNDS

FDR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Enterprise funds arc used to account for activites for which a user fee is charged for goods or services.

Wastewater Utility
Accounts for the collection from the residents of the City and the transmission ofsewage through the system infrastructure for treatment and

release into Lake Mead.

Water Utility
Accounts for the delivery ofwater services through the system infrastructure to the residents of the City and other service areas.





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

WASTEWATER UTILlTV ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR TilE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3D, 2013

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

OPERATING REVENUES
Utility fees S 35.766,280 S 35,166.280 S 36,178,261 S 411,981
Construction fees 5,000 252.362 247,362
Connection fees 865.000 860.000 1.271.790 411,790
Other charges for services 200,000 200,000 (200,000)
Fines and forfeitures 533,000 533,000 586.592 53,592
Miscellaneous 270400 7.105,800 7,303,991 198.191

TOlal operating revenues 37,634,680 44,470,080 45,592.996 1,122,916

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 4,243.530 4.565,824 3,949,179 616,645
Employee benefits 1,627.220 1,765.245 1,594.991 170,254
Services and supplies 16,027,668 15,614,924 6,915.119 8,699,805
Depreciation and amortization 4575.000 4,575.000 10,911,593 (6.336593)

Total operating expenses 26.473,418 26,520,993 23,370.882 3.150,111

Operating income 11.161,262 17,949,087 22,222,114 4.273.027

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 136,985 136.985
Intcrest and fiscal charges (15,445.870) (15,445,870) (15,289,855) 156,015
Intergovernmental 5,657,750 5,657.750 6,504,708 846.958

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (9,788.120) (9,788,120) (8,648.162) 1,139,958

Income before capital contributions and transfers 1,373,142 8.160.967 13,573,952 5,412,985

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital contributions 1.187.885 1,187,885

TRANSFERS
Transfers out (13875909) (13,797,000) (13,797,000)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION S (12,502.767) S (5,636,033) 964,837 S 6,600,870

NET POSITION. BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 173,249,699
Adjustment (7,237,243)

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED 166012,456

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR S 166,977,293
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CITY OF ORTH LAS VEGAS

WATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FUND
SCIIEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEN ES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - B DGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Budget Final Budgel Actual Variance

OPERATING REVENUES
Utility fees S 45,377,660 S 45,377,660 S 47,108,554 S 1,730,894
Construction fees 35,000 240,769 205,769
Connection fees 40,000 5,000 722,234 717,234
Other charges for services 1,698,060 1,698,060 1,758,806 60,746
Fines and forfeitures 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,463,213 163,213
Miscellaneous 630,900 655,900 796,783 140,883

Total operating revenues 49,046,620 49,071,620 52,090,359 3,018,739

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 6,907,015 7,354,719 6,496,510 858,209
Employee OO1efits 2,668,591 2,858,065 2,695,633 162,432
Services and supplies 24,238,046 24,009,237 17,698,171 6,311,066
Depreciation and amortization 5,400,000 5,400,000 5,502,340 (102,340)

Total operating expenses 39,213,652 39,622,021 32,392,654 7,229,367

Operating income 9,832,968 9,449,599 19,697,705 10,248,106

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and fiscal charges (871,090) (871,090) (757,784) 113,306

Income before capital contributions and transfers 8,961,878 8,578,509 18,939,921 10,361,412

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital contributions 1,280,774 1,280,774

TRANSFERS
Transfers in 769,656 769,656 (769,656)
Transfers oul (17,827,907) (17,703,000) (17,703,000)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION S (8,096.373) S 18,354,835) 2,517,695 S 10,872.530

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR. AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 133,394,020
Adjustment 692,531

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED 134,086,551

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR S 136,604,246
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NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNOS

FOR THE YEAR ENOEO J NE 30, 2013

Enterprise funds are used to account for activites for which a user fee is charged for goods or services.

Municipal GolfCourses
AccounlS for lilt operations ora nine-hole par-) golf course and an 18-hole par-72 championship course.





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MUNICIPAL GOLF COURSES ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITIO - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

OPERATING REVENUES
User fees $ 1,469,180 $ 2,133,990 $ 1,791,915 $ (342,075)
Miscellaneous 106,955 106,955

Total operating revenues 1,469,180 2,133,990 1,898,870 (235,120)

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 255,832 1,004,882 159,938 844,944
Employee benefits 75,304 218,704 38,509 180,195
Services and supplies 1,739,181 1,506,577 1,890,378 (383,801)
Depreciation and amortization 229,800 229,800 229,623 177

Total operating expenses 2,300,117 2,959,963 2,318,448 641,515

Operating loss (830,937) (825,973) (419,578) 406,395

Loss before transfers (830,937) (825,973) (419,578) 406,395

TRANSFERS
Transfers in 66,010 66,010 66,010

CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ (764,927) $ (759,963) (353,568) $ 406,395

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREYIOUSLY REPORTED 7,133,467
Adjustment 27,660

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED 7,161,127

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 6,807,559
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR TIlE YEAR E DED JUNE 30, 2013

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing ofgoods or services provided by onc depanmenl or agency to other departments or agencies
of the government and to other governmental units, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Motor Equipment
Accounts for repairs, maintenance, fuel and services to vehicles of all departments of the City.

Self-insurance Reserve
Accounts for costs inculTtd in self-insuring liability claims, unemployment, employee and retiree health care (including medical, dental and

vision), workers' compensation programs and post employment benefits other than pensions.





CITY OF ORTH LAS VEGAS

INTERNAL SERVICE Fu OS
COMBINI 'G STATEMENT OF ET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013

Motor Self·insurance TOlal Internal
Equipment Re.~erve Service Funds

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash, cash equivalents and investments S 1,104,485 S 16,I21,3OQ S 17,225,785
Cash, cash equivalents and investments, designated for specific purposes 2,112,799 2,112,799
Accounts receivable, net 262,725 262,725
Prepaid items 171,996 171,996
Due from other funds 414,977 414,977
Inventories 235,750 235,750
Restricted assets

Cash, cash equivalents and investments 1,910,874 1,910,874

Total current assets 3,453,034 18,881,872 22,334,906

Noncurrent lliSelS
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization

Construction in progress 80,030 80,030
Buildings and building improvements 282,215 282,215
Improvements other than buildings 96,834 96,834
Machinery, equipmenl and software 680,973 680,973

TOlal noncurrent asselS 1,140,052 1,140,052

Total assets 4.593,086 18,881,872 23,474,958

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 336,644 7,811,OQ7 8,147,651
Accrued salaries and benefits 56,487 238,740 295,227
Due to other funds 2,550 1,483 4,033
Due to other governments 266 125,454 125,720
Customer deposits 1,447 1,447
Compensated absences 43,931 35,200 79,131

Total current liabilities 439,878 8,213,331 8,653,209

Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences 229,870 184,182 414,052
Postemploymenl benefits other than pensions 10,214,355 10,214,355

Total noncurrent liabilities 229,870 10,398,537 10,628.407

Total liabilities 669,748 18,611,868 19,281,616

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,140,052 1,140,052
Unrestricted 2783286 270004 3053290

Total net position S 3,923,338 S 270,004 S 4,193,342
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

INTER1'lAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES A D CHA 'GES IN NET POSITION

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Motor Self-insurance TotallntemBI
Equipment Reserve Service Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Other charges for services S 4,193,576 S 21,192,361 S 25,385,937

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 830,093 6,732,387 7,562,480
Employee benefits 311,179 2,671,642 2,982,821
Services and supplies 2,984,176 15,620,046 18,604,222
Depreciation and amortization 499,577 499,577

Total operating expenses 4,625,025 25,024,075 29,649,100

Operating loss (431,449) (3,831.714) (4,263,163)

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Investment income 4,864 4,864
Gain on capital asset disposition 22,834 22,834

Total nonoperating revenues 22,834 4864 27,698

Loss before lransfers (408,615) (3,826,850) (4,235,465)

TRANSFERS
Transfers in 694,925 2,955,510 3,650,435
Transfers Qui (590,402) (590,402)

Totallransfers 104,523 2,955,510 3,060,033

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (304,092) (871,340) (1,175,432)

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 4,071,110 828,024 4,899,134
Adjustment 156,320 313,320 469,640

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED 4,227,430 1,141.344 5,368774

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR S 3,923,338 S 270,004 S 4,193,342
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

INTERNAL SERIVICE FU OS
COMBINI '0 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Motor Self-insurance Total Internal
Eguipment Reserve Service Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIViTIES
Cash received from interfund services $ 4,193,890 $ 22,481,536 $ 26,675,426
Cash payments for goods and services (2,941,637) (13,108,777) (16,050,414)
Cash payments for employee services (1,119.378) (8,004,945) (9,124323)

Net cash provided by operating activities 132,875 1,367,814 1,500,689

CASH FLOWS FROM ONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIViTIES
Transfers in 694,925 2,955,510 3,650,435
Transfers out (590,402) (590,402)

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 104,523 2,955,510 3,060033

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIViTIES
Acquisition and construction ofcapital assets (308,074) (308,074)
Proceeds received from disposal ofcapital assets 33,485 33,485

Net cash used in capital financing activities (274,589) (274,589)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIViTIES
Investment income received 4,864 4,864

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (37,191) 4,328,188 4,290,997

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3.254,475 13,703,986 16,958,461

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 3,217.284 $ 18,032,174 $ 21.249,458

(431,449) $ (3,831,714)$ (4,263,163)

499,577 499,577
2,830 2,830

(167,351) (167,351)
1,451,696 1,451,696

(52,145) (52,145)
2,000 71,006 73,006

92,778 2,466,890 2,559,668
17,101 (51,362) (34,261)

314 422 736
(94) (26,627) (26,721)

1,578 1,578
4,793 83,779 88,572

1,366,667 1,366.667
564,324 5,199,528 5,763,852

132,875 $ 1,367,814 $ 1,500,689

$,_--=""",,"",

et cash provided by operating activities

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH PROVIDED BYOPERATING
ACTIViTIES

Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to nct cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation
Provision for uncollectible receivables
(Increase) decrease in operating assets

Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Inventories
Prepaid items

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Customer deposits
Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits other than pensions

Total adjustments

117



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

MOTOR EQUIP lENT ENTERPRISE FUND

SCBEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR TBE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

OPERATING REVENUES
Other charges for services $ 4,952,899 $ 5,035,747 $ 4,193,576 $ (842,171)

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 769.178 769.178 830.093 (60.915)
Employee benefits 303.329 303.329 311.179 (7.850)
Services and supplies 2,470.996 2.959.198 2.984,176 (24.978)
Depreciation and amortization 1,125,500 1.125,500 499,577 625,923

Total operating expenses 4,669,003 5,157,205 4.625.025 532,180

Operating loss 283.896 (121 ,458) (431 ,449) (309,991)

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Gain on capital asset disposition 5,353 22,834 17,481

Income (loss) before transfers 283,896 (116,105) (408,615) (292,510)

TRANSFERS
Transfers in 694.925 694.925
Transfers out (1,435,402) (590,402) (590,402)

Total transfers (1,435,402) 104,523 104,523

CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ (1,151.506)$ (11,582) (304,092) $ (292,510)

NET POSITION. BEGINNING OF YEAR. AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 4.071.110
Adjustment 156.320

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR. AS ADJUSTED 4,227.430

NET POSITION. END OF YEAR $ 3,923,338
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

SELF-INSURA 'CE RESERVE ENTERPRISE FuND
SCIIEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CIIANGES IN ET POSITION - B DGH TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Bude:ct Final Bude.et Actual Variance

OPERATING REVENUES
Other charges for services S 13.270,415 S 13,270,415 S 21.192.361 S 7.921.946

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 4,857,499 4,843,876 6,732,387 (1,888,511)
Employee benefits 4,094,158 3,987,658 2,671,642 1,316,016
Services and supplies 6.426,187 6,578.887 15,620.046 (9.041.159)

Total operating expenses 15377,844 15,410,421 25.024,075 (9,613.654)

Operating loss (2,1 07,429) (2,140,006) (3,831.714) (1.691.708)

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Investment income 4.864 4,864

Loss before transfers (2.107.429) (2,140.006) (3,826.850) (1.686.844)

TRANSFERS
Transfers in 2.673.765 2.555,510 2.955,510 400.000

CIIANGE IN NET POSITION S 566336 S 415,504 (871.340) S (1.286.844)

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 828,024
Adjustment 313.320

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED 1.141.344

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR S 270,004
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

AGE 'CY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Agency funds are used to account for assets held as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments or other funds.

Bail Deposits
Accounts for funds deposited or pledged for the release of a suspect from detention, with the understanding that the suspect will relum for trial

or forfeit the bail (and possibly be brought up on charges of the crime or failure to appear).

Non-forfeiture Holding
Accounts for those funds associated with the seizure of narcotics from a suspect to be held until such lime as a trial is held and a detennination

is made with regard to the purpose of the funds.

Other Deposits
Accounts for funds deposited by developers in-lieu ora surety bond.

Business Cleanup Deposits
Accounts for those deposit requirements as a condition to the issuance of a special use permit in the event the business fails to adequately clean

up the area after the special event

Special Trust Reward
Accounts for funds from Clark County to be used as a reward to eligible tipsters who provide information thai directly leads to the whereabouts

of Everlyse Cabrera and the subsequent felony arrest andlor indictment.

Employee Insurance Deposits
Accounts for employee and employer contributions to group health and life insurance. which are held until they are disbursed to the City's

insurance carriers.

Workers' Compensation Retention
Accounts for funds held by the State of Nevada as a retention requirement.

Contractor Retention Accounts
Accounts for money withheld from contract payments as retention requirements in construction contracts.

New Construction Privilege Tax
Accounts for funds collected from new construction by the City and remitted to Clark County. Nevada.

Convention Authority Tax
Accounts for for gaming taxes and room tax receipts collected from North Las Vegas businesses by the City and transmitted to the Las Vegas

Convenlion and Visitors Authority.

Garbage Company Collection
Accounts for billings and collections by the City for garbage pick·up services perfonned by a local disposal company.

Inmate Deposits
Accounts for funds held for inmates in the City Detention Center until they are released or transferred.

SlAD No. S4 (Civic Center Drive DcveJopmenl)
Accounts for the collection of property assessments pledged for the payment of principal and interest and for which no assets or revenues of the

City have been pledged.

SlAD No. 60 (Allante Development)
Accounts for the collection ofpropcny assessments pledged for the payment of principal and interest and for which no assets or revenues of the

City have been pledged.





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND L'AfllLITIES

JUNE 30, 2013

Business Employee Contractor
Non-forfeiture Cleanup Special Trust Insurance Retention

Bail Deposits Holding Other Deposits Deposits Reward Deoosils Accounts

ASSETS
Cash, cash equivalents and investments S 209,513 S 427,407 S 2,532,813 S 11,749 S 15,000 S 284,677 S 3,615,120
Accounts receivable, net
Interest receivable
Special assessments receivable

Total assets S 209.513 S 427.407 S 2.532,813 S 11.749 S 15,000 S 284.677 S 3.615.120

LIABILITIES
Due to other governments S S S S S S S
Due to developers 3,615,058
Due to others 209.513 427.407 2.532,813 II ,149 15,000 284,677 62

TOlalliabilities S 209,513 S 427,407 S 2,532,813 S 11,749 S 15,000 S 284,677 S 3,615,120

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2013

New
Construction
Privilege Tnx

Convention
Authority Tax

SlAD No. 54
Garbage (Civic Center
Company Drive
Collection Inmate Depo~its Development)

SIADNo.6O
(Alianlc TOlal Agency

Development) Funds

ASSETS
Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Accounts receivable, net
Lnieresl receivable
Special assessments receivable

TOlal asselS

LIABILITIES
Due 10 other governments
Due to developers
Due to others

TOlalliabilities

S 53,950 S 133,516 S 1,519,146 S 5,015 S 584,957 S 4,341,000 S 13,733,863
23,595 2,728,710 2,752,305

5,317 11,157 16,474
39.668 70.889 110.557

S 53.950 S 157.111 S 4.247.856 S 5.015 S 629.942 S 4.423,046 S 16.613.199

S 53,950 S 157,111 S S S S S 211,061
752 21,514 3,637,324

4,247,856 5,015 629,190 4.401.532 12.764.814

S 53.950 S 157.111 S 4.247.856 S 5.015 S 629.942 S 4,423,046 S 16,613,199
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

AGENCyF os

COMBI 'ING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE YEAR E 'OED JUNE 30, 2013

Balance Balance
July I 2012 Additions Deductions June 30 2013

BAIL DEPOSITS
ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 208.383 $ 429,057 $ 427927 $ 209,513

LIABILITIES

Due to olhers S 208,383 S 429,057 S 427,927 S 209513

NON·FORFEITURE HOLDING
ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments S 506,831 S 206,176 S 285,600 S 427,407

LIABILITIES

Due to others S 506,831 S 298,256 $ 377.680 $ 427,407

OTHER DEPOSITS
ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 2,457,374 S 735,614 $ 660,175 S 2,532813

LIABILITIES
Due to developers $ 308,399 S $ 308,399 $
Due to olhers 2.148,975 735,613 351,775 2,532,813

TOialliabilities $ 2.457,374 $ 735,613 $ 660,174 $ 2,532,813

BUSINESS CLEANUP DEPOSITS
ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 10,699 S 3,300 $ 2.250 $ 11,749
Accounts receivable, nct 50

Total assets $ 10,699 S 3.300 $ 2,300 $ 11.749

LIABILITIES

Due to (){hers S 10,699 $ 3,300 $ 2,300 $ II ,749

SPECIAL TRUST REWARD
ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 15,000 S S $ 15,000

LIABILITIES

Due to others $ 15.000 $ $ $ 15.000

EMPLOYEE INSURANCE DEPOSITS
ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and invesunents $ 192,112 S 11.505.211 $ 11.412,646 $ 284.677

LIABILITIES

Due to others $ 192.112 $ 11505.211 $ 11.412,646 $ 284.677

WORKERS' COMPE SATION RETENTION
ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and inveslments $ 1.739.466 S $ 1.739,466 S

LIAB ILITIES

Due to others $ 1,739,466 $ $ 1,739,466 $

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES I ' FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Balance Balance
July I 2012 Additions Deductions June 30 2013

CONTRACTOR RETENTION ACCOUNTS
ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 2,624,370 $ 3.205,243 $ 2214,493 $ 3,615,120

LIABILITIES
Due to developers $ 2,624,308 $ 3,205,243 $ 2,214,493 $ 3,615,058
Due to others 62 62

Total liabilities $ 2.624.370 $ 3.205.243 $ 2,214,493 $ 3.615.120

NEW CONSTRUCTION PRIVILEGE TAX
ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 51.200 $ 736.168 $ 733.418 $ 53.950

LIAB ILiTIES
Due to other governments $ 51.200 $ 736.168 $ 733.418 $ 53.950

CONVENTION AUTHORITY TAX
ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 111,328 $ 1,894,255 $ 1,872,067 $ 133,516
Accounts receivable, nct 26,243 101,772 104,420 23,595

Total assets $ 137,571 $ 1.996.027 $ 1,976.487 $ 157.111

LIAB ILiTIES
Due to other governments $ 137,571 $ 1.996.027 $ 1.976.487 $ 157.111

GARBAGE COMPANY COLLECTION
ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 1,669,758 $ 19,425,255 $ 19,575,866 $ 1,519,146
Accounts receivable, net 2.931.144 21,262,530 21.464.965 2.728.710

Total assets $ 4,600,902 $ 40.687.785 $ 41,040.831 $ 4.247.856

LIABILITIES

Due to others $ 4,600.902 $ 40.687.785 $ 41.040.831 $ 4,247.856

INMATE DEPOSITS
ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ $ 14,870 $ 9855 $ 5,015

LIABILITIES

Due to others $ $ 14,870 $ 9,855 $ 5015

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CIlANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

FOR TilE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013

Balance
July I 2012 Additions Deductions

Balance
June)O 2013

SIAD NO. 54 (CIVIC CENTER DRIVE DEVELOPMENT)
ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments
I..nterest receivable
Special assessments receivable

Total assets

LlAB ILiTIES
Due to developers
Due to others

Total liabilities

SlAD NO. 60 (ALlANTE DEVELOPMENT)
ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Interest receivable
Special assessments receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to developers
Due to others

Total liabilities

TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Accounts receivable, net
Interest receivable
Special assessments receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to other governments
Due to developers
Duc to others

Total liabilities

$ 640,637 $ 115,730 $ 171,410 $ 584,957
3,183 39,668 17,988 5,317

17.988 5.317 3.183 39.668

$ 661.808 $ 160,715 $ 192.581 $ 629.942

$ 328 $ 159,928 $ 159,504 $ 752
661.480 790 33.080 629.190

$ 661.808 $ 160,718 $ 192.584 $ 629.942

$ 4,093,715 $ 4,384,686 $ 4,137,401 $ 4,341,000
12,105 948 11,157
71.983 1094 70,889

$ 4.177.803 $ 4384.686 $ 4.139,443 $ 4.423,046

$ 23,556 $ 2,601,451 $ 2,603,493 $ 21,514
4:154.247 1.782.810 1.535.525 4401.532

$ 4,177.803 $ 4.384.261 $ 4.139.018 $ 4.423.046

$ 14,320,873 $ 42,655,565 $ 43,242,574 $ 13,733,863
2,957,387 21,364,302 21,569,435 2,752,305

15,288 39,668 18,936 16,474
89,971 5,317 4.277 110,557

$ 17.383.519 $ 64.064.852 $ 64,835,222 $ 16,613,199

$ 188,771 $ 2,732,195 $ 2,709,905 $ 211,061
2,956,591 5,966,622 5,285,889 3,637,324

14,238.157 55.457.692 56.931,085 12764 814

$ 17.383.519 $ 64, I56.509 $ 64 926.879 $ 16.613.199
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City ofNorth Las Vegas, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Las Vegas
(the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the fmancial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of cnntents, and have issued our
repon thereon dated December 12,2013.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting. In planning and performing our audit of the basic fmaneial
statements, we considered the City's internal control over financial reponing (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic
fmancial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal
controL Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness aCthe City's internal controL

Our consideration of internal control was for the linnited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies; and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been
identified. However, as discussed below, we identified a deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a
material weakness.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A rna/erial weakness is a deficiency. or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City's basic
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the
deficiency described in the accompanying schedule offmdings and questioned costs as item 2013 - 001, to be a
material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters. As pan of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's basic
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we perfomned tests of its compliance with cenain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of basic financial statement amounts, including whether the funds
established by the City, as listed in evada Revised Statutes (NRS) 354.624 (5XaX I through 5), complied with
the express purposes required by NRS 354.6241. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reponed under
Government Auditing Standards.

The City's Response to Findings. The City's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the

6100 Elton Avenue, Ste. 1000 • L.,s Vegas, Nevada 89107 • 702-384-1120 • fax 702-870-2474 • pbtk.com



accompanying schedule of fmdings and questioned costs. The City's response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic fmancial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated December 12,
2013.

Purpose of this Report. The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Las Vegas, Nevada
December 12, 2013
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

STATI TICAL INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Financial Trends
The following tables contain financiallrend infonnation to enable the reader 10 understand how financial performance has changed over time.

Net Position by Component
Changes in Net Position
Fund Balances. Governmental Funds
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Revenue Capacity
The following tables contain revenue capacity information 10 enable the reader to assess the most significant local revenue source.

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Property Tax Rates· Direct and Overlapping Governments
Principal Property Taxpayers
Propeny Tax Levies and Collections

Debt Capacity
The following tables contain debt capacity information to enable the reader to assess the afforability of the current level of outstanding dcbt and the

ability to issue additional debt in the future.
Ratios of Outstanding Dcbt by Type
Ratios ofGeneral Bonded Debt Outstanding
Direct and Overlapping Governmcntal Activities Debt
Legal Debt Margin Information

Demographic and Economic Information
The following tables contain demographic and economic information to cnable the reader to understand the environment within which financial

activities take place.
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Principal Employers

Operating Information
The fo11owing tables contain operating information to enable the reader to understand how the infonnation contained in the comprehensive annual

financial report relates to services provided and activities perfonned.
City Employees by FunclionIProgram
Operating Indicators by FunctionlProgram
Capital Asset Stalistics by FunctionIProgram





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS!')

(UNAUDITED)

June: 30, Ju.ne 30, JunclO. JIURJO. JunclO. June 30, June JO, JUIlC JO, June 10,

'00' 2006 2007 2001 - 2010 lOll 2012 ~

~lalKtivflia

Net investment in apital IIJt11 S 512,031,593 S 426,076,44) S 616,123,759 S 647,9SI,709 S 931,361,714 , I,OlS,611,1)4 S 1,001,326,661 S I,OlS,SSO,I11 S 1,109,70S,)14
Reslrkltd 52,742,169 219,962,997 11O,062,SJl 175,099,469 12.2,415 25,463,718 74,6S0,12l 70,216,644
UnrdlricleG SC.I'27.I04 90,019,008 (ll,I02,W)) ])4,661,363 126.2S4 4111 6S.197 112 49,244,494 (5131.60) (14,5)],811)

TOIal,OVfinmcnlaJ k1ivities 619,601.566 736,121,448 8)9,714.019 957,712.541 I,OSl.44S,611 1,010,101,2,46 I,On,O)4.873 1,IOot,J62,2SS 1,165,451,141

Bwinen"l~ activitia
Net i_rntne '" upilal tun. 122,S05,1I1 !"I,3S4,IU 10,131,044 31,022,471 191,611,514 21).075,462 11',\112,347 226,091,1)5 129,0)),SI6
Re$lootd S.S42,6S7 6,199,601 lJS,OI2.nl 159,367,463 10,945,111 1).)17,115 '7,537,'96 7,132,932 ',51',651
UI'IfC:tuieltd 15.m.•9oI 93561612 (9,67~) 11.181,662 ",5'6,3'5 66,022,121 57,8)0.202- 71.322255 73711.676

Total buli_I)'pCI activities 213,126,032 2'1,215,461 261,~I,)61 279,211,596 294.110,047 292,'1',698 287.280.045 )04,553.022 307,266.850

Prinwy pwmmrnl
Net invalmml in capilal aUC:1J 6)',537.'7' 57'.430,621 129.95',10) 615.97',110 1,1:29,987,361 1,221,616,596 1,190,239,001 1,261,6'11,012 1,))1,731,890
Resuicltd SI,284,I26 226,262,591 )05,1'5,061 ))',466,932 11,767,533 13,317,115 73,001,21' 11,713,653 7',101,302
Unrutne:le:d 140605.291 11].650690 (26.774,407) 216.550025 210100 764 131.219,23) 107.07'.696 65,413 612 59114799

Total prinwy IOWmme:n1 S 1)),427,591 S 914,)43,916 S 1,108,325,457 S 1.236,991,137 S 1,)'l,555,665 S 1,]73.212,944 , l,170,314.9J1 S 1.408.915,277 S 1,'72,n',991

fiKll year 2012 IlITlDUnlJ were InorxUvdy re:stattd in fistaJ year 2013
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS!')

(UNAUDITED)

JIIIlC 10, JunelO. June 1O, JIlIIe 30. JUIIe)O, Jllne JO, June 10, June JO, June 30,
200' 2006 2007 2001 2009 2010 2011 2012 ,

----1.2!!

"'''''''GoYUlVl'Ienl.J ac:livit~

QmenI lovemment S ]5,327,956 S 35,39'2,023 S ".4,52S,0I1 S n,lll,201 s 79,790,759 S 11,909,116 S 11,162,689 S 49,229,216 S 51,asS,I00
Judicial 6,H4,O)S 7,167,369 11,791,220 13,226,034 14,153,111 10,710,531 10,125,028 10,521,0]1 9,496,)48
Public ..rely IOS,ln,O'S 116,315,250 141,118,701 149,al6,812 160,41).'422 172,629,424 149,867,948 160,705,260 141,1Z4,400
l>ublic: workl 27,326,160 29,476,n. 16,982,106 30,401,379 26,999,130 16,79-4,79-4 13.69-(,463 IO,I6-t,862 11,197,29'
Culture and feo-euion 1),ISS,02 14,661,04 11,112,226 17,040,617 19,515,169 11,0«,295 14,ln,79S 1$,2-15,421 13,295,75)
Comn.uUty suppo« 5,117,904 <1,719,421 5,230,801 5,527,004 7,'97,550 15,363,130 1,239,125 1,107,016 5.161.17"
hila-est on 1onI-lam deb! ; ..17 971 ),)7".751 10,021.271 9,751.729 9 "17,251 1,146,31.5 1,175,9)1 3,106,240 .. 311 7)2

TOIaI 'ovcmrnmIal aaiviliu 1~,97••S)) 211,107.021 267,711••20 )03,62o.a36 31'.32',575 n",l67,67S 236,00,679 256,779,112 2.l.127,105

Business-1ypC aaiviliu
WUI~ln 15,)69.965 16,67".919 204,5-49,109 27.IIS,130 29.1'1.700 31,"0.97' )6,916.026 26,61.5,57" 3I.I06.09S
Wlln 2',626,ll. )2,l91,l,fS )6,"06,905 31,"91,105 l".652,.'1 )),191.)14 J2.-402,016 n.'6),713 )l."17.1)9
MUJlieipal aotrCOUr1et 111,1"1 I 66U67 1.696,700 1.165,239 1,'06.061 1.19I9S1 1.116.221 1..22111 2,32I.S2S

Tolal business-type lCIivitlet 44,171,247 50,728,6]1 61.6S),"I. 68 241,l7.t 65 6.tO.2.t9 6U.. 1 llO 70.S04.270 61.90U61 7.. 5.4.759

Totl! primary ,ovemmenl cxpenJel S 1]9,'52,710 S 261,S35,659 S nO,..4I,S]" s 371,163,010 S lU,96I.I2. S 190.10I,915 S l56.547,949 S l19.610,750 S lI7.671.164

Protram revmues
Ciovmwntnt.allClivilicl

aw.. rotta'Yka

"""'"""""""'" S 6.70S,'16 S 7.S3I,121 S 7.624,085 S 7.aos.)63 s ',557.11" S 10.911,'70 S 1.635,975 , 11 •.467.970 S 12,001,.11
JudlciaI 9.246.9904 9.05,312 11.631,052 2,201.)06 2,515.779 ).098,S'l1 12,222,29) 10."12,316 10,.t46.Sll
PubkJd'dy 23.466."" 17.777,'2.4 23.....9.055 30.1lI.176 11,995.120 29.111.956 10.631.966 2O,57••0S1 11.1204,279"""'..... 5.611 ....... 5.112,.467 5.622.90 2,S'lI.)56 1,297."lO I.IU,OU 1,702,7"7 ",176.))1 .,75U17
ellhllrt and rterntion 1.959,1.5 1.11••512 2,)82,'76 2,568.030 2,)5-4,SOI 1.166.7.0 1.945.1S6 2,717.96.t 2,17".l6)
COr_mity ....ppotI 261."85 530.174 5"7,"59

Operltina IfWJ and comn'buliollS 17.465,"91 ".99).166 ....17,620 5,.23.176 6,S91,I91 11,111.707 9.6S'1,24S 23,609,657 19.171,01
CapitallfllnlJ Ind contributions 121 1)).210 7".204.152 79.'97.469 91,079.100 127600,)70 79 156 147 56,049.152 6S,S}I S03 9U445S)

Totll,o~nmenllllClMIiti 185.592,S31 1)1 •• 17,72.4 135,115,100 1....767.207 177,911,612 131,616.98) 102,IOl.749 Il9,796,971 161,161,666

Blliinelf-lype aalvilie:J
C1w,es (Of" seMceI

WUlCWJIler 35,07•• 111 .....914,104 39,620.242 39,129.72. 36.0)5,962 )","'••912 37,161.3S6 )9,61".919 40.239,161
Wiler 61,522.301 55.612.001 51,539.912 51.576.23. 45.697.09 47,07".S46 4',561.691 4',56l.211 51.III,JlS
Mllnkipal,oIrcouna 1.001.098 1,239.SI6 2,019.026 1,719.)1.5 1.425.561 n5.7.S 2.57.139 1,993,004 1.791,935

()penti!w arantJ and eonln'bu1ionJ "17.391 SO.511 6.127,"57 3.116.041
Capital aranu and contribulions 1,..91.527 I" lOS 140 12,601,913 1.504.641 19.002.102 19171,057 9,420,345 7.460,"13 s.a57.]25

ToIa! bulifteN.l)'PCI lCIivi1ie:J 106,089.107 117611.930 106,131,674 100.929,91" 102.161.264 101,726260 95 "03 261 10).759.004 101193 .....

TOlal primlt)' lovcrnment p10gtam rewnua: S 291,681,631 S 2"9,036.65<1 S 2"2,716,174 S 249.697,121 S 280,072.176 S 240,34),20 S 197,507,010 S 2.3,SS5.917 S 265,355.150

Nd (expmKll) program IlIVmutlI
Oovemmenillutiviliu S (9.Jl2,002) S ('O,Jl9,3(4) S (131.90l,J:ro) , (1S.t.'S3,629) S (140,416,963) S (115.750.691) S (113.939.930) S (116,912.209) S (79,96S,.J9)
Business·lype adiviliet 61210,'60 66.90299 ..... 178260 12617,740 3652101S 35814950 204 191991 40 as7 06 2764.725

Primlt)'JO"~ S 5U21 as. S (lJ 499005) S (17.725 (60) S (l2;165 119) S (tOJ,l9S,9.t.) s (1.9.165,742) S (159.040,939) S (76.12...m) S (S2,316.71.)

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

CIIANGES IN NET POSITION (CONTlNUEIl)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

JuneJO, 1_30, June: 30, JuneJO. JU/IIIIi 3O, June 30, Junc: JO, June )0, JUMJO..... 2006 2007 2001 2009 2010 2011 20\2
,

---12!.!
GmenIr~ and Other chantet in Me poAIiotI

GovemrnmlaJ activities
PropenYla)l;tI s 41,JJ6,ll7 S 56,697,663 S 71,404,630 S 12,250,910 S 17,102,142 S 77,01<4,lll S 51,SolO,748 S 55,1l1,022 S 41,01,490
Rnidtnlial conltruction 'LUI 3,011,277 4,629,)75 1,802,497 I,S19,102 467,995 499,417 362,150 1I2,)S) 3)2,595
Room ItJIet 279,019 ))7,299 1S1,9S6 ]45,952 300,67' nO,n} 331,761 )SI,7S) 313,111
Franc:hiK fctS, butd OI1lVou m:tiptl 11,761,911 13,771,71) 15,773,376 11,919,371 17,013,699 16,717.)39 16,224,61' 16,142,005 15,169,356
Inl~1tI1 COIUOlidlled l&lett 47,361,646 53,720,737 52,955,74S 50,199,161 )9,642,95) 34,119,293 36,na,629 37,565,290 39,04,352
Other IocaIIOYti1Vl'IeRl Nlafed reverua 7,70I,S9l 1),127,109 17.359,371 17,401,712 14,"",904 9,906,79S 13,9)7.1)7 2,124,392 1,214,996
lhnttricted invatmtlll ineome 4,'OS,OIO 6,"1,971 22,604.399 21,0S4,SI4 11,214,6U 7,n7.61' 2,610,1S6 ',371,S92 679,211
GUn on dispot.ll orupilal aueu 316,407 204,1S<!
MiJCdWlcow U,S01,02S 16,193,249 21,611,036 42,097,291 21,479,414 n,144,113 21,064,262 2,'99,961 1,767,127

T"""m 24638772 31 1:!6, 119 ]. 612.94] ]1.966)20 ]0.914,9IS 41 ]6S,4S1 ]1.]18."S ]J,9st US ]1.4]].990

TOlal JOYUlIl'I'ItIllal.etMliu '62,109,798 191,]Il,032 23S.SS8.960 212.127,117 236.702.lIS 210.19S,240 '86.929.106 147,S6l.630 141.06U2S

8115inesf.cype ICIMtiu
Other IoeaIIOIICf"nmtlIl ahlted revenues 1l7,741 174,764 l.119,O17 SlI,471
UlVau'kced InVUlmem income 103,404 SI.471 go 7,060,'64 S.671,124 1.4H,994 ]S6,IU 72,72' 1l6,9U
Gain on disposal orupilalluec. 1l,'60
Mitcellaneoo. '92 S,1S7 4.641.476 2,417,17J 3.H4,U7 2.J19,16S 3.OSS,JS' 36.712 6.361,10'

T"""m /14.63',m) (3 I.246 139) (J I (12943) QI.966,]2O) (J09149IS) (41 36S 4SI) (JI.311.87S) QI,9SI,am (J I 4JJ.990)

TOll! bulina.folype ICtMtiu (24.]92 02.8) (l1014747) /23.1S2..360) f21.9S0,SI2) C11.6I9.S64) m,nO.299) (27,907.402) QI.I2S,492) (2.4,9]4.197)

Total primary aowr-nc~r_ and
S 117 717 770 S~~-,2U; S 211.706,600 S 2SO••77,]OS S 21S,012,7SI S In,lI4,941 S IS9,022.404 S lu.n'.ln S 116,126.421OIba chilwa in nee polition

Cbatrae in nee poshion
Govtmmencal.aivil.ies S U2,727,796 S 116,92J.72J S IOJ,6SS,640 S 117,974,111 S 96.21S,)S2 S 2S.'44.S41 S 1,919,'76 S ]O.SSI,421 S 61,09S,I"
BIUineu-lypc lCtivicia )6,818.832 lS I7S H2 20.J2S,900 10.n7,228 14,8l'.4S1 (I,69S.)49) p,ooa,411) 9.0]1.944 2 713,128

Primary 80vemmenl S 1'9,S46.621 S lS2,799.280 S 123,9II,S40 S 128.711.416 S 111,116.10) S 23,449,199 S (II,S3S) S 39.61l.36S S 6l,'09.714

I. InI'ormalion WI! not .Vlillble rOl' len yur" reporting, bul will be: ltamIIIL.ted OYff time .. it becomes IVlillble.
2. FY 2012 amoum. were rdOl#liYdy restlled in FY 201l
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

FUND BALANCE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

June 1O, J\IIIC 3O, June )0, June lO, JuneJO, June 10, JuneJO, June 30, JllIltlO, June ro,- 20'" 2006 2007 "'" 2009 2010 2011 2012 ,
~

G<MnJ ""'"R_od • 421,000 • 1,139,400 • J,2·4S.l4' • S<l2,79) • 7S1,alill • • • •UM-'" 23,511,047 lS,542.J47 21,913,463 36,567,167 45,])6,045 39,361,19) 22,9n,JI2
Nonspend.ble 384,375 217,20) 231,430
Rwricled for 101,642 26,257 170,576
Committed rOf 27",200 596,200
Unusia-! 7238.111 11 )02907 • )40 73.

Tala! amen! fUnd • 24,009,047 • 26,61',747 • )2,221,111 • 37,109,960 • 46,0904.936 • 39,361,19) • 12,9Sl,112 • 7,724.191 • 11.190.567 • 9,331.944

Other aovemmenuI lUnd,
R-'" • 1,362,019 • 2,195,919 • 1,IIO,O,n • 904.655 • 1,256,971 • • • • •U_

Special revenue fUnd. 32,104,30' 46,7Sl,4OI H,60I,940 S4,62S.)4S S7,249,19S 54,590,729 "1,311,767
Debt IICl'Yicc fUnds 4,906,563 4,'51,561 6,264,1" 6.926,512 7,316,194 4,614,ln 3,271,09<1
Capital project. lUnd. 4U24,470 l4.02S,nS 211,193,615 201.120,6IS 1'9,433,)42 155,724,644 111,)45,725

NOnipoend.ble 81,162 224,923 1,655,2)6
Restnelcd (ot &4,687,535 74,624,464 70,116,0)2
Committed (01' 1,)77,827 1,)27,111 1,250,166
Auianed 10 1,43015) 1.159.516 1: )54 991

ToUl olher loYef"IIIllenUl "'nds • 81,891,)5) • 81,826,774 • 21U1O,m • 270,577,191 • 255.156.402 • 214,999,550 • 16J.012,516 • 81,58).277 • 7I,OJ6,091 • 16,316.425

FY 2012 amoum. were felonttivdy restated in FY 2(1).
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

JUllt lO, JllneJO. )11,.)0, June 10. JuneJO, JURe », June 10, JunclO. June)O, June 10,,... '00' 2006 '''' 2001 2009 2010 2011 2012 , ----..2!lli.
ornER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Continamcies (4,SOO) (10,000) (49,]95)
Debt lUll_noli prO«eds 1),926,459 160,000,000 4,SOO,OOO 12.610.000 ],145,000 17,090,000 27,010,000
Debt 1"","" premiums 04,14],946 9,160,000 160,]10
Payment 10 advance rcfundillJ bond Ilenl (7,530,251) (9,116,0)7) (1,071.110) (16,922,]00) (26,S73,920)
Debt 1......"" diJcounlS (1,.94,110) (15,000) (15,750) (52,113) (2S7,m)
Tnnsrco in 11,32),112 56,791,910 61,214,156 73,126,205 75,287,726 79,675,504 n,I26,119 52,lao,lIS 4],764,72l <16,'123,0]6
Transfer. OUt (1],]71,099) (2U91,S29) (41,On,Oll) (46,059,162) (41.01,606) (41,415,519) (42,207.Sl1) (25,192,464) (10,'09,131) (11,049,079)

""'" 1.214,723 I7S.S40 25.000 Jo42,S}} 111.)16

Total other fiRllldrw -.rea (VIa) 5.628,01 28,200.451 190,761,444 )1,321006 46,67),750 )1210S20 'IS 940 US 2125S lSI II SJS S04 21,SSS 2n

CHANGE IN FUND BAlANCE
, 244 605 , 2602121 , 19) 617 691 , (112:191) , (6 33S 120) , (46990 6021 , (6S,612.15O) , (90,651,496) , (n'OIl!) , (4,211.519)

C,pital expenditures indo.lded in expenditures tbove
, 55,64S.108 , 147,702,6U , S9,1I1,265 , 71,408,118 , 121,127,730 , IlI,OllYIi , 112,947,115 , 94.972.764 , SI,4S7,061 , '7,112,,712

Debt RVic:e ••• pe:retntlje or I'IOl'lUph,1
4.30% " 20% " 20% 840% .00" ,so " 770% S,70% 420" S 20%upendilures

FY 2012 amounU wen rnorxtivdy restated ill FY lOll,
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACruAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERT\"

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Ratio orTotaI

T....... """""
for the Yet( Ended RcsicItmial ~. """""- LeuTu Eumpl TOIa/Taxable Estim&lfd Actual to TOIai EJtillUllfd
JuneJO PrOf)!f1Y Property InduSlrW PrOIlMY ProIl!!1Y Prop!ny Autned Value Direct Tax Rate V... Actual Value

".. • 1,517,072,000 • 40,366,000 • 2S6,114,OOO • 776,565,000 • (516,375,000) • 2,416,952,000 1.19&7 • 6,905,577,000 3500%
'00' 1,195,261,000 498,190,000 312,674,000 1,))6.537.000 (971,617,OOO) 2,964,0045,000 1.l981 1,467,170,000 3500%
'006 2,131,615,000 640,304,000 36s,On,OOO 2,OlS,717,OOO (1,407,139,000) 4,464,950,000 USl7 12,751,000,000 3500%
'001 4,4SI,llS,OOO I)1,115,000 442,427,000 2,609,030,000 (1,565,997,000) 6,761,460,000 1.J617 19,3)1,4S<l,OOO 3500%
2001 5,479,121,000 1,041,6047,000 580,796,000 3,401,267.000 (2,291,1-42,000) 1,204,696.000 USS7 23,441,991,000 3500%
2009 5,572,915,000 1,211,106,000 669,311,000 3.239,635,000 (2,415,324,000) ',211,419,000 USl7 23,611,197,000 3500%
2<>10 ],109.241,000 1,)60,037,000 691,91),000 2,S09,269,OOO (2,144,624,000) 6,125,136,000 U5n Il,S02,lI 1,000 )500%
2<>11 2,646,)55,000 1,022,464,000 S2S,414,OOO I,OS9,04I,OOO (1,101,)11,000) 4,144,96),000 l.lSll 1I,I·U.1S1,000 )$00%
2012 2,614,770,000 99S,1OI,OOO 423,100,000 641,11],000 (169,661,000) ],111,))0,000 l.1S11 11,(6),191,000 )SOO%
2<>" l,416,1lS,000 941,104,000 312,696,000 492,]91,000 (179,114,000) l,4Sl,142,000 l.lSll 9,161,US,000 )SOO%

I Source· Clark Counly Afxuor', OffM:ll:
2. PutllUltII 10 Sllle '"IUIe, all prl)pCfIy i. anafCld It )S% ofiu wimaltd value.
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

PROPERTY TAX RATES' - DIRECf AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
(PER $100 OF ASSESS VALUE')

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

For the Yur Ended June 10.

,00<

'00'
2006
'007....,..,
2010
2011
2012
20U

For the: Yur Ended June: 30,

,00<

'00'
2006
2007....,...
2010
2011
2012
2013

City of North Las V$5. Direct Ralts oYerlappina Raid

I"ublic Safely Toul Direct Tax Clark County 1.d Veau Artesian
City Optnlioru """ ""'" (Ovmidc) .... SllleorN~. Clark County Sdlool OiSllid Emtraency 911 RaJiIl

0.1975 00770 0.9242 I 1987 01100 0.6502 1.3034 00050 000'1
0.1915 00622 09390 I 1981 01100 06652 1,3034 00010 00016
0.2014 00622 09201 11131 01100 06515 1.30).11 0.0050 0001)
0.19)7 00300 0 .... 1.1637 01100 0.6566 1.)0)4 00010 0_
01901 0.02SO 09436 IISI1 01100 06541 l.30)4 00050 0_
01901 00250 09436 USl1 01100 065041 1.3034 0.0050 0_
0.19)7 00100 09SSO lin? 01100 06S41 UOl<l 0.0050 00011
0.1937 00370 0..... lUll 01100 06S41 1.30]4 .0010 00015
019)7 00250 ..... 11511 01100 O.6S41 1.30J4 0.0050
019)7 ..". ...00 I ISI1 01100 065041 IJOJ4 .-

<M:rlappillll Rates
1.u Vep•• Cllrk City of Nonb Las

County Ubruy V.... Libn<y TOlal OYuU.ppina TOI" Direel .nd

Di~ Districl: "'9 Overllppin! Rales

00221 0.0632 1.2164 ) 4 lSI
DOllS 0.0631 L2199 ) <12M
0.0113 0.0632 2-2127 "'"0012) 0.0632 2.2114 ) 3751
00123 0.0632 UOII ).J61S..... 0.0632 21051 ) )6)1
00100 0.0632 2.206. ) )655
.0070 0.0632 2-2042 33629

0.0632 2.1957 ) )544
0.0632 2.1957 U544

I Sour«· Out County TrUturct'1 Offi«
2. The Stale ofNevada CONtiIlllion has I maximt.lm rate limit orS5 per SIOO useued vIIue IIId NeYIda ReviHd Stllultt further Io~ lhe limn to It(Mal combined tall flte on 64
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T.~plyer

Golden Triangle Indumial Park
Southwell Genenlion
Pitemc RtlI Estate Group
Station Cuinoslncorponled
Aliullc Gunina Limited lAbility Co.
WaI·Man Stores lneorponled
Cannery Casillo Resons
Apex Nevada Solar Umited Uabi\ity Company
Coklnial RWly Limiled Partncnllip
W Vegas Plvin, Corponlion
Sl.ltion CQinosI~ed
CitmIsptn Comp&nies
Opcmina EnP«n PtNiot! TI\lJI
Enroft Corpontion
Mddrunl Family Trust
MmdenhII family TNIl
T H G Vilas J .t. II l.JrNted UabiIiIy COftlP'lIies
PWee COllStl'Uaion
Prolo&is TNJI

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TA.XPAYERS,,2

CURRENT AND 'INE YEARS AGO

(UNAUDITED)

2013 200<
Ptr«n1qc of Paunt·scof

Tuable AQeQed Tauble AJses:s TuableAuemd TaxIblc Aua.s
V.lue .."" V"". Value .."" V.lue

4),)62,302 I 1.26% %
41,126,119 2 1.19% %
)4,401,140 ) 1.00% %
)2,2S2,S76 • 0.91 % %
2S,9n,938 ) 07S % %
D,917,OJ6 • 0.69% %
:ZZ,.n,U6 7 0.66% 13,551.792 • O,S6%
22,763,102 • 0.66% %
21,312,111 • 0.62% "21.252,042 10 0.62% "79,21S,SI6 I ).21%

47,311,711 2 196%
)2,663,697 ) US%
19,379,145 • 1.21%
U,Il2,I91 ) '66%
1S,1l1,IIZ • '66"
lS,nUI. 7 ... "
1),519,50' • '.>6 "Ib4,?;UI 10 052 %

S 219211O'n '.31 % S 215427437 1141 %

Located in a.rt Counly. Nevada
SO\Iree - et.rk County Assusor's Office
Taxable uscs.sed value il)5% orappni~value.
SK IM"Asses5ed and EJlilNllcd Aetlill Vlhie orTlXlble PropMy- tlble (Of Isscued property vallie dill.

137



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECfIONS'
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

For 1M Year Ended.IuM 10.

,...
200'
2006
2007
2001
2009
2010
2011
2012
lOll

I Sourm • Clatt Counl:y Comptro/Ie(l Oftice.
1. Collectiocu July I Ihtoup Sqltembcr)O ofthe JUbwquenl year.

Pcrunt orTotaI
TH '-"Y

Cunenl.TuLn, PerunI. ofTax DeIinqumI Tax TouITaxl..e")' Coleaed 10 Till
Tn Levy """"""" "'"""""'''' "'"""""""" """"'''' let

)),061,607 ll,Jl7,.9l 97.1191 % , 7}O.91~ )).(161,466 ......"
41,61l,196 41)51,020 99.3707% 261,715 41,6IJ,nS ......"
SO,9S1,110 SO,nO.I26 99 2416 % 216)0) 5o.a57,129 ....,."
605,m,m 64.54$,61) 91.1).40% 761,117 65.306,970 .....,"
75,511,219 74.lO9,OOO 91.3911% 1,204,471 15,51J,471 9999)7 %
1O,721,SOJ 1l.921,40 97.7702 % 1,112.1.' 10,710,69' ...","
7l.204,nO 6I,m,64' 96.1910 % 2,164,910 71,160,SSI 999)1S %
51,409,059 49,11',)00 970212 % 1,00,459 SI.)II,7S9 991107 %
47,624,\17 46.711,610 912309 % 600,96] 47,)12,60 99.4921 %
42,124,47) 41.))6,911 91.1617% 111.))6 42,519,324 99U'. %
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

RATIOS OF OUSTANDING DEBT' BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS'

(UNAUDITED)

~lal Activities BUIlIlltlJ-lVPlI AetivitieJ

For.he y~ Ended June 10.
QmrnJ Obliption

Bond.
Special Assasmenl

Bondi C.pi!a1 I..usc:s

"""'"ObIiplio~led.ed

Revffl.>e Bond, ~

Tow Prinwy

""""-'

Percentile of

"""eo.""Personal Income

City of North ....
Vepl Pet C.pill

'005
'001
'007
'001
'009
2010
20"
20"
W"

56,920,000 S 2,9$6,100 S S 4',529.000
212,150,000 2.612,000 42,510,000
191,940,000 6,7S3,200 179,63",000
119,600,000 11,512,900 116,09,000
11O,nO,OOO U,991,400 17J,000,OOO
110,395,641 14,21J,700 46,359 J 12,033,000
141,4]5,0)) 12,S]2,900 ]4,961 lOS,Sll,OOO
160,223,).9 IO,lU,JOO 16,6S1 299,1)6,000
1S6,6J2,OOO ',729,100 292,391,000 7,000,000

105,405,100
251,272,000
385.327,200
]13,551,900
]69,40,400
496,74R,100
465,590,900
410,09I,}OO
464,152,100

016%
0.31%
O.S) %
0.52%
oS4 %
0.11 %,.. "".".

'"I,lll
1,9S4
1,162
I,ns
>2"
<123
1.101

I. Details rtprdina tile ell)", oulJlandinl debt can be round in lbe notes 10 the: basic financiallt.temenll
1. lnronnation _ 110I .vail.ble ror 1m ynrt reporting, bul will be~IedOYff time u iI beeonlC!ll .vail.ble.
) ElI-cludet deblluued by the eil)". b'-led component uMs.
4. See the "DemogtJphk:.nd Economk 51.tina" table (<<Clark County personal income.nd the Cil)'" population dill
S. Information IlOllvallable.1 time orprintllll.
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

RATIOS OF GE 'EHAL BONDED DEBT' OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS'

(UNAUDITED)

FOl'" lllc: Year Eode4 June JO,

'00'
'006
'001
'001
'1109
2010
2011
2012
2013

"""'" Perunlap of AmounlJ Available
Genenl Obliption ObIiptionlPledaed T"" """'" EJtilllllcd Actual CItyofNorthLu to Repay GCl'lttIl Nn Gencnl

"""'. Rtvtnut. Bonds
""""" lldx

Propety Value Vgu Per Capill J Bonded Deb! .""'" lldx

56,920,000 S 45,529,000 S 102,449,000 1.21 % S 1I7 3,419,930 91,969,070
212,150,000 42,510,000 254,660,000 2.00% 1,367 4,276,162 250,31),13'
191,9-40,000 119,634,000 371.S74,000 1.96% 1,919 5,095,859 )7),418,141
119,600,000 176,09,000 366,039,000 1.S6% 1,777 4,892,967 )61,146,OB
.IO.HO,OOO 173,O9O,OOO 353..<420,000 1.49% 1,'" 1.960,781 )51,459,212
110,395,64. 312,0)),000 412,421,641 276% .,,, 02,004 .11,996,637
147,435,0]] ]05,511,000 4H,Ol',O)) JU% M" 25,062 451.997,97.
160,223,349 299,1)6,000 4S9,lS9.J49 41S % 2,055 20,SOI 4$9,IIS,141
1S6.632.000 291,391,000 449,023,000 -455 % 449,013,000

I Oftaib reprdicw lhe Ciry's 0UUWldi1ll debe (&II be round ill~ DOles 10 Ille buic fiMnc:iaI _ement.s
1. Information _ IIOl .vm.ble (or 1m ran rcportiqa. bul wi! be IIl:Q.IIrlUWcd O¥er lione u it becoma .vm.blc.
) ExdudeI debt isaocd by me Cily'J blmOcd compoaaII uMs.
4 Sec Ille 0AJ.susecl MIl &timatcd AcwlI V..olTaabk Propaty" table fof esLinIucd Il:UtII propeny vUIe cWa.
S Set lbeo~ lIKI Ec.onomie Swisties° table for lbe City's popublioft cWa.
6. lnfomation not .vaa.bk " lime ofprintina.
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CITY OF ORTH LAS VEGAS

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT'"

JUNE 30, 2013
IN TIIOUSANDS

(U AUDITED)

Clly of North Las VeJlu

Overlapping KO~n11
Clark County
Cark. County Sehool District
Las Vegas - Clut County Libnry DiAna
St'leo(N~

Genenl Obliption Applicable GenenI

"'" Percem Applie!b!e ObH'I,ion Ddlt

S 16~,J61.700 • 100.00 % 165 J61 700

51,125,000 7.36% ],917,360
1,518,405,000 7.36% IIS,lS4.60B

36,195,000 "'8% 3,276,176
U69.620,OOO •.IS % 66 426,S10

3,97I,'4S.ooo 25'.974,114

4,IO,S06,700 424 ))6,514

I Source· Zions Ow Pubk rllllnCC..
2. Dcui1I~ 1M Cft)". 0UlIlaIICIinI6ebt CIII Ix !buDd in 1M DOI~ to die bUt linanciallW~
] ~ 6ebt iuued by lhe City'I bknded~ uniu.
.. Ovabppq~ arc thotc: tl'IM c:oiIIcide..t1asl in pan. with the~ bowIcI.arits oflhe CIly ThiI JdIaIuk c:stimatn 1M portion oIlhe ClUUUllCIinI6ebt olthotc:~

pva1Il!ImU thI! iI borne by !he~Ui and~ oflhe Cit)' This proea.J~ tJw, when eonsMleriDa lhe aovemtnall'.1lbiIity to Wue Jlld~ kMla.tmB debI. the entire debl:
burden bcxne by the~ IIld bwinessa IhouId be tUCfI into I«OW'It. HOWC\'U, thD docs not~ IlIal eYa')' taxpayu is I rc:si6mt; and thcmou, rapoMibk for repayina tl\Il' d«Jc, olcadl
~~ Debt ImOlInu fOr ovatappina _itieI in the various~~ proYicIed by Ziont Balik P\lblK: F"mance.. Tbr; percenup appIiabIe was cakWted by takilll the:
City's Uk$Ied vaIlIIIlion divided by ndI nspec:tive aovemmemt usemd VIIualion.
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Tot.al tauble IBtUtd propmy value

~aaI debl MMJin
Lepl debt limit (20% of taxlble ..-d

properly VlIII~)

Debt lWIicable to lkbIllmit

Net amerll bonded debt

lApIlkbI marJin

ToW debt Ipplitable to debl limn .. I percent.. or
lkbIlimil

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS'

(UNAUDITED)

Jllne10, Jllne10, Jllne10, June 10, Jllne ]0, Jllne30, JIlIIC10, JIIM10, Jllne30,

200' 2006 200'1 2006 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

2.964.045000 S 4464.9SO.ooo S 6,768.460000 S 8.204,696,000 S 8,2SS.419000 S 6125 Sl6 000 S 4.144,963.000 S ] 8n JJO 000 S 3.45J.742,OOO

592,809,000 S 892,990,000 S 1,353,692,000 S 1.640.939,200 S 1.6S7,613,1OO S 1,225,167,200 S 828,m,600 s 774.466,000 S 690.748,400

91.969.070 250.3s).8n 373.418.141 361,146.0]) 3SI.459.111 481,996.637 452.997.971 459.115.848 ~9023 000

493,Sl9.9)0 S 641.606..J.!! S 980113 859 S 1279193 167 S 1306 224 588 S 743 17056) S 375,994.629 S 3153SO.152 S 141.7150&00

1669% 2804% 2759% 2201 % 1110% 3934 % ..... " S928 % 6501 %

I Information was 1101 IVlil.ble for ten)lel.... reponina. bill will be accumulaled o'm' time .. it bealmel lvaillble.
2. Sft!he "A»ehed Ind &limlled Aellill Vlllie ofTlXIble Propeny" table for eslillllled IClltal propcny vllue dill.
3 See lite "Ratios orGeneral Bonded Debt OuUUlndina" table l"ortne calculation OrM\ JflltIIl bonded debt
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS'
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

FOf the Ye» Ellded June )0

,...
200l
2006
2007
2000
2009
2010
2011
2012
2O1l

CilyolNonh C1arlc Count)' pef Clari:C_y

L.u V"" CWt< """"'1 CWt<e-y ........... UDm1flIo)-
Popubtion Penonall_ Pooul!tion I~ .."

16J,Jn S 56,465.171,000 , 1,662,m )),959 UO%
174,456 64,111.422.000 1,729,552 37.109 .,."
II6,1SO 61.114,0S6.000 1,I03,n4 n,lIl '.>0 "
197.23] 73,040,160,000 1,167,111 J9,10$ .,."
206.... 74,219,791,000 1,911,349 31,1042 , 00"
212.a6J 61,191,192.,000 1,939,407 )5.470 1190%
216.961 69,100,237,000 1,951,269 H,m 14.20%
219,275 70.219,097,000 1,969,975 35,610 IHO%
m."9. 2..000.7S9 11.20 %

910 "

Soume· Nencb Wor1d'llK.Ie Informer, Data Analysis (hltpjlwww_MVldawortdoR:e.l:OlllIcP'lbwnalysbfdataTypeSaectiousp"tablcN~)

InfonNllion noc .vailable at lime ofprintin..
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS!')
CURRENT A D NINE YEARS AGO

(U AUDITED)

>Oil

Clark Cou.ncy School Diaria
Clark Councy, Nevada
Wynn Las Vep.s
Bdbaio. LLC
MGM Grand Hotel and Casino
An.~ Mel c.sillo, LLC
MlIldllay BIY R--. and Casino

"""'" ''''''U~yofNevad.I, Las Vcps
las Vcau Mdropolitan Police: Dcpartmtnl
~fnp HOle and Cuino
Slale of Nevad.
R» Suilt HOlel and Casino.......

'0'"''''',
, .... Outc....,

""""'" ... EtWwtqt

:JO,OGO-19.999 I ).91%_....
I .",......... ) .",,....- • .17%,....- I ""7()00..7.(99 • ""........ 7 .7S%......... , ,."-.... • ""......... 10 ""

,,..

'-'"Toea! CWt Counry

""""'" ... Eo!ip!otmM

'_21999 I H9%......... , 111%

""""6SOl).6S99 ) ""_.... , ..."_.... • .."......... , .."
SSOO-S999 • n"_....

I .."6000-<100 • .."3SOO-)999 10 ""
Sour«· Nevada Workforce lnfonncr, Du. Analysis (hup:l/www nevad.woBf'OftC.eomI'1PAGEIQ-67<lSUBID-167 and

IlIlp}1www nevadlwor1l.for«.(QIIV'cgild.tun&IyIi~bFOfceRepon asp7mmuchoke-LABFORCE)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTIONIPROGRAM'
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

JuneJO. June )0, Jllne )0, JuneJO, JWlelO, June)O, June ]0, JuneJO, JuneJO. June 3D,

'''' '00' 2006 2007 - 7IlO9 2010 7011 2012 ~

Funttionlprogram
GovemmmtlJ Ictivities

GenenI lowrnment "' "' ,ll< 'SO m m '" 19l I6l 127
Judicial .. " " " " " .. " " 72
Public utel)' "' 117 '" I,m 1,232 1,269 I,"" 1,226 1,141 '"PublicWOfb 12' ,2< 1S6 167 167 168 '0 100 " "Cullure and recreatiot'l III "' 'OS '" '" '" '" '66 IS' 129
Communily IUppolt IJ IS " " " " " )) " "

Toea! JOIImunmtal ae1iviliQ 1,36S 1,4$5 1,648 ',906 2.0)1 1,107 2,039 1,116 1,650 1,]19

BusineD-lype activities
WUlewiller " " 16 " " <I 63 " II II
Wiler 68 68 7l 91 " 97 .. " " 9J
Municipal,otrCOlIna 10 " " IJ " 9 • 7 • 7

ToW busine»-Iype aetMlic:J \06 110 '" ,<I IS' IS' m '" IS. III

Total fUlI·lime equivalcm cmp\oyftI
1,411 1,565 I,nl >II" ",. 2.261 2,194 1,91' 1,108 1.414

Souru - City ofNonh l.u Veps. F1IIaIlCC 0epIIrtlMnl, Dud,et DivWoe..
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM' (CONTINUED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS'
(UNAUDITED)

June lO, Ju.. JO, June JO, June JO, June lO, JUllC lO, June JO, June JO, June JO,
200. 2006 2001 "" '''' 2010 "" "" ----!2!.!

Wiler
Valva um;. 2,102 I,ll} 2,160 1,9lJ 3,104 1,910 2,'88 I,n) 1,<4"
WIltrfqlain ,<3 '" 29. '" ". '" '" ". '"Snviu requutl 1,505 2,OS<l 2,)« 90,717 82,644 16,462 69,700 16,131 70,42)
Number orbill. 'G4,7JO 910,679 974,142 99<4,6'11 910,590 974,406 9&0,791 I,ON,ln 1,006,250
Number ormel«ll read ?S6,0II2 116,203 956,192 993,013 1,001,336 1,007,205 1,017,682 1,02S,411 1,0]0,452

I. Souree· Various Cily ofNOfth Lu Vetil. dcpanmmI•.
2. InfOr'lTllllion WIt not .vail.wc rOf len )'UQ' reponina, but wiD be accumulated OWl' time .. il bccoma .vaibbk.
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCnONIPROGRAM '
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS'

(UNAUDITED)

JunclO, JwelO, June 30, June 30, JUIlie lO, JunclO. JunclO. June 30, J\lllC JO, June 3O,- 200' 2006 "'" 2001 2001 2010 2011 2012 ~

Func:tiolllpropam
PolKc JIllion. , 2 1 2 1 2 , 2
Fire Rations • • • 1 1 1 • •Libnry (Kllhiet: 2 2 J 2 2 , , ,
Cuhure Uod r«realion

Communil)' «nlert 2 2 1 2 2 2 2 l , l
ParQ 26 21 11 11 11 11 )4 )4 )4 )4

Patk Jefal&e 219 '90 '" <0, .., <0, ." '" '" '"Golf001I"," , 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Swimmilll pooII • • • • • • • • • •T(MiJcounl 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12

Publie works
Lane milct of pa-t ArM I,'" 1,741 2,ISO ','" 1,911 "", "'" 2,167 2,17' 2,419
Lane miles ofunpaved Wed 62. 200 691 691 691
Traflk lipal mlerMCtionl 11 12 " ,0) '20 12' '" '0 ')2 ",
SUM liaklS 21.J40 29,lOO 29,600 31000 lS,OOO 35,000 35,000 lS,OOO 35,104 )5,000

Wiler
Miles ofwater IMin ." ',000 1,04' I,on ',096 1,110 1,127 1,]30 1,117 1,119
Residenlial Klviee connectionl 57,136 60,006 7),962 76,473 7S,17S 73,048 73,642 74,191 76,367 76,988
Commercial RfVke eonne<:lionlI 3,526 3,239 4,66S MOl S.JSO 5,256 S,2S1 S,30S 5,403 5,09
"vtralC ct.iIy eoNumption in million........ .. " .. '" .. " .. .. " ..
Pm dtmand daly in minion pIJons " 11 .. " " " " " 66 ..

Wastewater
Milctof_ wut~ltfmPl '" .11 '" 609 '" '" '" ." ... '"Miles of SlOf1ll waslewaltr ""';n 121 120 '29 '" '" 110 III '92 262 266

I. Source· Various Cily orNonh l.u Vrlp. dC'p&f1rMRU.
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

SCHEDULE OF BUSINESS LICENSE FEES

FOR TilE YEAR E 'OED Ju 'E 30, 2013

As required by Nevada Revised Statues (NRS) 354.624, Section 4{a), all fees imposed by a local government arc subject to the provisions of NRS
354.5989. A local govcrment may adopt new business license fees only if the revenue from the fees is less than the prescribed calculated maximum.

FEES CALCULATED AS A PERCENTAGE OF GROSS REVENUE

Business license revenue for the year ended June 30, 2013

Business license revenue for the year ended June 30, 2012 (base year)
Adjustment to base year

Percentage change in Consumer Price Index
Total adjustment to base year

Adjusted business license revenue base for the year ended June 30, 2013

Amount under allowable maximum

FEES CALCULATED ON A FLAT OR FIXED RATE

Business license revenue for the year ended June 30, 2013

Business license revenue for the year ended June 30, 2012 (base year)
Adjustment to base year

Percentage change in local government population
Percentage change in Consumer Price Index

TOial adjustmenl 10 base year
Adjusted business license revenue base for the year ended June 30, 2013

Amount under allowable maximum

$ 2,332,545

$ 2,419,389

3.93 %
95,082

2,514,471

$ (181,926)

$ 1,434,553

$ 1,434,883

(0,83)%
3.93 %

3.10%
44,481

1,479,364

S (44,811)
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SINGLE AUDIT INFORMATION





PBTK
PIERCY BOWLER
TAYLOR & KERN
Certified Public Accountants

Business Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL

EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CmCULAR A-133

AND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City ofNorth Las Vegas, Nevada

We have audited the compliance of the City of North Las Vegas (the City) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the Office of Maoagement and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Campliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the City's major federal program for the year ended
June 30, 2013. The City's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility. The City's management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the City's major federal
program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-I33, Audits a/States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-I33 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about wbether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance.

Opinion on Major Federal Program. In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the City's major
federal program for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance. The City's management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned

6100 Elton Avenue, Ste. 1000 • Las Vegas, Nevada 9107 • 702~384-1120 • fax 702·870-2474 • pblk.com



functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A rna/erial weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A­
133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133. We have
audited the financial Slatements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. We issued
our report thereon dated December 12,2013, which contained an unmodified opinion on those basic fmancial
statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic fmancial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required
part of the basic fmancial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fmancial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Las Vegas, Nevada
December 12, 2013



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

SCI1EDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Federal GrantoT{pass-through GrantorlProgram Title

U.S. Dcpanment of (he Interior

Passed through State of Nevada, Bureau of Land Management
Southern Nevada Public Land Management

Total U.S. Department of the Interior

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Community Development Block Grants/Special Purpose Grants/Insular
Areas

Passed through Clark County. Nevada, Department of Finance
Neighborhood Stabilization Program

Community Development Block GrantsIEnlitiemenl Grants

Home Investment Partnerships Program

Total U.S. Department of "Iousing and Urban Development

U.$. Department of Homeland Security

Passed through U.S. Secret Service
South West Idenlity Theft Task Force/Joint Operation

Passed through Homeland Security Investigations
Joint Operation 11-12
Joint Operation 12-)3

Passed through State of Nevada, Department of Public Safety
Emergency Management Performance Grants

Passed through Clark County. Nevada, Fire Department
Urban Search and Rescue Readiness Cooperation Agreement

(Continued)

Federal eFDA
Number

15.235·

14.225

14.264

14.218

14.239

N/A

N/A
N/A

97.042

97.025

Federal or Pass-through
Grantor Number

L05ACI3499
L05ACI3821
L06AC I3904
L07ACI2952
L07ACI4012
L08ACI3824
L08ACI4594
L09AC15510
LIOAC20271
LIIAC20228
L12AC20493

HN NV445PG502

B-08-DN-32-0001
B-08-UN-J2-0001
B-II-UN-32-0001

B-03-UC-32-o001
B-05-UC-32-o001
B-07-UC-J2-o001
B-08-UC-32-0001
B-1 0-UC-32-000 I
B-II-UC-32-o001
B-1 2-UC-32-o00 I

M-08-DC-32-0224
M-09-DC-32-0224
M-II-DC-32-0001
M-12-DC-J2-0001

N/A

N/A
N/A

9704212
97004213

EMW-2011-CA-00066
EMW-2012-CA-K00029

Expenditures

$ 3,572,162
2,572,883
1,481,407
4,389,280
1,119,268
4,589,925
3,138,309

899,727
19,140,109

64,078
1,551

40.968.699

1,300

329,044
650,804
472,899

1,434
10,402

101
87,768

238,094
444,808
756,468

5,876
60,396
41,941
30.271

3.131.606

1,425

13,946
8,048

61,220
64,402

13,128
5,455
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title
Federal CFDA

Number
Federal or Pass-through

Grantor Number Expenditures

Passed through Clark County, Nevada, Office of Emergency Management
and Homeland Security

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 EMW-2011-SS-0096 1,675
97067U09 12,548

Passed through State of Nevada, Department of Public Safety
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 97067HL8 32,838

97067.09 9,365
970637U10 83,333

97067.11-U11 91,814

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 399,197

U.S. Department of Transportation

Passed through State of Nevada, Department of Public Safety
State Traffic Safety Information System Improvement Grants 20.610 22-408TR-5.5 14,620

State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 23-JF-1-1.18 7,598
22-PS-2 25,373
23-PS-2 19,754

23-CP-2.4 4,507

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 23-JF-1.18 33,478

Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures Incentive Grants I 20.601 22-JF-1.19 7,827
23-JF-1.18 20,104

Occupant Protection Incentive Grants 20.602 23-JF-1.18 4,990

Safety Belt Performance Grants 20.609 22-JF-1.19 18,006

Passed through State of Nevada, Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 PR311-10-063 57,893

P348-10-063 12,063
PR395-11-063 1,014,614
P437-12-063 13,845
P040-12-063 33,396
P042-12-063 56,035

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 1,344,103

U.S. Department of Justice

State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 16.606 2012-AP-BX-0533 6,130

Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 2010 BVP 7,047
2011 BVP 11,583
2012 BVP 2,081

Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants 16.710 2010-CK-WX-0219 95,558
2010-UL-WX-0031 1,498,272

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2010-DJ-BX-1136 141,026
2011-DJ-BX-3416 60,629
2012-DJ-BX-1077 108,042

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPE 'DITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR E OED JUNE 30, 2013

Federal CFOA Federal or Pass-through
Federal GrantorlPa.'iis-throue:h GranlorlProl!.ram Title umber Grantor Number EXPenditures

Passed through Federal Bureau of Investigation
Joint Terrorist Task Force (ITrf) ·11 N/A N/A 4,501
Joint Terrorist Task Force (J1TF) -12 N/A N/A 1,888
Las Vegas Safe Slrects Gang Task Force (LVSSGTF) - 11 N/A N/A 5,965
Las Vegas Safe Streets Gang Task Force (LVSSGTF) - 12 N/A N/A 10,505

Passed through Bureau of Alcohol Tobacco Firearms and Explosives
ATF State Local Overtime Program -II N/A N/A 555
ATF State Local Overtime Program -12 NlA NlA 18,222
Operation Pure Luck NlA PA-NV-0236 20,763

Passed through Drug Enforcement Administration
Tactical Diversion Task Force - II N/A N/A 3,972
Tactical Diversion Task Force - 12 NlA N/A 13,395

Passed through State of Nevada. Department of Public Safety
Recovery Act· Eward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG)

Program/Grants to States and Territories (ARRA) 16.803 2009-SUB9-0043/09-ARRA-31 183,580

Passed through City of Las Vegas
Recovery Act· Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG)

Program/Grants To Units Of Local Government (ARRA) 16.804 2009-SB-B9-1637-NLVPD 333,168

Passed through State of Nevada, Department of Health and Human Services
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 2011-VAGX-0030 91,526
Enforcing Underage Drinking Laws Program 16.727 20 10-AH-FX-0061 26,892
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 2011-STOP-10 29,249

2011-STOP-39 4,280

Passed through U.S. Marshal Services
U.S. Marshal Services FY 2012 N/A N/A 5,816
U.S. Marshal Services FY 2013 N/A N/A 2,133

Passed through Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department
Missing Children's Assistance 16.543 2011-Me-eX-KOO2 11.407

Total U.S. Department ofJustice 2,698,185

Executive Office of the President, Office of National Drug Control Policy

High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIOTAl NlA GIINVOOI 11,919
GIINVOOIA 50,960
GI2NVOO1 22,173

GI2NVOOIA 22,488
GI3 VOOIA 14,479

Total Executive Office of the President, Office of National Drug Control Policy 122,019

U.S. Depanment ofAgriculture

Passed through State of Nevada, Department of Education:
Special Milk Program for Children 10,556 N/A 17,481

(Continued)
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CITY OF ORTH LAS VEGAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPE 'D1TURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR E DED J E 30, 2013

Federal GranlorlPasHhrough GronlorlProgram Tille

U.S. Department of Energy

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program (EECBG)
(ARRA)

Total U.S. Department of Energy

U.S. Department of Heahh and Human Services

Passed through Southern Nevada Health District
Centers for Disease Control and Prevenlion - Affordable Care: Act

(ACA) . Communities Putting Prevention to Work

Total federal expenditures

• A major program

Federal CFDA
Number

81.128

93.520

Federal or Pass-through
Grantor Number

DE·SCoo03259
EE0327I 0035

C·7655

Expenditures

346,245
10783

357,028

11,340

S 49.049,658
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

OTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Note I. Reporting Enlity

The accompanying supplementary schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the aClivity of all federal
financial assistance programs of the City of North Las Vegas (the City). The reporting enlity is defined in Note I to the
basic financial slatements. The schedule includes federal fmancial assislance received directly from federal agencies as
well as passed through other government agencies.

ote 2. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal gram activity of the City and is
presented on the accrual basis ofaccounting.

The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of U.S. Office of Management and
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits ofStates. Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in. or used in the preparation of. the basic
financial statements.

Nole 3. Subrecipienls

During the year ended June 30, 2013, lhe following awards (including amendments) were given 10 subrecipients:

Award Amount

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Community Development Block GrantsIEntitiement Grants (CFDA Ii 14.218)
Home Investment Partnerships Program (CFDA II 14.239)
Neighborhood Stabilization Program (CFDA # 14.264)

U.S.~p~enlofEnergy

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Granl Program (EECBG) (ARRA)
(CFDA # 81.128)

s

s

521.574
108.105
710.990

158,000

1,498,669
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

SOlED LE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR E 'DED JUNE 30,2013

Section I· ummary of Auditors' Ruulls

Financial Statements
Type of auditors' report issued
Internal control over financial reporting

Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses
Noncompliance material to financial statements

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs

Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs
Audit findings required to be reported in accordance with Circular A·133. Section .5IO(a)

Identification of major programs
CFDA number
Name of federal program or cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee

(Conlinucd)

Unqualified

Yes
None reported
No

No
None reported
Unqualified
No

15.235
U.S. Department of lhe Interior, Soulhem Nevada
Public Land Management

$1,471,490
Yes
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

SCHEDULE DF FINDINGS AND Q ESTIDNED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED Ju E 30, 2013

Section II - Findings rdating to the financial statemut , which art required to be reported in ac:eord2nu: with auditing standards gtntrally
Ic:ctpttd in the United Stalts and Government Auditing Standards

2013 - 001
Criteria

Condition

Effect

Cause

Recommendation

Management's response

There should be a sufficient level of qualified lK:counting staff (0 I) allow for proper segregation of
duties. 2) ensure appropriate accounting recognition of transactions and journal cOllies, and 3) ensure
thai errors are detected and corrected timely during financial close procedures prior to commencement
of audit procedures.

Due to staff reductions and the time period for financial close, there is a lack of adequate accounting
staff available to review transactions and ensure thai journal entries are appropriately recorded,
reviewed and reconciled to supporting documentation prior to commencement of audit procedures.

Numerous adjustments were proposed by the auditor (some of which required significant analysis and
time), which should be made prior to audit procedures.

There is not adequate staff to perform financial close and analyze all accounts and transactions prior to
commencement of the audit

While we recognize the difficulties inherent in the allocation of limited resources. particularly in today's
economic environment, we recommend that consideration be given to allocating resources for
additional qualified accounting staff.

Management informed us that it will continue to evaluate the adequacy of staffing levels and
segregation of duties in order to prioritize and focus limited resources 011 the areas and functions of
greatest need and that automated reporting tools in the accounting system are currently being
developed. which are expected to facilitate more timely review of information and exception based
reponing while requiring less preparation time. allowing for more time to be focused on oversight and
systemic improvements.

(Continued)
159



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

SCHEDULE OF FI 'DINGS AND Q ESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED Ju 'E 30, 2013

Stclion III - Findings and qutslionrd costs for rederal awuds, including audit findings as defined in Circular A-133 Seclion .510(1)

None reported

160



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED CO TS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Sttlion 11- Findings rtl.ting to the financial staltmr.nls. which art rcquirr-d to ~ ttpOl'"ttd in ac:cordancr: with audiling standards gr:nually
leetpled in the United Stales and Gove.rnment Auditing Standards

None reported

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FI '01 'GS AND Q ESTIONED COSTS (CONTI 'UED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

StClion 111- Findings and qutstiontd costs fol'" (tdual awar-d • including audit findings as ddintd in Circ::ular A-133 Srclion .SIO(I)

None reported
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